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. Company Secretary 

Thanking you, 
For Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

• This is for your information and appropriate dissemination. 

The forty-third Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held on Tuesday, August 27, 
2024 at 1.00 p.m. IST through Video Conferencing('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means ('OA VM'). 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, (Listing Regulations), we are submitting herewith the Annual 
Report of the Company along with Notice of AGM for the financial year 2023-24 which being send to 
Members, who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company /Depositories, through electronic 
mode. The Annual Report containing the Notice is also uploaded on the Company's website 
www.indoborax.com . 
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Lithium Hydroxide Monohydrate : IL is used in manufacturing lubricant greases, dyestuff and speciality 
resins. It is also used in batteries of electric vehicles fEVs }. 

Disodium Octaborare Tetrahydrate (O.O.T.) : We posses a valid Fertilizer license for manufacturing 
Disodiurn Octaborate Tetrahydrate (0.0.T.}, which is an important value added Agriculture Micronutrient 
Fertilizer; developed using in-house developed technology. Used in the manufacture of solution or suspension 
fertilizers, formulations of high-performance liquids containing Boron or with combination of other nutrients 
for spraying on soil or through irrigation. formulation of soluble micronurrtents powders for foliar spraying. 
as fire retardant in cellulosic materials such as cotton batting, paper, fabric, wooden composites etc., in fire 
retardant treatments for clothing, drapes or curtains, rugs, ironing board covers, fire fighter clothing and fire· 
retarded paper products, in water-based systems for corrosion inhibition. lubrication, or thermal oxidative 
stabilization, in manufacture of water treatment chemicals, used as an additive to reduce abrasiveness and to 
control viscosity in cleaning products such hand cleaners, polishes,and waxes, cleaning compounds. 

Boric Acid IP Grade: We are the only manufacture of IP grade Boric Acid in the country and have a valid FDA 
license. IP Grade is used in eye wash, ointments, foot powder, shampoo, skin cream, mouth wash and in 
veterinary formulations. 

Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder : We were the first in the country to be awarded BIS certification for 
manufacturing Boric Acid Technical Grade Used as fluxes and in metallurgical operations like welding and 
brazing. It is also used as fire retardant, as catalysts in in cyclohexane and hydrocarbon oxidation. Other uses 
are condensers, dishwashing products, and lubricants. It is also used in nuclear applications and in agricultural 
as micronutrients in fertilizers. 

Boric Acid Technical Grade Granular: We were the first in the country to be awarded BIS certification for 
manufacturing Boric Acid Technical Grade. Used in fused products i.e. glass, glass fibre ceramics. frtrs, glazed, 
porcelain enamels. It is also used as fluxes and metallurgical operations like welding. brazing, paste fluxes and 
soldering fluxes etc. It is also used as catalysts in cyclohcxane and hydrocarbon oxidation. 

We are in the business of Chemical products which includes Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder & 
Granular, Boric Acid 11> Grade {Indian Pharmacopoeia Grade), Di Sodium Octaborate Tetrahydrate (DOT) and 
L.ithium llydroxide Mono hydrate. 

Over the years we have created a strong product portfolio along with robust quality for our consumers. 
Our stringent quality control measures ensure that we do notcornpromise on raw material quality and process 
integrity. 

PRODUCT PROFILE 
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FY 201'-20 fY 2020·21 FY 2021·22 FY lOlZ..23 FY 202:l-24 

, ... 

,..,. l<X)';< 100~ 

Dividend Payout Percent Per Share of Rs. 1/· 

FY 2019·20 FY 2020·2l FV 2021·22 FY2022·23 fY 202J..24 

91.18 
Book Value Per Share of Rs. 1/- each (in Rs., 

fY'ZOl~ FY 2020·21 FY 2021·"22 f'( 2022·23 FY 2WJ..24 

JS,70 

Earning Per Share of Rs. 1/· each (in Rs.) 

fV201?-20 FY2020·2J FY2021·2.2 FY2022·23 fY202)·24 

Profit Before Tax (Rs. in Lakhs) 

f'( 2019-20 N 2020·21 rv 2021·22 FY2022·23 FV 202)..24 

Turnover {Rs. in Lakhs) 
21.496,93 
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lndoborax Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 

(CIN-U45400MH2009PTC197583) 

Subsidiary Company 

Link lntime India Pvt. Ltd. C-101, 247-Park, LBS Marg, 

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083. 

Registrar & Transfer Agent 

Pithampur: Sector II. Pithampur Industrial Arca, 

Dist. Dhar (M.P.), Pin-454775 

Works 

302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West). 

Mumbai-400 054. 

Registered Office 

Bohra & Co.,Chartered Accountants Auditors 

Canara Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, 

State Bank of India. 

Bankers 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Pravin Chavan 

Yogesh Patil 

Minakshi Mittal 

Independent Director ( w.e.f. 12/02/2024) 

Independent Director ( w.e.f.12/02/2024) 

Independent Director ( w.c.f.01/06/2024) 

Yatin Shah 

Non-Executive Director Sreelekha Sjaln 

Executive Director Govind R. Parmar 

Independent Di rector Sachin N. Gupta 

Arun S. Sureka Independent Director (up to 31/03/2024) 

Independent Director (up to 31/03/2024) Narendra KumarMittal 

Managing Director, CFO SajalS.Jain 
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4. Appointment of Mrs. Minakshi Mittal (DfN: 07220741) as an Independent Director of the 
Company: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150. 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory 
modification(s) or rc-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in force), Regulation 17 and other 
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), as amended from time to time, and in 
respect of whom the notice in writing has been received from a Member under Section 160(1) of the 
Act proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the Company, the Articles of 
Association of the Company and pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Minakshi Mittal (DIN: 
07220741 l. who is eligible for appointment as an Independent, Non-Executive Director; and has given 
herconsentalong with a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence under section 149(6) 
of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, be and 
is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five} consecutive 
years with effect from June 1, 2024 to May 31, 2029, who shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

RESOLVED FU'RTHER THAT the Board cf'Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper and expedient in connection 
therewith or incidental thereto, to giveeffectto the above resolution" 

5. Re-appointmentofMr. Govind Parmar, (OfN: 03556411) as Executive Director of the Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and all other 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including consolidated audited 
financial statements) of the Company for the financial year ended 31' March, 2024, together with the 
Reports of the Board of Di rectors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare a dividend of Re. 1/- (100.00%) per equity share of Re. 1/- each for the financial year ended 
31" March, 2024. 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Govind Parmar (DIN: 03556411), who retires by rotation in terms 
of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

NOTICE OF 43"" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the forty Third (43"') Annual General Meetlngoflndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
("Com1>any") will be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2024 at 1.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing 
("VC")/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM') to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 
the time being in force). and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 as amended from time to 
time, the remuneration of Rs. 56,000/-plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket 
expense payable to M/s. V. B. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, (Membership No. 49992, Firm 
Registratton No. 004861), who have been appointed by the Board ofDirectors on the recommendation 
of Audit Committee, as the Cost Auditors of the Company; to conduct the audit of the cost records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2025, be and is hereby ratified, 
confirmed and approved. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or any person authorized by 
the Board. be and is hereby severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may 
arise in giving any effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be necessary, 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act"] read with Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements] Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modificationfs] or re-enactmentls] 
thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of 
the Company and as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of 
Directors at their respective meetings held on 25'" May, 2024, Mr. Govind Parmar (DIN-03556411) be 
and is hereby re-appointed as Executive Director of the Company fora further period of3 (three) years 
with effect from 12°' November. 2024 on such terms and condiuons including remuneration, as set out 
in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice pursuant to Section 102 of the Act. with authority 
to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment in such 
manner as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mr. Govind Parmar, subject to the same 
not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Act or any statutory modification(s) or re­ 
enactment( s) thereof; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consentofthe members he and is hereby accorded, that where in any 
Financial Year during the current tenure of Mr. Govind Parmar as Executive Director, the Company has 
no profits or its profits are inadequate. then remuneration as stated in the Explanatory Statement 
annexed to this Notice, be paid to him as minimum remuneration in accordance with the limits 
prescribed as per the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment(s) or modification[s) by the 
Central Government to Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the Board be and is hereby authorized 
to vary and alter the terms of appointment including salary, perquisites, allowances etc. payable to Mr. 
Govind Parmar; within such prescribed limit or ceiling and as agreed hyand between the Company and 
Mr. Govind Parmarwithoutany further reference to the Company in General Meeting. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to take such seeps as 
may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution". 

6. Ratification of the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31" March, 
2025. 
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1. The Mimstry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April B, 
2020 and General Circular Nos. 17 /2020, dated April 13, 2020, in relation to "Clarification on passing 
of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder on account of the threat posed hy COVJD-19", General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 
2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2023 dated September 25, 
2023 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") in relation to "Clarification on holding of annual 
general meeting (ACM) through Video Conferencing ('VC') or Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM')'; 
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC/OAVM, without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. 

The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia ("SEBI") also vide its Circular No.SEBl/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD- 
2/P /CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 and other applicable circulars issued in this regard ("SEBI 
Circular") has provided relaxations from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations"). 

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the Listing 
Regulations and MCA Circulars, the 43"' AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OVAM. The 
registered officeofthe company shall be the deemed venue for the AGM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a members of the 
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, the 
requirement of physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the proxy form, 
attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this Notice. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18'" July, 2024 
Registered Office: 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (\.Yest), Mumbai - 400054 
Tel. No.: +9122 26489142 
Fax No.: +91 22 26489143 
E·mail: complianceofficer@indoborax.com 
Website: www.indobornx.com 
Corporate Identity Number: L24100Mll1980PLC023177 
NOTES: 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 

Pravm Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. 16857 

proper or expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and matters 
connected therewith or incidental thereto," 
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3. lnstitutionalfCorporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF /NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the Board or governing body resolution/ authorization etc, 
authorizing their representative to attend theAGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and vote through 
remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the scrutinizer by e-mail on their 
registered email address to scrutinizer@>mgconsulting.in or complianceofficer@indoborax.com with 
copy marked to https: (/instayote.linkintjme.co.in 

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Wednesday. 21" August. 2024 to Tuesday, 27•• August, 2024 (both days inclusive). in connection 
with the ensuing AG Mand the payment of dividend. 

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholdings, as maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested as 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and ~II other documents referred to in the Notice will be 
available for inspection in electronic mode without any tee by the Members from the date of circulation 
of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 27'" August, 2024. Members are requested to write to the 
Company Secretary for inspection of the said documents atcorop)i?nceofficer@indobor;ix.com. 

6. The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved by the members at the ACM, 
payment of such dividend subject to deduction of tax at source will be made on or after 31 • August, 
2024,as under: 

a) To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in dematerialized form asper the data as may 
be made available by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (Cl>SL) as of the close of the business hours on 20''' August, 
2024; 

b) To all shareholders in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid 
transmission or transposition request lodged with the company on or before the close of 
business hours on 20" August, 2024. 

7. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the 
business under Item Nos. 4, 5 & 6 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. Further, the relevant details. with 
respect to Item Nos. 3, 4 & 5 pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in 
respect of director seeking appointment/ re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed. 

8. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SERI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report2023-24 is being sent by electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with the Company /Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
2023-24 will also available on the Company's website www.indoborjlx.com and disseminated on the 
website of stock exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website of Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent i.e. Link Inti me India Private Limited at www.ljnkjntime.co.in. 

9. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as 
per the Register of Members of the Company as on the cut-off date will be entitled to vote during the 
AGM. 
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10. Members who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to register the same with their 
Depository Participants in the case shares are held by them in electronic form and the members 
holding shares in physical mode who have still not registered their email ID with the Company may 
write a request letter to register their email ID to the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, 
Link lntime India Private Limited. 

11. Members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit their Permanent Account Number 
{PAN] to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Link lntime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 
Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai · 400 083, as mandated by SEBI for every participants in 
securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs 
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts, as mandated by the SEBI for every participant 
in securities market 

12. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial year 2015· 
16, from time to time on due dates, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by 
the Central Government. Pursuant to provisions of Investor Education and Protection ruod 
{Accounting. Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid 
and unclaimed amount lying with the Company as on 19'' August. 2023 (the date oflastAnnual General 
Meeting) on the website of the Company. 

Members are requested to note that.dividends ifnotencashed for a consecutive period of7 years from 
the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the 
Investors Education and Protection fund ("IEl'F"). Further. all the shares in respect of such unclaimed 
dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, 
members are requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The 
Members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to lEPF Authority, may claim the 
same by making an application to the IEPF Authority in Form No. lEPF·S available on www.iepf.gov.in. 
For details, please refer to corporate governance report which is a part of this Annual Report. 

13. Pursuant to finance Acl, 2020, dividend income is taxable in the hands of shareholders and the 
company is required to deduct tax at sources {TDS) from dividend paid to shareholders at the 
prescribed rates. For the prescribed rate for various categories, please refer to the Income Tax Act, 
1961 and the l'inance Act, 2020, of the respective years. The shareholders are requested to update 
their valid PAN with DP's {if shares are in dematerialized form) and the company/Link lntime India 
Private Limited (if the shares are held in physical form). 

Resldenlindividual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly 
declaration in Form lSG/1511, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source be submitted at link 
https: //linkintime.co.in /forms reg /submission·of·form· lSg· 1 Sh.html. The shareholders can 
download Form 15G/15H. lOF from link https://www.linklntime.co.jn/c!ient·downloads.html. 
Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not correct/invalid/inoperative or have 
not filed income tax returns then tax will be deducted at higher rate prescribed under section 206AA or 
206Afl of the Act. as applicable and mcase of invalid PAN, they will notable to getcreditofTDS from the 
Income Tax Department. 
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Non-resident shareholders (including Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls)/Foreign Portfolio 
Investors (FPls) can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of tax 

residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial 
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form lOF, any other documents which may be 
required to avail the tax benefits. For this purpose the shareholders may submit the above documents 
(PDF format) by email to company atcomplianceofficer@jndoborax.com 

14. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer, 
transmission and transposition of securities shall be effected only in dematerialized form. In view of 
the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of 
dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. 
Members may contact the Link lntime India Private Limited for any asststance in this regard. 

15. Members holding shares in electronic mode may note that bank particulars registered against their 
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or 
M/s. Link lntlme India Private Limited cannot act on any request received directly from the members 
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes 
are to be advised only to the Depository Participants (DP) by the members. 

16. Members may please note that SEBI vide its circular SEBl/HO/MIRSD-RTAMB/P /CIR/2022/8 dated 
January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only 
while processing service request viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed 
suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of 
securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service request by submitting a duly filled and signed 
Form lSR-4, the format of which is available on the Company's website at www.indoborax.com and on 
the website of the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents. Link lntime India Private Limited at 
https://web.linkintime.co.in/KYC-downloads.html. It may be noted that the service request can be 
processed only after the folio is KYCcompliant. 

17. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is 
available for the Members is respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 
their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a member 
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit 
the same in Form No. lSR·3 or SH-14 as the case may be. Members may give request for registering PAN, 
KYC details or changes orupdation thereof through Form No. ISR-1. The said forms can be downloaded 
from the Company's website www.indoborax.com. Members are requested to submit the said details to 
their DP in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to lndo Borax & Chemicals 
Limited in case the shares are held in physical form. 

18. Non Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent, immediately of any change in their residential status on return to India for permanent 
settlement, their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account 
number and address of the bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR Code, as applicable if such details were 
not furnished earlier. 
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19. Members seeking any information with regard to the financial statements or any matter to be placed at 
the AGM are requested to write to the Company at least seven (7) days before the AGM through email at 
comp I ianceofficer@jngoborax.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. 

20. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or 
bank mandates to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the 
Registrar &Share Transfer Agent, Link Inti me India Private Limited. 

21. CS Mannish L. Ghia, PartnerofM/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize thee-voting process in fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer will after the conclusion of thee-voting at the meeting, scrutinize the votes cast at the 
meeting and votes cast through remote e-voting, make a consolidated report and submit the same to 
the Chairman or any other person authorized by him. 

The result of the e-votingwill be declared within 2 working days of the conclusion of meeting and the 
same, along with consolidated scrutinizer's report will be placed on Company's website 
www.indoborax.com and on the website of Link lntime India Private Limited. The Company shall 
simultaneously forward the results to BS£ Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
where the shares of the Company arc listed. 

22. SEBI vlde Circular Nos. SEBl/HO/ OIAE/OIAE/OIAE_IAD· 1/P /CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and 
SEBl/H0/01A£/01AE_ IAD-1/P/CIR/2023f'l 35 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular No. 
SEBl/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P /2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has 
established a Common Online Dispute Resolution Portal ("ODR Portal") for resolution of disputes 
arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned Circulars, post exhausting the 
option to resolve their grievances with the RTA/Company directly and through existing SCORES 
platform, the investor can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal, 
https: //smartod r.jn /lot:in· 

23. The instructions for shareholders for e-voting are as under: 

1. The voting period begins on Saturday, 24"' August, 2024 (9:00 am IST) and ends on Monday, 26'• 
August, 2024· (5:00 pm IS'I'). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Tuesday, 20"' August, 2024 may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Link lntime for voting thereafter. 

ii. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations (as amended), 
and MCA Circulars, the Company is proviclingfacilityofrcmotce·votingto its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 
with Link Intime India Private Limited [Link lntime) for facilitatingvotingthrough electronic means,as 
the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 
well as the e-votingsystem on the date of the ACM will be provided by Link lntlme. 

iii. The Members can join the ACM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at leastlOOO members on first 
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METHOD 2 - By directly visiting thee-voting website ofNSDL: 

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

b) Click on the "Login" tab available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. 

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you 

OR 

come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding). Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors. Key Managerial Personnel. the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
accountoffirstcome first served basis. 

iv. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of ascertainingthequorum under Section 103 ofthe Act. 

v. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, In pursuance of Secrion 112 and 
Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the members such as the President oflndia or the Governor of 
a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

vi. In line with the MC1\ Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company atwww.indoborax.com. The Notice can also be accessed from 
the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bscindia.com and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited at www.nseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of Link 
lntime India Private Limited (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system 
during the AGM) i.e, https: //instavote.linkintime.co.i n. 

Remo tee-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 

As per the Sf.Bl circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
can register directly with the depository or will have the option ofaccessing various ESP portals directly from 
their demat accounts. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in dematmode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL: 

METHOD 1 · If registered with NSDL LDeAS facility 

Users who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nscll.com and dick on "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login'; 

b) Enter user id and password. Post successful authentication, click on "Access to e-vonng" 
c) Click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 

redirected to Link lntimc lnstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 
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e) After successful authentication, click on "LINKINTIME" or "evoring link displayed alongside 
Company's Name" and you will be redirected to Link lntime lnstaVote website for casting the 
vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant: 

Users not registered for Easi/Easiest 

a) To register; visit URL: 

https: //web.cdslindia.com/mye<isitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration I 

https://web.cdsljndia.com/myeasitoken/Registratjon/EasiestRegistration 

h) Proceed with updating the required fields. 

c] Post registration, user will be provided Login ID and password. 

d) After successful login, user able to see c-voting menu. 

e) Click on "LINKLNTIME" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to Link Inti me lnstavote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 

METHOD 2 ·By directly visiting thee-voting website ofCDSL. 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindla.com/ 

b) Go to e-voung tab. 

c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on "Submit", 

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Emailas recorded 
in Dernat Account 

OR 

can see "Access to e-voting", 

c) Click on "LINKINTJME" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to Link lnnme mscavore website for casting the vote during the remote e-vonng 
period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in dematmode with CDSL: 

METHOD 1- From Easi/Easlest 

Users who have registered/ opted for Easi/Easiest 

a) Visit URL: Jll:ms: f/web.cdslindia.com/myeasjtoken /Home/Login orwww.cgslindia.com. 

b) Click on New System Myeasi 

c) Login with user id and password 

d] After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting menu. The menu will have links of e-vonng 
service providers i.e., 1.INKlNTIME, for voting during the remotee-votingperiod. 

e) Click on "LINKINTJME" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to Link lntime lnstaVotc website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 

flj 1NDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



"Snorenotders holding shares in NSDLform, shall provide 'D' above 
... Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least 

one special Character(@!#$&•), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter). 

... Click"confirm" (Your password is now generated). 

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated 
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number 
provided to you, if applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI 

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation [DOI) (As recorded with your DP / 
Company· in DD/MM/YYYYformat) 

D. BankAccountNumber 

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP /Company. 

"Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 'D~ shall provide their 
Folionumberin 'D'obove 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demataccount through 
your depository participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility, 

a) Login to DP website 

h) After Successful login, members shall navigate through "e-vonng'itab under Stocks option. 

c) Click on e-voting option, members will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-voting menu. 

d) After successful authentication. click on "LINKINTIME" or "evotlng link displayed alongside 
Company's Name" and you will be redirected to Link lntime lnstaVotewebsiteforcastingthe vote 
during the remote e-voting period. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non Individual 
Shareholders holding securities in dematmode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual 
Shareholders holding securities in de mat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for 
e-vonng facility of Link lntime as under: 

1. Visit URL: htn>s://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

2. Click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following details:· 

A. UserlD: 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No+ Polio Number registered 
with the Company.Shareholders holding shares in NSDLdemataccountshall provide8 Character 
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall 
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary Ill. 

B. PAN 
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3. Click on 'Login' under'SHAREHOLDER' tab. 

4. Enter your User JD, Password and l rnage Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 'Submit', 

Cast your vote electronically: 

1. Aftersuccessfullogin, you will be able to see the notification fore-voting. Select 'View' icon. 

2. E-voting page will appear, 

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour/ 
Against' (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, dick on the 'View Resolution' file 
link). 

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour/ Against, click on 'Submit'. A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' 
and accordinglymodify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders ("Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund"): 

STEP 1- Registration 

a) Visit URL: https://instavotc.linkintimc.co.in 

b) Click on Sign up under"Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund" 

c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form. 

d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email 
ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, 
Director; Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkjntime.co.jn. 

e) Thereafter: Login credentials (User· ID; Organisation ID; Password) will be sent to Primary contact 
person's email JD. 

f) While first login, entity will be directed to change the password and login process is completed. 

STEP 2 -Investor Mapping 

a) Visit URL: l.!1mU/instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step 1 
above. 

b) Click on "Investor Mapping" tab under the Menu Section 

c) Map the Investor with the following details: 

a. Investor ID'. 

i. Members holdin9 shores in NSDL de mot account sbal! provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 
8 Di9itC/ient/D i.e; Jn00000012345678 

ii. Members holding shares in CDSL demotaccountshatl provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
b. Investor's Name- Enter foll name of the entity. 

c. Investor PAN' - Enteryour10-digitPAN issued by Income Tax Department. 

d. Power of Attorney' - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. Pile Name for the Board 
resolution/Power of Attorney shall be - OP JD and Client JD. Further; Custodians and Mutual 
Funds shall also upload specimen signature card. 
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Helpdesk: 

Helpdesk for Individual shareholders holding securities In physical form/ Non-Individual 
Shareholders holding securities in de mat mode: 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link lntime INSTAVOTE hclpdesk by sending a 
requestatenotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-491$ 6000. 

b) You will be able to see the notification fore-voting in inbox. 

c) Selcct'View' icon for'Company's Name/ Event number'. E-voting page will appear. 

d) Download sample vote file from 'Download Sample Vote File' option. 

c) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour/ Against' in excel and upload the same 
under 'Upload Vote File' option. 

f) Click on 'Submit'. 'Data uploaded successfully' message will be displayed. (Once you cast your 
vote on the resolution. you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 

a) Visit URL: httns://jnstavote.linkintime.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step 1 
above. 

VOTES UPLOAD: 

OR 

b) Click on 'Votes Entry' tab under the Menu section. 

c) Enter Event No. for· which you want to cast vote. Event No. will be available on the home page of 
lnstavote before the start of remote evoting. 

d) Enter' 16-digit DematAccount No.' for which you want to cast vote. 

ej Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour/ 
Against' (ff you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' file 
link). 

f) After selecting the desired option i.e., Favour/ Against, click on 'Submit'. 

g) A confirmation box will bed isplayed. If you wish to conn rm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change 
your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote. (Once you cast your vote on the 
resolution.you will not be allowed to modify or change itsubsequently). 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.Jinkintime.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step l 
above. 

d) Click on Submit button and investor will be mapped now. 

e) The same can be viewed under theReport Section", 

STEP 3 - Voting through remote e-voting. 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods. once remote e-voting is activated: 

METHOD 1- VOTES ENTRY 
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Forgot Password: 

Individual Shareholders holdlngsecuritles In Physical mode has forgotten the password: 

If an Individual shareholders holding securities In physical form has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] 
or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on the e­ 
Voting website of Link lntime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

• Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click 'forgot password?' 

• Enter User IO,select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on "SUBMIT". 

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will lie sent to his/ her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the 
particulars oj't/1e Security Question and Answe1; PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits} 
etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain a minimum of8 characters, at least one special 
character(@!#$&•), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No+ 
Folio Number registered with the Company 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in NSDLdemataccountis 8 Character DP ID followed by 

8 Digit Client: ID 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in CDSLdemataccount is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Institutional shareholders ("Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund'1 hasforgcrten the password: 

If a Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on thee-Voting 
website of Link Inti me: https://jnstavote.ljnkjntime.co.in 

• Click on 'Login' under 'Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund' tab and further Click 'forgot 
password?' 

• Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).Click on "SUBMIT". 

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his/ her registered e-mail 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact Shareholders holding 
securities in dernat NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mode with NSDL or call at: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
Shareholders holding helpdesk by sending a request at 
securities in demar helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
mode with CDSL 1800 22 55 33 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in dernat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDLand CDSL. 
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Select the "Company" and 'Event Date' and register with your following details:· 

A. DematAccountNo. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit DematAccount No. or Folio No 
• Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demataccountshall provide 16 

Digit Beneficiary ID 

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 
Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio 
Number registered with the Company 

B. PAN Enter your l O·digit Permanent Account Number (PAN.) {Members who have 
not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use 
the sequence number provided to you, ifapplicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 
D. Email ID: Eater your email id, as recorded with your DP /Company . 

.,. Click "Go to Meeting" (You arc now registered for lnstaMeetand your attendance is marked 
for the meeting). 

address. Shareholders can set the password of his/Iler choice by providing the information about the particulars 
of the Security Question c111d Answer. PAN. DOB/DO/, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. 11s mentioned 
above. The password should contain a minimum of8 characters, at least one special character(@!#$&*), at least 
one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

lndlvidual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the 
password: 

Shareholders who are unable co retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website. 

l> It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. 

l> For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

i> During Lhe voting period,shareholders/ members can login any number of time Lill Lhey have voted 
on the resolution(s) fora particularEvent" 

lnstaVoteSupport Desk 

Llnklntlme India Private Limited 

Process and manner for attending the General Meeting through lnstaMeet: 

1.. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: hll1~Linstameet.Iinkinpme.co.jn & Click on 
"Login". 
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lnstructionsforSbareholders/ Members to Speak during the General Meeting through lnstaMeet: 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the 
company. 

2. Shareholders will getconfinnation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by 
the client. 

3. Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number" once they mark attendance for the meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 

5. Please rememberspeakingserial number and startyourconversation with panellist by switching 
on video mode and audio of your device. 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will 
announce the name and serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote duringthe General Meeting through lnsta Meet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer during the meeting, shareholders/ 
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as 
under: 

I. On the Shareholders VC page.click on the link fore-Voting"Castyourvote" 

2. Enter your 16 digit Dcmat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile 
number/ registered email Id} received during registration for lnstaMEETand click on 'Submit'. 

3. After successful login. you will see "Resolution Description" and against the same the option 
"Favour/ Against" for voting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. "Favour/ Against" as desired. Enter the number 
of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour /Against'. 

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour /Against as desired and you have decided to 
vote, click on "Save". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on "Confirm", else to changeyourvote,click on "Back" and accordingly modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your 
vote subsequently. 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will he present in the General Meeting through lnstaMeet 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and arc 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-vonng facility during the 
meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General 
Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through lnstaMect 
However, they will not be eligible to vote again during tbe meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected 
through broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS 
down load stream) to avoid any disturba need uri ng the meeting. 
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("Act") 

As required under section 102 of the Companies Act ("Act''), the following explanatory statement sets out all 
material facts relating to the business under I tern nos. 4 to 6 of the accompanying Notice: 

ltemNo.4 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on25th May, 2024, approved the appointment of Mrs. Minakshi 
Mittal (DIN: 07220741) as an Additional (Non-Executive, Independent) Director of the Company fora term of5 
(five) consecutive years w.e.f. June l, 2024 up to May 3l, 2029 upon recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval of members of the Company. The Company has, in terms of 
Section 160(1) of the Act. received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing his candidature for the office 
of Director. 

Mrs. Minakshi Mittal holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce & taw from Mumbai University. She is an 
Associate Member of Institute of Company Secretary of India (iCSI). She has an overall experience of 6 years 
and has attended a high level of professional efficiency and specialized knowledge in the fields of Company 
Law and Trademark. She has been practicing as a Company Secretary since past 6 years. 

In terms of provisions of Sections 149 and 152 ofrhe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). an Independent Director 
of a Company can be appointed for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by 
rotation. Thus, Mrs. Minakshi Mittal is proposed to be appointed for a term ofS (five) consecutive years w.e.f. 
June l, 2024 to May 31, 2029. The Company has received declaration from Mrs. Mlnakshi Mittal to the effect 
that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act read with Rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"). 

The Company has received a confirmation from Mrs. Mittal, in terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing 
Regulations, that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably 
anticipated that could lmpair or impact her ability to discharge her duties as an independent Director of the 
Company. 

Mrs. Minakshi Mittal is in compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to her registration with the data bank of Independent 
l)irectors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs ("llCA"). Mrs. Minakshi Mlttal is not 
disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act, and has given her consent to 
act as an Independent Director of the Company. Mrs. Minakshi Mittal is notholdingany shares in the Company. 

A briefresume and details of Mrs. Minakshi Mittal as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in 
their network. ltls therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any 
kind ofaforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an 
email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: -Tel: 022-49186175. 

lnstaMeet Support Desk 

Linklntime India Private Limited 
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a. BasicSalaryofRs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) per month. 

b. House RentAllowances 50% of Salary. 

c. Company's telephone/mobile communication facilities as per Company's rules. 

d. Leave encashment, leave travel assistance or allowances or such other perquisites 
andallowances in accordance with the rules of the company. 

e. Conveyance: Company car for official use. 

f. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the business of company as per Company's rules 

The Particulars ofinformation, pursuantto the provisions of Schedule V. Part II. Section II. clause CB) of 
the Act are as under: 

i. General information: 

(1) Nature of industry: As the name 'Inda Borax' suggests, Company is engaged in the business of 
manufacturing of Chemical Products. 

(2) Date or expected elate of commencement of commercial production: N.A. 

Mr. Govind Parmar shall be entitled to receive the remuneration as specified hereunder: 

Salary, Allowances and Perquisites 

Remuneration: 

and SS-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India forms a part of this Notice. 

The Board considers that her association would immense benefit to the company and it is desirable to avail 
services of Mrs. Minakshi Mittal as an Independent Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special 
Resolution as set out at ltern no. 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members. 

Except, Mrs. Minakshi Mittal, being the appointee, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

ltemNo.5 

Mr. Govind Parmar (DIN: 03556411) has been associated with the Company as an Independent Director since 
30"' May, 2011 and thereafter as an Executive Director for a period of three years from November 12, 2021 to 
November 11, 2024. His tenure will be expiring on November 11, 2024. 

Hence, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and keeping in view 
his rich professional experience in the field of accounts, management and general administration, the Cloard of 
Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 25, 2024 re-appointed Mr. Govind Parmar as Executive 
Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. November 12, 2024, subject to approval of the members of 
the Company. 

Mr. Govind Parmar. aged 65 years, is a B.Com graduate with over 3 7 years of professional experience in the field 
accounts, management and general administration. The terms and conditions ofhisappolntmentareas under: 

Period: Forthe period of3 yearsw.e.f. Novemher12, 2024. 

Nature of Duties: The Executive Director shall, subject to the supervision and control of the Board of Directors, 
be responsible for managing affairs of the factory as per the guidelines and the policies determined by the 
board from time to time. 
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{2) Past remuneration: Rs.18.11 Lakhs 

(3) Recognition or awards: NIL 

(4) Job profile and his suitability: Mr. Govind Parmar will be responsible for day to day affairs of the 
factory, interacting with various government agencies, workers and contractors, maintain all 
statutory records at factory and ensure that the safety regulations and policies arc implemented 
among the factory workers. 

(5) Remuneration proposed: Details of remuneration proposed for approval of the Shareholders are 
as provided above and forms part of this Notice. 

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry. size of the company, profile of the 
position and person: Taking into consideration size of the Company, the profile, knowledge. skills 
and responsibilities shouldered by Mr. Govind Parmar. the proposed remuneration to be paid is 
commensurate with the remuneration packages in the industry. 

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company. or relationship with the 
managerial personnel or other director. if any: N.A. 

iii. Other information: 

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits: The Company Is profit making organization. Except, the 
proposed remuneration may exceed the limit provided underSection 197 of the Actor such other 

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: NIL 

ii. Information about the appointee: 

(1) Background details: Mr. Govind Parmar. aged 65 years. is a B.Com graduate with over 37 years of 
professional experience in the field accounts, management and general administration. He has 
worked with Lakeland Chemicals Ltd as Manager Finance for 22 years, prior to this, he had 
worked as Manager Finance with Henkel Chemicals (India) Ltd. Mr. Govind Parmar has been 
associated with the company as an Independent Director since 30 .. May, 2011. Thereafter. he was 
appointed as Executive Director for the period of three years from November 12, 2021 to 
November 11, 2024 based on his skills. experience, knowledge and report of performance 
evaluation. 

Financial Year Financial Year 
Particulars 2023-24 (In 2022-23 (In 

Lakhs) Lakhsl 
Paid uo canital 320.90 320.90 
Reserves and Surplus 28,938.93 25,159.65 
Turnover 19,130.30 21,496.93 
Profit/(Lossl before tax 5,147.79 6 854.61 
Profit/(Loss) after tax 3,841.24 5,039.38 
Export performance and net foreign I - - 
exchange earned 

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved 
by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: N.A. 

( 4) Financial performance based on given indicators: 
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Mumbai: 18" July 2024 

By Order of the Board 

For lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

Pravin Chavan 

Company Secretary 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. has to be ratified by the members of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item no. 6 of the 
Notice for rarificatton ofrhe remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and 
remuneration ofM/s. V. B. Modi &Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004861, Membership 
No. 49992) as Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records relating to a Chemical 
products & other chemicals of the Company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2025 with audit fees of Rs. 
56,000/-plus goods and service tax as applicable and reimbursement of actual expenses as incurred by them 
in connection with the aforesaid audit. 

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: Company is continuously 
implementing various cost cutting measures and also from last year company has started 
manufacturing new product Di Sodium Octa borate Tetra hydrate (DOT). 

Bnefresume and details of Mr. Govlnd Parmar as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations and 
SS-2 issued by the l nstitute of Company Secretaries ofl ndia forms a part of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 5 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members. Mr. Gov ind Parmar is notholdinganyshares in the Company. 

Except, Mr. Govind Parmar being the appointee, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested in the said resolution. 

ltemNo.6 

limits as may be prescribed from time to time. 

{2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: Company had already increased its 
production capacity and upgraded its plant& machinery and also started new production facility 
of Di Sodium Octa borate Tetrahydrate (DOT). 
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Name of the Director Mr. Govind Parmar Mrs. Minakshi Mittal 
DIN 03556411 07220741 
Date of birth and age 25th December, 1959 (65 Years) 15th September. 1993 (30 

Years) 
Date of first Appointment on Board 30th May, 2011 tsr June, 2024 
Designation Executive Director Non-Executive) Independent 

Director 
Qualification B.Com B.Com, LLB, ACS 
Experience and Expertise in specific Mr. Govind Parmar is a B.Com Mrs. Minakshi Mittal, holds a 
functional areas graduate with over 37 years of bachelor's degree in Commerce 

professional experience In the and a degree in Law (LLB) from 
field accounts, management and Mumbai University. She is an 
general administration. associate Member of Institute of 

Company Secretary of India 
He has been an Executive (ICSI). 
Director since 12th November, She has overall experience of 6 2021. looking after the Factory 
Adminisrration. He joined the years and has attended a high 

company 30th May, 2011 as an level of professional efficiency 

Independent Director. and specialized knowledge in 
the fields of Company Law, 

He has worked with Lakeland Trade Mark. 

Chemicals Ltd for last 22 years She has been practicing as 
as Finance Manager, prior to this Company Secretary since past 6 
he had worked as Finance years. 
Manager with Henkel Chemicals 
[India) Ltd. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment Executive Director w.e.f. 12th Non-Executive, is Independent 
or Re-appointment November, 2024, liable to retire Director w.e.f. 1st June, 2024, 

by rotation. not liable to retire by rotation. 

Remuneration sought to be paid Details of remuneration sought Except sitting fees there is no 
to be paid arc given in any other remuneration. 
explanatory statement to item 
no.4. 

Remuneration last drawn Rs. 18.11 Lakhs NA 
Number of Meetings of the Board 5 (Five) NA 
attended during the year 2023-24 
Shareholding in the Company (Equity Nil Nil 
Shares of Re. 1/- each) as at 31/03/2024 

List of Directorships in other Companies lndoborax Infrastructure Bansal Educrafters Mumbai 
Private Limited Private Limited 

Listed entities from which he has Nil Nil 
resigned as Director in past 3 years 

List of Chairmanship or membership of Nil Nil 
various Committees in listed company 
and others Comoanles 
Relationship with other Directors of the None of the Directors of the None of the Directors of the 
Company Company are inter-se related to Company are inter-se related to 

Mr. Govind Parmar Mrs. Minakshi Mittal 

In pursuance of the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and SS-2 issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, details ofDirectorseeking appointment/re-appointmentare as follows: 
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On standalone basis, sales for the financial year 2023-24 stood at Rs. 19,130.30 lakhs, lower by 11.01 % over 
the previous year sales of Rs. 21.496.9~ Lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was Rs. 5,376.12 lakhs. 
which was lower by 23.31% over EBTD of Rs. 7,010.00 Lakhs in 2022-23. The profit aftertax for the year was 
Rs. 3,841.24 lakhs, which was lower by 23.78% over the PAT of Rs. 5,039.38Jakhs in 2022-23. 

On consolidated basis, sales for the financial year 2023-24stood at Rs.19,130.30 lakhs, lower by 15.01% over 
the previous year of Rs. 22,507.93 lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was Rs. 5,451.65 lakhs. which 
was lower by 22.68 % over EBTD of Rs. 7,050.76 Lakhs in 2022-23. The profit after tax for the year was Rs. 
3.897. 76 lakhs, which was lower by 23.11 % over the PATofRs. 5,069.40 lakhs in 2022-23. 

There is no amount proposed to be transferred to the Reserves. The closing balance of the retained earnings of 
your Company for the financial year 2023-24, after all appropriations and adjustments was Rs. 26,726.22 
Lakhs. 

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 

Based on the Company's performance, the Directors have recommended dividend ofRs.1/- (100%) per equity 
share of Rs.Ly- each on 3,20,90,000 Equity Shares, if approved by the members, would involve a cash outflow of 
Rs. 320.90 Lakhs. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

DIVIDEND 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated 
31-3-2024 31-3-2023 31-3-2024 31-3-2023 

Revenue from operations 19,130.30 21.496.93 19,130.30 22,507.93 
Other Income 1101.39 679.23 1,177.49 717.58 
Total Income 20,231.69 22.176.16 20,307.79 23,225.51 
Profit before Denreclation & Taxation 5.376.12 7.010.00 5,451.65 7 050.60 
Less : Depreciation 228.33 155.39 228.33 155.39 

Provision for Taxation 1,357.40 1.786.02 1,376.41 1,796.60 
Deferred Tax (50.85) 29.21 (50.85) 29.21 

Profit after Deureciation & Taxation 3,841.24 5.039.38 3,897.76 5,069.40 
Other Comnrchcnslvc Income for the vcar 258.93 41.31 258.93 41.31 
Total Comurchensive Income for the vear 4,100.17 5,080.69 4,156.69 5,110.71 
Balance brouaht forward from nrevious vear 22,946.95 ]8,187.16 22,971.58 18,181.77 
Profit available for annrouriatlon 27,047.12 23,267.85 27,128.27 23,292.48 
Less: Appropriauons 

Dividend 320.90 320.90 320.90 320.90 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 26.726.22 22,946.95 26,807.37 22,971.58 

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024 is summarized below: 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To The Members of lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. 

Your Directors present 43"' Annual Report of lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited along with the summary of 
standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31•March,2024. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
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Pursuant to Section 134 fS) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge 
and ability, confirm that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts; the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and there are no material departures; 

fii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end offinancial year and of the profit of 
theCompanyforthatperiod; 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Details of all die committees along with their composition, name of the members, meetings held during the 
year and attendance are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of this Report. 

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Six meetings of the board were held during the year, For details of meetings of Board, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Report, which tsa part of this report. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD 

Paid up equity share capital of die Company asat31" March, 2024 is320.90 Lakhs. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIRADEQUACY 

The details in respect of the internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management 
Discussion &Analysis, which isa part of this report 

The consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary which form part of Annual Report 
have been prepared in accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31• March, 2024 along with report of the auditors thereon are attached 
herewith. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, separate audited financial statement of 
the subsidiary is available on the website of the company www.indoborax.com. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

Company has only one wholly owned subsidiary; lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. There are no 
associate companies or joint ventures companies within the meaning of Section 2(6} of die Companies Act, 
2013 ('/\ct"). There has been no material change in the nature of business of the subsidiary. 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 129 (3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of flnanctal 
statements of the Company's subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the Company. 

Further. pursuant to the provisions of section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the company, 
consolidated financial statements along with the relevant documents and separate audited financial 
statements in respect of the subsidiary are available on the Company's website at \W!(W.indoborax.com 
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As on March 31, 2024 the company has six Director's with an optimum combination of Executive and Non­ 
Executive Directors including one women director. The Board comprises of four non-executive dlrectors, out of 
which three are independent directors. 

During the year company has appointed Mr. Yatin Shah and Mr. Yogesh Patil, as Independent Directors of the 
Company with effect from 13~ February, 2024. In the opinion of Board, Mr. Yatin Shah and Mr. Yogesh Patil are 
persons of integrity and fulfill requisite conditions as per applicable laws and are independent of the 
management of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 the Companies Act, 2013 the 
Independent Directors have submitted declarations that each of them meet the criteria of independence 
prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b} ofSEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There has been no change in the 
circumstances affecting their status as independent directors of the Company. 

During the year Mr. Arnn Sureka and M1: N. K. Mittal, Independent Directors of the company ceased to be. 
director of the Company with effect from 31• March, 2024, upon completion of their term as an Independent 
Directors. The Board places on record its appreciation for their invaluable contribution and guidance. 

The Board has re-appointed M1: Covind Parmar; as Executive Director w. e. f. 12"' November. 2024 for further 
period of three years, subject to approval of Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Govind 
Parmar is associated with the company from last 13 years at various positions such as Independent Director 
and Executive Director of the Company. 

Further Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director retires by rotation and being eligible offer himself for re· 
appointment. A resolution seeking shareholder's approval for his re-appointment along with other required 
details forms part of the notice. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transaction with the company other than sitting fees. 

Pursuant to provisions of section 203 of the Act, Mr. Sajat Jain, Managing Director & Chref Ftnanclal Offtcer; Mr. 
Govind Parmar. Executive Director and Mr. Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary are the key managerial 
personnel of the Company. 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

( v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Based on Lhe framework of internal financial controls and compliance system established and maintained by 
the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors including internal 
financial control over the financial reporting by the statutory auditors and reviews performed by the 
management and the audit committee, the board is of the opinion that the company's internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective duringthe financial year 202 3-24. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
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The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and 
monitor risk management plan for the Company. The committee is responsible for monitoring the reviewing 
the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The l\udit committee has additional oversight in the 
area offinancial risk and controls. The major risk identified by the businesses and functions are systematically 
address through mitigating actions on continuing basis. The development and implementation of risk 
management policy has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this 
report. 

The Company has whistle blower policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns 
regarding unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct and 
Ethics Policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguard against victimization of persons who 
use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee in the 
appropriate or exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of the company was denied access to the Audit 
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
http://www.indoborax.com/Whistel·Blower·Policy.php 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) of the Company and initiatives 
undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure I of this report in the 
format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The details about the 
CSR committee please referto the Corporate Governance Report. which form part of this report. The CSR policy 
is available on the website of the company Jillll://www.indoborax.com/CSR-Policy.phJl 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

The board and nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors 
on the basis of criteria such as contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings 
preparedness on the issues to be discussed meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the 
meeting, etc. 

Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent 
director being evaluated. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Actand SEBI Listing Regulation. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the 
basis of criteria such as board composition and structure, effectiveness of board process, information and 
functioning etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from 
committee members on the basis of criteria such as composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings etc. 

In separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of the non·independentdirectors, performance of 
the board as a whole and the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of the executive directors 
and non-executive directors. 

BOARD EVALUATION 
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Company has not paid any remuneration to non-executive directors except sitting fees. 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the financial 
year: 7 .64 percent. 

c) The numherofpermanentemployeeson the rollsofthecompany: 106 

d) During the course of the year, the total increase in salaries is approximately 1.76 
percent, after accounting promotions and other event based compensation revisions. 
The increase in remuneration is in line with the company's performance. 

The managerial remuneration and commission are as per the member's resolution. 
The managerial commission is purely based on the performance of the Company. 
During the year the tu mover of the company decreases, which reflects in the profit of 
the company, hence the managerial commission which is based on the profit is also 
decreased. During the year the managerial commission given only to the Managing 
Director as per special resolution passed by the members at the AGM held on 19"' 
August, 2023. During the year, there is decrease in the managerial remuneration by 
23.62 percent compare to the previous year, which is directly linked with the profit and 
performance of the company. 

c) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 

Name of the Directors Ratio of % increase in 
median remuneration 

remuneration in the 
financial vear 

Mr. Saial Jain, Managing Director & Chief 156.91 (24.32) 
Financial Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director 5.35 4.94 
Mr. Pravin Chavan. Comoanv Secrctarv 12.47 7.18 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule S ( 1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014,aregiven below: 

a) The rauo of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company and percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 
ChicfFinancial Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year: 

PARTICUALRS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. Company conducts 
its operations in such manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances of environmental 
regulations and preservation of natural resources. 

The company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of Sexual harassment at workplace 
and has duly constituted an Internal Complaint Committee in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During 
the year company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment. There have been no complaints in 
other areas. 

ENVIRONMENT HEALTH ANO SAFETY, PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
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i) Energy Conservation Measures taken 

ii) Utilization of alternate source of energy 

iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation Equipment. The Company continues to lay 
special emphasis on conservation of energy and have taken measures like regular 
monitoring of consumption, reduction of transmission losses and up to date 
maintenance or systems. 

The Company had applied fordelisting or shares from Kolkatta Stock Exchange in 2005-2006, however, till date 
the confirmation of dclisting has not been received from Exchange. 

ENEHGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGOA 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The information on the transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Act read with 
Ruic 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in AOC·Z in Annexure II and same forms part of 
this report. 

OELISTING OF SECURITIES 

THANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements. One of 
the party Kadi us Estate Projects Private Limited, (formerly known as Vishwaroop Keal tors Private Limited) is 
in the process of corporate insolvency process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (!BC}. The 
company has filed its claim as financial creditors as per the regulation 8 of the IBC for the outstanding amount 
or Rs. 509.04 Lakhs, The company is waiting for the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal (NCL.T). 
During the year due to uncertainty in realization of the said debt company has not provided interest on the said 
loan. 

The Company's policy on directors appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 
178(3) of the Act, has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Directors 
Report. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policyofthe company. 

f) The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms ofremuneration drawn 
and particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 
2014 is provided in annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the 
accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In term of 
section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office 
of the Company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write 
to the Company Secretary, 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
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The Auditor's report to the shareholders on the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended 31R March, 2024 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks, except 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report with the Auditors Certificate thereon, and 
the Management Discussion and Analysis are attached, whiclt form part of this Report. 

The Company has devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Members of the Companyattheir41" Annual General Meeting held on 27'" August, 2022 appointed M/s. Bohra 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 136492W) as statutory auditors of the Company to hold 
office for a period offive years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the 46''' AGM to be held in 
year 2027. 

COMMENTS OF AUDITOR'S REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

A separate detailed Corporate Governance Report and Certificate of Auditor of your Company regarding the 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as per SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 arc annexed to this report. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to section 92(3) read with section 134(3) (a} of the Act, the Annual Return for the financial year ended 
31" March, 2024, is available on the Company's website \~Z. www.indoborax.com. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public and as such, no amount on account of principal 01· 

interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 

Rs. 8,230.05 Jakhs 

Rs. 9.78 lakhs 

Nil 

Import ofRaw Materials 

Foreign Travel 

Others 

Nil i::arnings 

Outgo 

a) 

b) 

B. Technology Absorption 

1. Research & Development 

The Company has no specific Research & Development Department. However in house quality control facilities 
are utilized forproductdevelopmentand process improvement and updation. 

2. Technology Absorption 

The Company has not imported any new technology. 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Sajaljain 

Managing Director 

OIN:0031485S Mumbai, May. 25, 2024 

Your Directors thank to the company's employees, customers, vendors, shareholders & bankers for their 
continuous support. Your Company's growth has been possible due to their hard work, co-operation & 
support. Your Directors also thank government of India. Government of various states in India, government 
departments and agencies fortheir co-operation. 

COST AUDIT 

Company has appointed M/s. V. l:l. Modi &Associates. Cost Accountant (Firm Registration No. 004861) to audit 
cost records of the company for the financial year ended 2024-25. The Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, qualified Cost Auditors have been appointed to conduct cost audit for the 
year under review relating to the products manufactured by the Company. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The details pertaining to the composition of Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which is part of this report. 

emphasis of matter pertaining to one party to whom company has given Inter Corporate Deposit, is in the 
process of insolvency process and company had already filed a claim as a financial creditor as per regulation 8 
ofIBC for the said outstanding amount. The company is waiting for the outcome of the National Company Law 
Tribunal. During the year due to the uncertainty of realization of the said debt company has not provided 
interest thereon. 

Secretarial Audit report is annexed as Annexure Ill to this report. The Secretarial audit report to the 
shareholders does not contain any qualification or reservation which has any material adverse effect on the 
functioning of the company. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
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The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all 
assets are safeguarded; prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting record, timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures, transactions are authorized and 
recorded correctly to ensure compliance with policies and statutes. 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance system established and maintained by 
the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors, including the audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 
management and the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The domestic market for Chemical products is expanding every yea rand the Company can sell more quantity, 
as its products are well known for its quality. 

Company had received certification with Bureau of Indian Standard and is manufacturing boric acidaccording 
to the relevant BIS standard. 

Ou ring the year the company has started production of Di-sodium Octaborate Tetrahydrate (DOT) at plant at 
Pithampur. 

OUTLOOK 

The company is operating in a single reportable segment Le. manufacturing and selling of Chemicals. The 
disclosures requirement of the Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 108 "operating Segment" notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 are not 
applicable. 

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT·WISEPERFORMANCE 

As, the basic input of boron ores are imported, thus timely availability of basic inputs at competitive prices in 
desired quality, composition and quantities has been, continues to be and expected to remain a matter of 
concern, risk and threat. The company is continuously engaged in exploring and developing alternative 
sources for imported raw material to minimize the risk. 

OPPORTUNITY, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS 

No reliable and published data is available specifically on boron product industry. As boron ores are not found 
in India, thus the basic inputs have to be essentially imported. 

lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. was recognized as amongst Asia Pacific region's Top 200 Under A Billion Dollar 
Public Companies by FORBES in 2023. 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

RECOGNITION 

The OJ rectors present their report on the specified matters to the extent relevant or within limits that in their 
opinion are imposed by the company's own competitive position,as under.- 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
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The risks faced by the company are raw material risk, quality risk, competition risk, foreign exchange risk, 
realization risk, cost risk. 

The risk management committee has mitigation plan against above risk. Company is continuously engaged in 
exploring and developing alternative sources of imported raw material to mitigate the raw material risk. 
Highest quality parameters are set for the production of the chemical products: also ensure that there should 
be continuous supply of material to the customers which will mitigate the quality and competition risk. To 
mitigate the foreign exchange risk, company prefers to buy material on receipt of documents. If there is import 
of raw material on credit basis, the same are hedged. 

RISKAND CONCERNS 

The total permanent employees of the company are 106. There are no other reportable material developments 
in the matter of human resources and industrial relations, which were cordial throughout the year 

The net sales in current year stood at Rs. 19,130.30 Lakhs as compared to Rs.21,496.93 Lakhs in previous year, 
which is lower by 11.01 % due to reduction in sales realization. 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT & MANAGEMENT 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

that the Company's internal financial control were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024. 

Internal control systems have been found to be adequate and commensurate with the size and nature of the 
business of the company and are reviewed from time to time for further improvement. 
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3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR Projects approved by 
the Board are disclosed on the website of the company Composition of the CSR Committee shared 
above is available on the Company's website at http://www.indoborax.com/Board·Of·Director.php 
and CSR policy &CSR Report: http://www.indobor~x.com/CSR-Policy.php 

4. Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuant of sub-rule (3) of Rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Hules, 2014, if applicable (attach the 
report): Not Applicable 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub·rule(3) of rule 7 of the Companies, 

Sr. Name of the Director Designation/Nature Number of Number of 
No. of Directorship Meetings of meetings of CSR 

CSR Committee Committee 
held during the attended during 
vear thevear 

1. Mr. Arun Surcka(up to Chairman, 2 2 
31/03/2024) Independent Non· 

executive Director 
2. Mr. Sajal Jain Member, Executive 2 2 

Director 
3. Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Member. Non· 2 2 

Independent Non· 
executive Director 

4. Mr. Sachin Gupta Member, 2 2 
Independent Non- 
executive Director 

5. Mr. Yogesh Patil (w.e.f. Member, . . 
01/04/2024) Independent Non- 

executive Director· 

1. A brief outline of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy: 

Social and environment responsibility has always been at the forefront of I ndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd.s 
operating philosophy. We believe that to succeed, an organization must maintain highest standards or 
corporate behavior towards its employees, consumers and societies in which it operates. We are in the 
opinion that CSR underlines the objectives of bringing about difference and adding values in our 
stakeholder's lives. 

lndo Borax's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is rooted in the Company's core values of quality, 
reliability and trust guided by best practices, and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the overall 
performance or our business. 

The CSR activities undertaken by the company are within the broad framework of Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. During the year company has provided financial aid to implementing agency for 
providing education to the poor and needy children and to conduct child development program 
through training, skill education health and cultural program. 

2. The composition ofCSRcommittcc: 

ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
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Sr. Name Item Local Location of the Proje Amou Amount Mode of Mode of 
No or the from the Area( Project ct nt transfer lmplementa Implementation 

project list of Yes/ Dura allocat red to tion Direct Through 
activities No) tion ed for unspent (Yes/No) Implementing 
in the CSR Aaencv 
Schedule State District projec account Name CSR 
Vil to t (Rs. for the Regist 
the act In project ration 

Lakns] as per No. 
section 
135(5) 
of the 
Act 

1. Shiksha (i) Yes Rajastban, Jaipur. 1 110.00 Nil No Jan CSRO 
lagrukta Promoting Madhya [aisalmer, Year Jagrati 0006 

Education Pradesh. Bhllwarn, Sevarth 903 
Maharas Neem Sanstnan 

htra uch, 
Gwalior, 

Pune, 
Mumbai, 
Sangli 

Total 110.0 
0 

b) Details ofCSRamounts1>entagainstongoing projects for the financial year: 

Total amount Amount Unsoent 
spent for the Total amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
financial year unspent CSR Account as per schedule VI I as per second proviso to section 

section 135(6) of the Act 135(5) of the Act 
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of 

transfer fund Transfer 
Rs. 110 Lakhs Nil. - - NIL - 

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year; ifany: NIL 

d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+ 7b+ 7c): Rs.108.16 Lakhs 

8. a) CSRamountspentorunspentforthe financial year: 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, ifany: Not Applicable. 

6. Average netproftt ofthe company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Rs. 5,407.81 Lakhs 

7. a) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Rs.108.16 
Lakhs 

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: 
NIL 
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Sachin Gupta 
Chairman, CSR Committee 

Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 
25" May, 2024 

c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 
Applicable 

d) Amount spent in administrative overheads: Rs. NIL 

e) Amountspenton Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.NIL 

g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 

9. a) Details ofunspentCSRamount for the preceding three financial year: Not Applicable 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial years: NotApplicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital assets, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) 

a) Date of creation or acquisition of capital assets] s ): None 

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of Capital asset: NIL 

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital assets 
is registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable 

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset): Not Applicable 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5) of the Act: Not Applicable 

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company. 
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Sr. Name of the related Nau1rcof Duration of Salient terms of Date of Amoun Date of 
No. party and nature or contract/a contract/arrange contracr/arran Approval by l paid speclal 

relationship rrangerne rnent/transactions gernenr/transa the Board as resolution 
nt/transac coons advanc passed in 

nons including the C, if general 
value, if any any meeting 

under 
provision 
to section 

1B8 
1 Mr. Saumya Jain Is 

son of Mr. Sajal Jain, Re· 14th 
Managing L)irector designate lP October, 2019, Salary ofRs. 291h May, 

Nil Septembe & Mrs. Srcelckha d as Chief ongoing 64.71 Lakhs 2019 r, 2019 
Jain, Non-Executive Executive 

Director 
2 Mr. Sajal Jain, Aecom mo Rent of Rs. 

~lanaging Director dation 3"' May, 2022 for 5 57.60 Lakhs 30th April, 
NII NA of the Company provided years per annum for 2022 

three vears 

ANNEXURE II TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

FORM NO. AOC ·2 

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 8(2) of the 
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section {1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms­ 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions notatarm's length basis. 

I. Name of the related party and nature ofrelationshlp: Not Applicable 

ii. Nature of contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable 

iii. Duration ofthecontracts/arrangementsortransactions: Not Applicable 

iv. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including value: Not 
Applicable 

v. justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not 
Applicable 

vi. Date of approval by the Board: Not Applicable 

vii. Amount paid as advance, if any: Not Applicable 

viii. Date on which special Resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188: Not Applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis. 

There were no material contracts or arrangement or transactions entered into during the year ended 
31" March, 2024 crossing materiality threshold of 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the 
Company. The details of contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis for the year 
ended 31" March, 2024areas follows: 
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To, 

The Members of 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 
CIN: L24100MH1980PLC023177 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West), Mumbai400054 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by lndo Borax&Chemicals Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has.durmg the audit period ended on 31'' March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited ["The Company") for the period ended on 31" March, 2024 
according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ['SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings: 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company:- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regardingtheCompaniesActanddealingwith client: and 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2024 
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For Prasad Parab & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Prasad Parab 
Proprietor 

Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A0253241'000447130 

CP No. 10235 
Peer Review PR 2189/2022 

Place:-M umbai 
Date:- 25"' May, 2024 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (not 
applicable to the company as there was no reportable event during the financial year under 
review) 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

VI. Other laws specifically applicable to the company namely: 

1. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 
2. Air( Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 198'1; 
3. Indian Boiler Act, 1923 and rules issued thereunder; 
4. The Electricity Act, 2003 and rules issued thereunder. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued hyThe Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
MeetingofBoard ofDirectors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2). 

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited and the National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited read with the SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, and Listing Agreements etc. 

Further I would like to comment that company had given ICD of Rs. 509.04 Lakhs to Radius Estate 
Projects Private Limited (formerly known as Vishwarop Realtors Private Limited) is in the process of corporate 
insolvency process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) for the outstanding amount of Rs. 
509.04 lakhs. The outcome of the NCLT has not yet received. Due to uncertainty in realization of the said debt, 
company has not provided interest on the said loan. 

I further reportthat: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive and Non­ 
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days 
in advance to schedule the Board Meeting. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously. I 
further report that as per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the management and 
relied upon by me there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
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Company Secretaries 
Prasad Parah 

Proprietor 
Mem No. A25324 

UDIN NO. A025324F000447130 
CP No. 10235 

Peer Review PR 2189/2022 
Place.-Murnbai 
Date» 25'' May, 2024 

For Prasad Parab & Associates 

The Secretarial i\uditReportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of the management. My examinations were limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis. 

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness offinancial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company. 

I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable bastsfor our optruon. 

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

CIN: L24100MH1980PLC023177 

302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 

Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

ludo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 

The members, 

To, 

Annexure A to Secretarial Auditors' Report 

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed asAnnexureA and forms an integral part 
of this report. 
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Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting: 

During the financial year 2023-24 the Board ofDirectors met 6 times on the following dates: 13-May-2023, 13- 
Jul-2023, l 2-Aug-2023, 09-Nov-2023, 13-Feb-2024 and 26-Mal'-2024. Necessary quorum was present for all 
the board meetings. 

During the year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-aha to review the performance 
of the non-independent directors and the board as a whole. 

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The maximum tenure of the independent 
directors is in conformity with the Act. All the independent directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria 
of independence as mentioned under regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149(6) 
of the Act. Purthei; the Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank oflndependent 
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of'Directors] Rules, 2014. 

The Company has a balance and diverse Board of Directors, which primary takes care of business needs and 
stakeholders interest. The composition of board was in compliance as per regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"). 

The Board of Directors comprises of Chairman & Managing Director, Executive Director, Non-Executive 
Women Director and three Non-Executive lndependent Oirectors. Since the Chairman is executive, the Board's 
composition meets with the stipulated requirement of at least half of the board comprising Independent 
Directors. The present strength of the board reflects judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound 
knowledge which enables the board to provide effective leadership to the company. 

The J:loard provides guidance and independent views to the Company's senior management while discharging 
it fiduciary responsibilities. 

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS 

The company has a code of conduct for employees including Directors. The Company is in compliance with the 
requirements stipulated conditions of corporate governances as required under SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015, ("SEBI Listing Regulations') as applicable. 

The Company's philosophy is to conduct its affairs in a manner which is transparent, clear and evident tCJ those 
having dealings with or having a stake in the Company, namely shareholders, lenders.creditors and employees. 
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics and values of the 
Company and its Directors, who are expected to act in the best interest of the Company and remain accountable 
to shareholders and other beneficiaries for their action. We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose 
timely and accurate information regarding our financials, performance and governance of the company. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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The board has identified the following skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for the 
effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board: 

The Board has laid down a code of conduct of Business and Ethics for Board Members and Senior 
Management staff of the company and the same is available on company's website. The Board 
Members and Senior Management staff have affirmed compliance with the said code ofcond uct. 

Code of Conduct 

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the 
website of the Company. 

The gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

84,55,390 20,77,020 500 
Mr.Salal Jain Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Mr. Arun Sureka 

Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31" March, 2024 are given 
below: 

The directors familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors are available on the 
website of the companywww.indoborax.com 

The tenure of Mr. Arnn Sureka and Mr. N.K.Mittal, Independent Directors was ended on 31" March, 
2024. 

••Includes the Public Company and Foreign Company but exclude Private and Section 8 Company. 

Company has appointed Mr. Yatin Shah and Mr. Yogesh Patil, as Independent Directors w.e.f 13" 
February, 2024. 

*E.D.- Executive Director, N.E.D - Non Executive Director, I - Independent 

No.of No.of 
Director ships Chalrma 

No. of Attend in other nship/M 
Relationship Board Boards ember.shi 

Name of Director with other Category- Designation ance at (Excluding p In 
Directors Meetings last alrernate other Attended AGM Directorship Board 

and private Committ 
companlesj w ees 

Mr. Saial lain Husband of Mrs. Promoter & MU &CFO 6 Yes Nil Nil Sreelekha lain E.D 

Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Wife of Mr. Sajal N.E.D. Director 6 Yes Nil Nil Jain 
Mr. G. R. Parmar None E.D Executive 5 Yes Nil Nil Director 
Mr. Arun sureka None l&N.E.D Director 6 Yes NII NII 
Mr. N. K Mittal None l&N.E.D Director 6 Yes Nil Nil 
Mr. Sachin N. Gunta None l&N.E.D Director 6 Yes Nil Nil 
Mr. Yatin Shah None l&N.E.O Director 1 No Nil Nil 
Mr. Yo2esh Pat.ii None l&N.E.D Director 2 No NII NII 
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The previous AGM of the company was held on 27"' August, 2022 and was attended by Mr·. A run Sureka, 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

As on 31" March, 2023, the audit committee comprises of Four ( 4) Directors, out of which three (3) are 
Independent Directors and one (1) Executive Director. The Audit committee met 6 times on the 
following dates: 30-Apr-2022, 28·May·2022, 20-)uly-2022, 15-Sept-2022, 08-Nov-2022 and 10-Feb- 
2023. 

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee meetings Attendance 
held 

Mr. A run Sureka Chairman 4 4 
Mr. Narendra K. Mittal Member 4 4 
Mr. Sajal Jain Member 4 4 
Mr. Sachin Guuta Member 4 4 

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner 
as may be prescribed. 

Review the information required as per SEBI Listing Regulations. 

c] The composition of Audit Committee and the details or the meeting attended by the Directors are 
given below: 

i. Leadership experience in areas of business development, strategy and planning in 
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain environment. 

ii. Knowledge and skills in accounting, finance, tax and financial management and financial 
reporting process. 

iii. Experience in developing good corporate governance practices, serving the best interest 
of all stakeholders, driving corporate ethics and values. 

3. Audit Committee: 

a) The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b) The termsofreference of the audit committee are broadly as under: 

To review the financial statements before submission to the board. 

To reviewreportsoftheAuditors and internal auditors 

To oversight reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct. 

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the Auditors including 
cost auditors and secretarial auditors of the company etc. 

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval. 

Approval or any subsequent modification or rransacnons of the company with related party. 

Eva I nation of internal financial controls. 
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Nomination and Remuneration Commtttee met twice in a year Le. on 13-May-2023 and on 13-Feb-2024. 

The previous AGM of the company was held on 19" August, 2023 and was attended by Mr. Arun Sureka, 
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

iii. The broad terms of the role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee areas under: 

1. Recommend to the Board its composition, the set up and composition of the committees. 

2. Recommend to board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial and 
senior managerial personnel. 

3. Formulate criteria for evaluation of every director's performance 

4. Devising policy on board diversity. 

S. Recommend to the board appointment, removal of Director. KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel. 

6. Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing. 

7. Any other matter as board may decide from lime to lime. 

iv. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors is determined by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee. The evaluation of Directors carried out on the basis of factors like 
participation and contribution by director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and 
expertise, relationship with stakeholders, integrity and confidentiality and independence of 
judgment and behavior. 

v. Remuneration Policy: 

The remuneration policy of the company enables to attract, retain and motivate employees to 
achieve resu Its. 

The non-executive directors (including independent directors) will receive remuneration by way 
of foes for attending meeting of boards or committee thereof, as decided by the committee from 
time to time subject to the limits defined under the Companies Act, 2 013 and rules. 

The remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Director are determine by the 

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee Attendance 
meetlnes held 

Mr. Arun Sureka Chairman 2 2 
Mr. N. K. Mittal Member 2 2 
Mr. Sachin N. Gupta Member 2 2 

ii. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three (3) independent 
directors' viz. M1: Arun Sureka (Chairman), Mr. N.J<. Mittal (Member) and Mr. Sachin N. 
Gupta (Member). 

i. Pursuant to Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee. 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
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1. The Company has taken Croup Gratuity Policy and contribution for the Managing Director; is not 
separately determined hence not included above. 

2. Company has re-appointed Mr. Govind Parmar, as Executive Director in the Board meeting held on 25'' 
May, 2024, for the further period of three (3) years w.e.f.12'" November, 2024, subject to approval of the 
members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

3. Company has appointed Mrs. Minakshi Mittal.as an Independent Director at the board meeting held on 
25• May, 2024 for the perlod offive (5) years w.e.f. t" June, 2024, subject to approval of the members in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

4. Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

Pursuant to Section 178{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulation, 
the company has formed "Stakeholders Relationship Committee". The Committee specifically looks 
into the redressal of Shareholders/ Investors Grievances, if any, like grievances not addressed or Non· 
receipt of Annual Report/dividend warrants etc. and other related issues. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of two (2) independent directors and one Non­ 
Executive Director. 

Name of Director Salary Benefits Commission Meeting Total Service Contract, Notice Period, 
&HRA Fees Severance fees 

Mr. Sajal Jain 153.60 4.49 373.14 Nil 5:!1.23 Contractual-renrement by rotation 
Mr. Govind Parmar 18.l l . . Nil 18.11 Contractual-retirement by rotation* 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain -- -· -- 0.30 0.30 Retirement by Rotation 
Mr. Arun Sureka .. .. .. 0.45 0.45 . 
Mr. N. K. Mittal .. .. .. 0.45 0.45 . 
Mr. Sachin Gunta ·- .. ·- 0.51 0.51 . 
Mr. Yatin Shah .. ·- -- 0.03 0.03 . 
Mr. Yoaesh Patil .. ·- -- 0.06 0.06 - 

(Rs. In Lakhs) Directors' Remuneration during2023·24 vi. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, comprising of three independent directors. The 
commission payable to Managing Director is directly linked with the performance of the company 
which is governed by member's resolution. During the year, board has re-appointed and 
approved remuneration of Mr. Govind Parmar, as Executive Director w. e. f. 12'" November, 2024, 
subject to member's approval in ensuing general meeting. The commission is paid only to the 
Managing Director and after approval of the accounts by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting. 

The Company does not have any F.mployeeStock Option Scheme. 

Annual Remuneration payable to employees comprises two parts- salary component and 
bonus/incentives component based on the extent of achievement of the individuals and the 
performance of the business unit. 

The remuneration policy is available on http://www.indoborax.com/Nomination· 
Remuneration·Policy.php 
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Financial Date Time Venue No. of Special 
Year Resolutions 

2020·21 28.082021 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
p.rn. \/C/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circular 2 

2021-22 27.08.2022 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
p.m. VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circular . 

2022·23 19.08.2023 1.00 Meeting conducted through 
p.111. VC/OAVM pursuant to MCA Circular 1 

During the year under review, the Committee met 2 times on following dates: 12·Aug·2023 and on 13· 
Feb-2024. 

7. General Body Meetings: 
a) Annual General Meeting 

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under: 

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee meetings held Attendance 

Mr. Arun Sureka Chairman 2 2 
Mr. Sajal Jain Member 2 2 
Mrs.Sreelekha Jain Member 2 2 
Mr. Sachin Gunta Member 2 2 

During the year under review, the Committee met on two (2) times i.e. on 8-Nov-2022 & lO·l'eb-2023. 

• Number of Complaints received during the year ended 31.03.2024 - 2, Number of 
Complaints not resolved up to 31" March 2024· - NIL, Number of Share Transfers pending 
as on 31.03.2024- NIL, Number of Share Transfers pending for more than 30 days as on 
31.03.2024· Nil 

• Name & Designation of Compliance Officer- Mr. Pravln Chavan - Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

• The previous AGM of the company was held on 19'' August, 2023 and was attended by 
Mr. Narendra K. Mittal, Chairman of the Stakeholders l~elaUonship Committee 

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, committee was formed by the Board of Directors as "Corporate 
Social Responsibility Comrmrtee'; 

The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the details of the meetingattended 
by the Directors are given below: 

Name of Member Destgnatlon No. of Committee meetings Attendance held 
Mr. Narcndra K. Mittal Chairman 2 2 
Mrs. Srcelekha Jain Member 2 2 
Mr. Sachln Guota Member 2 2 

The composition of Shareholders' Grievances Committee and the details of the meeting attended by 
the Directors are given below: 
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ii. There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties, strictures been 
imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three 
years on any matter related to Capital markets, except, the company has received notice 

i. There were no transactions of material nature with the Promoters, Directors or the 
Management, subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. For details of related party transactions refer financial 
accounts. 

Procedure of postal ballot: The postal ballot was carried out as per the provisions of 
Section 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Rules 
framed thereunder and read with the General Circular issued in this regard by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), Government of India and Securities Exchange Board of India 
("SEBf") from time to time ( collectively referred to as circulars). 

ii) Details of special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot. None of the 
businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of special 
resolution through postal ballot. 

8. Other Disclosures: 

Descripnon of No. or No. or %of No. of No.of %of %of 
the resolutton Shares Votes votes votes in votes vote-sin votes 

held polled polled favour against favour against 
on o/s on on votes 
shares votes polled 

DOiied 
Appointment of 32090000 17200851 53.60 17200851 0 100 0 
Mr. vatin Shah, 

Independent 
Director 

Appointment of 32090000 1720085'1 53.60 17200851 0 100 0 
Mr. Yogesh Patil.. 

Independent 
Director 

i) Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the person who conducted 
postal ballot exercise, details of voting pattern and procedure of postal ballot. 

The Company had sought the approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution 
through notice of postal ballot dated 13"' February, 2024 for appointment of Independent 
Directors Mr. Yatin Shah and Mr. Yogesh Patil, which were duly passed and the results of 
which were announced on 26"' March, 2024. Manish Ghia (Membership No. 6252) of 
Manish Ghia & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, was appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the postal ballot process only by voting through electronic means 
(remotee-voting) in fair and transparent manner. 

b) Postal Ballot 
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The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed the compliance with Code 
applicable to them during the year ended 31" March, 2024. The annual report of the Company contains 
a certificate by the Managing Director terms ofSEBI Listing Regulations on the compliance declarations 
received from Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior Management. 

vii. The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the code of conduct applicable to them. The certificate by the Chief Financial Officer 
and the Managing Director is part of this report. 

9. Declaration regarding compliance by board members and senior management personnel with 
the Company's Code of conduct: 

vi. The company has adopted a policy on determination of materiality for disclosures. 

towards non-compliance under regulation 17(1), relating to vacancy created by death of 
late Mr.$. K. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director, however company had complied the 
provision by appointing Additional Director on 14" June. 2021. In this respect company 
had applied for waiver of the fine levied by the exchange, the exchange had accepted our 
waiver application and no tlne is to be paid. Further, in the board meeting held on 12" 
November, 2021. company had appointed Independent Director and re-designate of Mc 
Govind Parmar, from Independent Director to Executive Director.due to this total strength 
of the board becomes seven directors, as our Chairman is executive director half of the 
board should be Independent Director. Company had complied with this provision within 
stipulated time of 90 days, however exchange had levied fine of Rs. 6.65 Lakhs plus GST 
thereon, on the contention that company should not get 90 days period to make the board 
strength as per regulation 17(1 ). Company had already complied with the provision 
regulation 17(1) and also filed appeal forwaiver offlne with exchange. 

iii. The board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded 
on the Company's website http://www.indoborax.com/RPT-Transactions.php. The 
related party transactions have been approved by the Audit Committee. 

iv. The Whistle Blower policy is in place.and it is hereby affirmed that no personnel has been 
denied access to the audit committee. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of 
the company http: {/www.indoborax.c9m/Whis\~l-B!ower-Poljcy.php. 

v. The Company has also adopted Policy on determlnauon of material subsidiary; which has 
been uploaded on the Company's website http://www.indoborax.com/RPT·Policy.php. 
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements. It has fulfilled the 
following discretionary requirements as prescribed in Schedule II of Part E of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations: 

The auditor's report on statutory financial statementsofthe company are unmodified. 
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k. Monthly high / low price at BSE Limited (BSE} and National Stock Exchange of India Llmlted 
(NSE} (Financial Year 2023-24): 

L24100MH1980PLC023177 j. CorporateldentityNumber 

Annual Custody fees haveheen paid i. Custodial Fees to Depositories 

Listing fees as applicable have been paid 

g. ISIN No. 

h. ListingFeesfor2024·2S 

IN DO BORAX Eq-NSEoflndia Ltd 

NSD Land CDSL 

lNE803D01021 

f. Depositories 

e. Stock Code 

Dividend, if approved, shall be paid/credited on or 
after 27" August, 2024 

BSE Ltd, (BSE) Mumbai & National Stock Exchange 
of India Ltd (NSE) [The Kolkatta Stock Exchange 
Ltd. - Delisting confirmation from The Kolkatta 
Stock Exchange is still awaited) 

524342 - BSE Limited. 

d, Listing on Stock Exchanges 

As mentioned in the NoticeofthisAGM b. Record Date/Book Closure date 

c, Dividend payment Date 

a. Annual General Meeting 

The Company is conducting meeting through VC/OAVM pursuant to the MCA circular dated May 5, 
2020 read with general circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13. 2020. the latest being September 25, 
2023.As required under regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 2 on 
General Meetings, particulars of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are given 
in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM. 

11. General Information for Shareholder: 

• The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of Directors Report. 

As required, information relating to quarterly financial results, shareholding pattern etc. were 
provided to BSE Ltd, The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd and is available on website 
www.indoborax.com. www.bsejndja.com and www.nsemdta.com. 

• No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts 

TheCompanycommunicates with its shareholders on an annual basis through the Annual Report. The 
quarterly. half-yearly, nine monthly and yearly results are published in newspaper-Free Press Journal 
in English language& in Navshakti in Marathi. 

10. Means ofCommunkation: 
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m. Address for Correspondence 

Registrar and Transfer (R& T) Agents: 

Link lntimc India Pvt. Ltd, C·lOl, Embassy 247. LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai -400 083, Ph. (O)· 
810Bl16767, Toll Free No. lB00-1020-878, E-maiJ: rnthelpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
Compliance Officer: 
Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 
302, Link Rose. Linking Road. Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400 054 
Tel· +91 22 2648 9142, Fax-+91 22 2648 9143 
E-mail: complianccofficer@indoborax.com 

lBCL Shares pt ice and SSE Sensex Movemnet 

I. Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex 

BSE NSE 
Total Total no. 

Months High Low no. of High Low of Equity 

(Rs) (Rs) Equity (Rs) (Rs) Shares 
Shares Traded 
Traded 

April ·2023 120.50 101.25 86838 120.00 99.20 531399 
Mav-2023 137.90 116.50 252329 138.00 115.00 2141638 
June-2023 135.75 122.00 277772 135.80 121.65 2024878 
lulv-2023 189.90 122.80 674062 191.50 122.90 8053754 
Aw!Ust-2023 193.00 153.00 492432 192.00 151.70 3052861 
September-2023 180.00 157.35 164531 182.00 158.00 731158 
October-2023 167.20 149.30 116752 166.65 150.40 500389 
November-2023 172.65 145.60 244294 174:95 146.15 1131326 
December· 2023 235.00 165.40 1190572 235.00 166.25 10331099 
Januarv-2024 237.00 197.50 355071 238.00 196.35 2578340 
Februarv-2024 205.20 171.00 312097 205.35 170.00 2783806 
March-2024 182.95 146.55 215131 182.40 146.00 1637995 
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Plant locations Plot No. 43 to 46, 47 fl, 48,4811, Industrial Estate, Sector II, 
Pithampur-454775. (M.P.) 

s. Unclaimed Dividend Amounts: 
Pursuant to Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Autborlty (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("IEPF Rules"). 
dividends, if not claimed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid 
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investors Education and 
Protection Fund ("IEPF"). 

q. Outstanding GD Rs/ ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible Instruments: 
The Company has not issued any GD Rs/ AORs/Warrantsorany Convertible instruments. 

r. Location of Plant Facilities: 

Sr. Category of No.of %to 
No. Holders Shares Total 

Shares 

1 Indian l,63,00,230 50.79 Promoters 

2 Non- 
Residents/Flis/ 7,36,909 2.30 
OCBs 

3 Other 
Corporate 7,08,997 2.21 
Bodies 

4 Indian Public 1,18,98,155 37.08 

5 Clearing - - Members 
6 IEPF Account 24,45,710 7.62 

Total 3,20,90,000 100.00 

Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Mar- 2024 

No.of 
Numbe.r of equity Share No.Of 

shares held holders % Shares % 

1 - 500 24748 86.47 24,23,765 7.55 
501 - 1000 2,155 7.53 19,38,910 5.73 

1001 - 2000 696 3.13 14,56959 4.54 
2001 - 3000 269 1.01 7.64,422 2.38 
3001 - 4000 122 0.43 4,41,558 1.38 
4001 - 5000 131 0.46 6,32,164 J.97 
5001 - 10000 150 0.52 11,27.159 3.51 

10001 & Above 130 0.45 2,34,05,165 72.94 
Total 28,621 100.00 3,20,90,000 100.00 

In Phvsical Form 7,03,000 2.19 
In Electronic Form 313 87.000 97.81 

p. Distribution ofShareholdingason 31-Mar-2024: 

n. Share Transfer System: 

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, transfer, 
transmission and transposition of securities shall be affected only in dematerialized form. 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 25'" January, 2022, the listed companies shall issue the securities in 
dematerialized form only, for processing any service requests from shareholder vtz., issue of duplicate 
share certificates, endorsement, transmission, transposition etc. After processing the service request. 
a letter of confirmation will he issued to the shareholders and shall be valid for a period on 120 days, 
within which the shareholder shall make a request to the Depository Participant for dematerializing 
those shares. If the shareholders fail to submit dematerialization request within 120 days, then the 
company shall credit those shares in the Suspense Escrow Demat account held by Company. 
Shareholders can claim these shares transferred to Suspense Escrow Demar account on submission of 
necessary documentation. 

o. Dematerlalizatlon of Shares: 

The Company's shares are cornpulsorily traded in dematerialized form on BSE and NSc. As on 31-Mar- 
2024, 3,13.87,000 equity shares representing 97.81 o/oofthe Company's paid-up equity share capital is 
held in electronic form. 
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t. Disclosures with respect to dematsuspense account/unclaimed suspense account: There are no 
shares in any dematsuspense accouncorunclaimed suspense account. 

u. Loans and Advances: The Company has not given any loans and advances to firms/company in which 
directors are interested. 

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants pertaining to the aforesaid years may 
approach the company /its registrar. for obtaining payments thereof al least 20 days before they are 
due for transfer to the said fund. 

Financial Year Amount outstanding Due for transfer to 
as on 31.03.2024 (Rs. IEPF on 

In Lakhs) 
2016-2017 4.47 22/09/2024 
2017-2018 1.54 27l09L202s 
2018-2019 1.17 18/10/2026 
2019-2020 1.71 29/10/2027 
2020-2021 4.86 29/09/2028 
2021-2022 5.65 28/09/2029 
2022-2023 6.44 15/09/2030 

The members who have a claim on above dividends and shares may claim the same from IEPF 
Authority by submitting an online application in the prescribed Form No. IEPF-5 available on the 
website of www.iepf.gov.in and sending a physical copy of the same, duly signed to the Company, along 
with requisite documents enumerated in the Form No. lEPF·S. No claims shall lie against the Company 
in respect of the dividend/shares so transferred. The Members/claimants can file only one 
consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules. 

Information in respect of various outstanding dividends and the date by which they can he claimed by 
the shareholder from the Company areas follows: 

Financial Amount of unclaimed dividend transferred Number of shares 
Year (Rs. In Lakhs) transferred 

2015·16 4.57 78030 

Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven consecutive 
years or more from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF 
Authority. The said requirement docs not apply to shares in respect of which there is a specific order of 
Court, Tribunal or statutory authority, restraining any transfer of shares. 

In the interest of shareholders, the Company send notices to the shareholders to claim their dividend in 
order to avoid transfer of dividend/shares to IEPF Authority. Notices in this regard also published in 
the newspapers and the details of unclaimed dividend and shareholders whose shares are liable to be 
transferred to the JEPF Authority.are uploaded on the Company's website. 

In light of aforesaid provisions, the company has during the year under review, transferred co IEPF the 
unclaimed dividends, outstanding for seven consecutive years. Further, shares of the Company in 
respect of which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more, have also been 
transferred to the dcmataccount ofl EPF Authority. 

The details of unclaimed dividend and shares transferred to IEPF during the year 2023·24 are as 
follows: 
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For Prasad Parab & Associates 

Company Secretaries 
Prasad Parab 

Proprietor 
Mem No. A25324· 

UDIN NO. A025324F000447130 
CP No. 10235 

Peer Review PR 2189 /2022 
Place.-Mumbat 
Date:· 25'' May, 2024 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficiency oreffectivenesswith which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the 
year ended on 3 !"March, 2024. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company 
for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by lndo Borax & Chemicals 
Limited. ('the Company') for the year ended on March 31, 2024 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, 
clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub· regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 IS 
("SEBI Listing Regulations"). 

To the Members of 
Inda Borax & Chemicals Ltd. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
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for Prasad Parab & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Prasad Parab 
Proprietor 

Mem No. A25324 
UDIN NO. A025324F000447130 

CP No. 10235 
Peer Review PR 2189/2022 

Placc-Mumbai 
Date:· 25• May, 2024 

Note: The tenure of Mr. Arun Sunderlal Sureka (DIN:00148145) and Mr. Narendra Nemi Chandra Mittal 
(DIN:00314916) asan Independent Directors concluded on 31" March, 2024. 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Sr. Name of Director DIN 
Date of appointment 

No. in Comoanv 
1 Arnn Sunderlal Sureka 00148145 27 /04/1987 
2 Saia! Sushilkumar lain 00314855 26/05 2008 
3 Narendra Nemi Chandra Mittal 00314916 18 08 1998 
4 Govind Ramlal Parmar 03556411 30 05 201.1 
5 Sreelekha Saial lain 08057896 14 02 2018 
6 Sachin Nagarmal Gupta 09332193 12/11 2021 
7 Yoaesh Patil 10464221 13/02/2024 
8 Yatin Shah 07155634 13/02/2024 

To. 
The Members of lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
302. Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West], Mumbai 400054 

I have examined the relevant registers, records. forms. returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited having CIN :· L24lOOMH1980 PLC023177 and having registered 
office at 302, Link Rose. Linking Road. Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054 (hereinafter referred to as 'the 
Company'), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause lO(i} of the Securities Exchange Board oflndia 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I, hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai or any such other Statutory Authority 

CERTIFICATE OF NON·DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
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Board Confirmation 
Based on the assessment carried out by the Board of Directors of the Company (Board) and the 
declarations of independence subrnitted by the Independent Directors, this is to confirm that in the 
opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations and 
are independentofthe Management. 
Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 
Mumbai, dated May 25, 2024 

Sajal lain 
(Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer) 
Mumbai, May 25, 2024 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Limited 
Declaration pursuant to schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
lt is hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in SEBI Listing Regulations with the stock 
exchange, all the Board members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of conduct of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024. 
Sajal Jain 
Managing Director 
Mumbai, dated May 25, 2024 

We hereby certify that: 
a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March,2024 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief; 
i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor 

contain statements that might be misleading; 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
b. No transactions are entered into by the company during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative 

ofthe Company's code of conduct 
c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting 

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems pertaining to financial 
reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit committee, deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
i. Significant changes, if any in internal control over financial reporting during the year 
ii. Significant changes. ifany in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
iii. there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

MD /CFO CERTIFICATION 

The Board of Directors 
I ndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd .. 
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, 
Santacruz (West) 
Mumbai - 400 054 
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lndependentAuditor's Report 
To the Members of INDO BORAX& CHEMICALS LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of INDO BORAX & CHEMICAl..5 LIMITED ("the 
Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in Equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in tndia.of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and 
other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity forthe year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responslbiltties for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India [!CAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the !CAi's Code of Ethics, 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit matter: 

We have detennined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw your kind attention to the Note No. 45 to the standalone financial statement; The Company has given 
Inter Corporate Deposit in the nature of loan to one of the party, which has filed the application for corporate 
insolvency resolution process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016. 

The company has filed its claim as financial creditors as per the regulation 8 of the IBC code for the said 
outstanding amount. The company is awalung the outcorne from National Company Law Tribunal (NCt.:r). Due 
to uncertainty in realization of the said debt and pending decision of NCLTcompany continues not to provide 
interest on the said loan forthe financial year ended 31·03·2024. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information: 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit We also: 

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

l> Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form ofassurance con cl us ion thereon. 

l> I 11 connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our· audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

l> If, hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we arc required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) oftbe Companies Act, 
2013 ("The Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
changes in equity anti cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements. management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of unless the Board of Director either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board ofDirectors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether clue to fraud or error; and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 
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whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error; as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the 
Management. 

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis ofaccounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements 
01; if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

( v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements. 
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the resultsofourwork; and (ii) to evaluate the effectofany identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

11 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013, we 
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c] There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection fund by the company during the year ended 31st 
March, 2024. 

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 

g) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

3) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to thecxplanationsgiven to us: 

a) The company has disclosed the irnpactofpending litigations as at 31st March, 2024 on its 
financial position in its Ind AS financial position in its standalone financial statements - 
refer note 43 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivate contracts as at 31st 
March, 2024. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2024from being appotnted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respecrto the adequacyofthe internal financial controls over financial reportingofthe 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure-B". 

give in the Annexure "Pl' statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including other comprehensive 
income) the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 
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Por Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. "l 36492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 24039803BKCLRU1364 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25th May, 2024 

• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(ii) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall: 

• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party or 

• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficia ries: and 

[iii) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has tome to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement. 

e) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with 
Section 123 of the Act. 

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature ofrecording 
audit trail (edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come acrossanyinstanceofaudittrail feature being tampered with. 
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(bl During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of' 5 
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company 
has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement With 

Value as per 

Quarter Quarterly statement Value as per the Difference Reasons for Difference 
Filed with bank/ books of account 

financial institution 

Ql 5387.85 4929.92 457.93 Expenses fonning part of 
finished goods and semi- 

Q2 3867.71 3879.08 (11.37) finished goods were not 

Q3 3136.87 3146.65 (9.78) included in the quarterly 
statements & reversal of 

Q4 2172.19 2183.94 (11.75) certain expenses. 

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such 
verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not10% or more in aggregate 
for each class ofinventory. 

(ii) (a) 

(b) All fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical 
manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us. the immovable properties owned by 
the company are held in the name of the company. In respect ofimmovable propen:ytaken 
on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in standalone financial statements, the lease 
agreement is in the name of the Company. 

(d) The company has not revalued anyofits Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) As per the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding have been initiated or 
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 ( 45of1988) and rules made there under, 

Annexure (A} to the independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED on the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024] 

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars. including 
quantitative details and situation of property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets; 
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(b) In respect of the loans outstanding as on the balance sheet elate, the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company 
except for one loan aggregating Rs. 509.04 lakh where no schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Except for the aforesaid instances 
(where in the absence of stipulation of repayment/payment terms, we are unable to 
comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest}, other than 
above the parties arc repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in 
payment of interest as applicable. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest have been slipulated for loans and advances in the nature of loans, and the 
repayments of principal amount of loans and receipts ofinteresthave been regular during 
the year except one party. (Refer Note (b) above). 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, there is no amount overdue of loans and advances in the 
naturcofloans granted by the company except those mentioned in clause (b ). 

( e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has 
fallen due during the year, have been not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans 
granted to settle the overduesofexisting loans given to the same parties. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on the audit procedures conducted by us, the company has not granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period ofrepayment. 

Particulars Value in Rs. { lakh) 
Mutual Funds 3,848.97 
Linuid Fund 1 754.67 

Balance outstanding (gross) as at balance sheet elate in respect of the above cases 

Particulars Value in Rs. (Lakh) 

Aaereeate amount Invested durina the vear 
Mutual Funds 5,739.32 
Liquid Fund 10,700.00 

the books of account other than those as set out below. 

(iii) During the year the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security 
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties 

I nvcstments made during the year in S Mutual Funds: 
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(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not default in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit 

(viii) According to the information and the explanations given by the management, and based 
on the procedures carried out during the course of our· audit, we have not come across any 
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961. 

Name of Statute/ Amount in Rs' Period to which the Forum where dispute 
Descriotion lacs amount relates is uendinz 

Commercial Claim 9.02 1992·93 Bombay High Court 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion 
that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been so made and maintained. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
examination of the books of account, the Company has been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues co the appropriate authorities and other 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax. duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax. cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding. at the year end for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

According to the records of the Company. disputed Commercial Claim not deposited on 
account of dispute areas follows. 

(iv) Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
the audit procedures conducted by us, the company has complied with the provisions of 
sections '185 and ·186 of the Act, with respect to loans and advances granted, guarantees 
and securities provided and investments made by the company during the year. 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 
provision of the Sections 73 to 7 6 of the act, any other relevant provision of the Act and the 
relevant rules farmed there under. 
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procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not taken any term loans du ring the year. 
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us. and the procedure 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statement of the company. 
we report that no fund raised on short-term basis have been used for Jong-term purposes 
by the company. 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statement of the company. we report that the company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries, associate or joint ventures. 
(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and procedure performed by 
us, we report that the company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint venture or associate companies. 

{x) {a)TheCompanyhas not raised money by way ofinitial public offer during the year. 
(b)ln our opinion and according to information and explanations obtained by us. the 
company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment/ private placement of 
shares/ fully/ partially/ optionally convertible debentures during the year under review. 

(xi) (a) During the course ofour examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according lo 
the Information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any Instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, 
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 
(b) During the course ofour examination of the books and records ofthe Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in tndia.and according to 
the rnformauon and explanations given t.o us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in 
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014· 
was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting 
under Clause 3(xi)[b) of the Order is not applicableto the Company. 
(c) During the year under review, we have not come across any whistle-blower complaints. 

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, 
the reporting under Clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations and records made available to us by the 
company and audit procedures performed by us, all transactions with related parties are 
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the companies Act, 2013 
The details of transaction during the year have been disclosed in the Financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. Refer Note No. 37 "Related Party 
Disclosures" to the Financial statements. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the 
period under audlt, 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date : 25th May. 2024 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UD!N No.: 24039803BKCLRU1364 

The Company has during the year spent the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility as 
required under subsection (SJ of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3 (xx] of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
The reporting under Clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has 
been included in this report 

(xxi) 

{xx) 

(xix) 

(xviii) 

{xvii) 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year 
the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or person 
connected with the director and hence the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act. 
2013 arc not applicable to the Company. 

{xvi) {a)As perthe information and explanations given to us, the company is notrequired to get 
it registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank oflndia Act, 1934. 
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial / Housing Finance 
activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (bl of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company, 
(c) As per the information given to us, the company is a not a Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as defined in regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the 
reporting under clause 3 (xvi) ( c) of the Orderisnotapplicable to the Company. 
d) The clause related to whether Group has more than one CIC as part of the Group is not 
applicable to the company. 
The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended on the date 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 
the reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization offi nancial assets and payment offinancial 
liabililies. other information accompanying the financial statement, our knowledge onhe 
board of directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumption, nothing has came to our attention, which cause us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not 
capable of meeting is liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liability falling due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. will get discharge by the company as and when they fall due. 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements oflndo Borax &Chemicals Limited 
(the "Company") as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting of'the Cornpany as of'that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under rhe Compames Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
/\udit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(l0) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and theiroperatingcffectivencss. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our adverse audit opinion on the Company's internal financia I controls system overfi nancial reporting. 

Meaningoflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

ANNEXURE 'B'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH l(F) OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 
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Date : 25th May, 2024 
Place: Mumbai 

lnherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods arc subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects.an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31.2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofl ndia. 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 24039803BKCLRU1364 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of'the assetsof the company 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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Sreelekha Jain 
Directer 
DIN-08057896 
Govind Parmar 
Executive Director 
OIN-O:l5564J 1 

Place : Mu111bai 
Dale : z5th May, 2024 

Anil Jain 
Partner 
Membership No. 039803 

Sachln C.upta 
Director 
DIN·09332193 
Yogesh Patil 
Directer 
DIN·10464221 
Pravin Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Forand on behalf of the Board nirecrors 
lndo Borax & Chemtcats Llrnlted 
Sajal Jain 
~ian~lging uirecrcr & Cf"O 
DIN·003!4-855 

Total equity and li:•bilities 
Notes 1to48 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firn1 Registration No. 136492\V 

20 

363.25 34·0.63 

21 823.28 l,005.99 
22 0.00 0.00 
23 213.22 191.10 

124.07 222.29 
1 523.82 1 760.01 

31 044.46 27 505.61 
Total liabilities 

Total non-current uebrurtes 
Current liabilities 
Financial Habllines 
i. Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
ii, Other financtal liabilities 
UL Lease llabllltlos 
Employee Benefit Obligation 
lncome Tax Liabilities Net 

17 
LB 
19 

15 
16 

Total current assets 
Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 

9 lO 
11 
12 
13 
l4 

8 

Total non-current assets 
Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 
I. Investments 
ii. Trade receivables 
UL Cash and cash equtvalcnrs 
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 
v.Loans 
Other current assets 

1.864.36 1,629.64 
112.52 llB.32 
10.30 10.46 

7,981.43 7,981.43 
1.D40.93 1,040.93 

393.00 344.91 
573.15 563.23 
59.94 45.97 

12,035.63 11,734.89 

2,238.39 5,788.46 

3,905.82 552.76 
1,360.79 1,279.12 

10,896.Sl 7,496.97 
58.64 57.15 
11.98 6.55 

536.70 589.71 

19,008.83 15,770.72 
31,044.46 27,505.61 

320.90 320.90 
28,938.93 25,159.65 

29,259.83 25,480.55 

135.30 117.90 
122.25 143.88 

3.26 3.27 
260.91 265.0S 

Total equity 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current IJablUtJes 
Other Ptuanclal Llabllltles 
Deferred Tax LJabilltes 
Lease Ltabilltles 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

S(a) 
6 
7 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Caplt.1.I work-tn-nroercss 
Ri~ht of Use Assets 
Investment in Properties 
lnvestmenrs in Subsldlarv 
Fin3:ncial Assets 
i. Investments 
ii. Loans 
iii. Other Financ-ial A.')SClS 

Note As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 
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Directer 
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Executive Director 
OIN-O:l5564J 1 
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Director 
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Directer 
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Notes 1to48 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firn1 Registration No. 136492\V 

Earnings per share (gace Value per share Rs. 1) 
Baste 
Diluted 
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Total comprchcnslve l11co111c for me year 

288.)6 38.90 

(29.23) 2.41 

258.93 4-1.31 

259.93 41.31 

4,100.17 S,090.69 

33 
11.97 15.70 
t 1.97 15.70 

OCI for the year 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
Tax relating to above 
a) Items That Will Not Be Reclassified 'J'o Profit Or Loss 
b] lnceme Tax Relating To Items That \Viii Not Re Reclassified To Profit (Ir Loss 

Note Particulars 

Profit for the year 
standalone statement of other cnmprehenstve Income for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Profit from continuing operations 
Total tax •xp•ns•/(credlt) 

32 
32 

Profit before tax 
lncome tax expense 
-Curreur tax 
- Deferred tax 

31 
Protlt before exceptionaJ ttems and tax 
Exceptional items 

Total expenses 

27 

28 
29 
1 

30 

26 

Total income 
Expenses 
Cost cf raw materials and componenrs consumed 
Purchase or traded goods 
(h\crcase)/dccreasc in tovcrnortes of finished goods. 
work-In-progress and traded goods 
E1nployce beneftt expenses 
Finance Cost 
Depreciation expenses 
Other expenses 

19.130.30 21,496.93 
1,101.39 679.23 

20,231.69 22,176.16 

10,196.22 9,671.63 

42.99 (42.25) 

1.188.71 J,355.31 
0.60 9.23 

228.33 155.39 
3,,427,0!1 4,121.07 

15,083.90 15,470.38 

5,147.79 6,705.78 
148.83 

5,147.79 6.854.61 

1,357.40 1.786.02 
(SO.BS) 29.21 

1,:l06.SS 1,815.23 
3,841.24 5,039.38 
3,841.24 5,039.38 

24 
25 

Continuing: operations 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Note As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 Particulars 

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 
[Amounts are In Lakhs unless stated otnerwtso) 
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Govind Parmar 
Executive Director 
OIN·O:lS564J 1 

Place : Mu111bai 
Dale : z5th May, 2024 

Anil Jain 
Partner 
Membership No. 039803 

Sachln C.upta 
Director 
DIN·09332193 

Forand on behalf of the Board nirecrors 
lndo Borax & Chemtcats Llrnlted 
Sajal Jain 
~ian~lging uirecrcr & cf·o 
DIN·003!4-855 

Notes 1to48 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firn1 Registration No. 136492\V 

Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 [Amounts are in La.khs unless stated otherwise] 

PartJculars Asat March 31. 2024 AsatMarcb 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 
A Cash flow from operating activities: 

Profit before tax 5,117.79 6,854.61 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortizarton for the year 228.49 155.55 
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (25.12) (29.74) 
Ind As eftect LIQUID FUND OCI 38.54 [25.71} 
Assets written on· oci 48.79 
Net (profic)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (171.17} 
Actuartal (gain)/loss forming port of OCl [12.81) 
Dividend received (O.SS) (0.46} 
tnrerest lncome (531.lS) (198.46) 
Finance cost Q.60 9.23 

(253.24) (26l.Q6) 
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,894.55 6,59:).55 
Adfust1nents for: 
Oetre(lse/lnc;rease in inventories 3,550.07 (281.53) 
Decrcasc/Ilncrcase] in non-current financial assets (23.99) 159.39 
Decrcasc/Ilnercese} In current tlnanclal assets (6.92) 2.31 
Decreasejffncrease] in other current assets 53.00 73.57 
Increase in trade receivables (81.67) (278.39) 
tncrease in trade payables 22.62 (136.37) 
Increase fn current financial llabtllues (182.71) 431.30 
increase In non-current financial liabilities 17.40 69.60 
Increase in other provisions 22.12 24.90 

3.370.02 64.68 
Cash generated from operating activities 8,264.57 6,658.23 
lncome Tax Paid (net) (1,455.61) 

(1,455.61) (l.SSS.42) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 6,808.96 5,072.81 

B Cash flow from investing activities: 
Purchase or property, plant and equlpment (457.26) (497.07) 
Proceeds frern sale of assets 180.05 
Investment in Property (220.23) 
Purchase of Invesrmenrs (5,739.32) (5,440.00) 
Proceeds from redemption or tnvesrments. 2,576.93 4,983.55 
Interest received 531.18 198.16 
Dividend received 0.55 0.46 
Net cash used in investing ilctivities (3,087.92) (794.78) 

c cash now from financing activities: 
[Repayrnenrj/proceeds of short term borrowings. net 
Interest paid (0.60) (9.23) 
Dividends Paid (lncludiog Dividend Distribution Tax} (320.90) (320.90} 
Net cash generated from financing activities (321.50) (330.13) 

3,399.54 3,947.90 
C;:i,s:h and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,496.97 3.549.07 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,896.51 7,496.97 
As per attached report of even date. 
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Yogcsh Patil 
Directer 
OIN-10464221 
Pravin Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Sreelekha Jain 
Directer 
OIN-08057896 
Govind Parmar 
Executive Director 
OIN-O:l5564J 1 

Sachln C.upta 
Director 
DIN·09332193 

lndo Borax & Chemtcats Llrnlted 
Sajal Jain 
~ian~lging uirecrcr & Cf"O 
DIN·003!4855 

Forand on behalf of the Board nirecrors 

2,184.11 1.39 27.20 

2,164.11 1.39 27.20 

2,184.11 1.39 27.20 

2,184.11 1.39 27.20 

18.187.16 20,399.86 

5,039.38 5,039.38 
38.90 38.90 

2.41 2.41 

23,267.85 ZS,480.55 
(320.90) (320.90) 

22,946.95 25,159.65 
3,841.24 3,841.24 

288.16 288.16 

(29.22) (29.22) 

27,047.13 29,259.S:i 
320.90 320.90 

26,726.23 28,938.93 

2,184.11 1.39 27.20 

Place : Mu111bai 
Dale : z5th May, 2024 

Anil Jain 
Partner 
Membership No. 039803 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
Income Tax Relating To items That Wiii Not Be 
Reclassified To Profit Or Loss 
Total comprehensive tncome 
Dividends distributed ro equity shareholders 

Balance as at 31 March 2023 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
Income Tax Relating To I terns That Will 
Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss 
Total comprehensive tncome 
Dlvidends distributed to equity shareholders 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 
a) Capital Rcdcmpuon Reserve 

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount in 
Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal ernoumorthe equity shares bought back. 

bJ Share ForrcirurcAccount 
Amount originally received on 19000 equity shares, inclusive of share premium on forfeirure of shares transferred to Share 
Forfelu1re Accocm. 

c) General Reserves 
The Company created general reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act wherein certain percentage 
of profits were required to he transferred to general reserve before declarlng dividends. Ao; per the Companies Act 2013. the 
requirement to transfer profits to general reserve is not mandatory, General reserve is a free reserve available to the Company 

Notes 1to48 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firn1 Registration No. 136492\V 

Particulars 

15 32090000 320.90 

IS 32090000 320.90 

15 32090000 320.90 

Reserve & Surplus 

Capital Share General Retained Redemptlon Forfeiture Reseve Earning Total 
Reserve Account 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
Equity share of Rs. 1/- each 
Balance as at 1 April 2022 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 
Changes in Eqully Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

No. of shares Note Amount Particulars 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR Tiffi YEAR ENDED 31" MARCii, 2024 
A. EQUlTY SHARE CA.l'ITAJ.: (Aruounts are In Laldas unless stated crherwtse] 
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A liability ts classified as current when: 
L It Is expected to be? settled in normal operattng cycle 
ii. ltis held prlmarlly for the purpose oftrading 
iii. [tis due to be settled wlrhin rwe Ive months after the reporting period.or 

iv. There is no unconditlonal l'ight to defer the settlement of the liability for- at least twelve months after the rcpornng 
period. 
All other liabilitiesarc classified as non-current, 
The opcraung cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

c) Property, Plant and Equipment: 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if 
capitalisation criteria are merand directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
Subsequent costs a re included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate.only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) : 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight Jine method on assets located in Factory premises. The 
company has followed written-down value method of providing depreciation with respect to assets located at Head Office. The 
Depreciation is co inputed on the basis of useful Lives (asset out below] prescribed in Schedule II the Acn 
The amcrttsatlon period and the arnortisatton method for- finlte-lffe intangtble assets ls reviewed ar each financial year end 

Summary of Material Accounung Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Corporate lnfcrrnauon 
tndo Bora.x& Chernlcals Limited (the Company] is a publlc limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered offlce 
is at 302, l.Ink Rose, Liuktng RQ~u.L Santacruz (Wesl}, Mumbai ~ 400054. The Company JS engaged in manufacturing of Soron products 
arid Lithium. 

a) General lnformation and Compliance wilh Ind AS: 
These financial statements have: been prepared In accordance wlth the Ind Jan Accounttug Standards (hereinafter referred LO 
as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry or corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act.20131'ead with Ruic 3 
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ru1cs, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. 
The ftnanctal statements have been prepared 01.t accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied 
consistently to all the periods presented ill the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance 
Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 being the 'date of transition to Ind AS', All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non 
current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule 111 to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification or assets and ltabilhles. 
Authortsatlou of financial statements 
The financial statements or the Company for the year ended 31st f\1arch. 2024 were approved for issue in accordance wlth the 
resolution oflhe Beard of Directors on 25•.11 Moy, 2024. 

b) Current versus non currentctassttlcatteu 
The Company presents assets and ttabilltles in the balance sheet based on ct1rrent/ non-current classification. An asset Is 
classifted as current when Ir ls: 

I. Expected c<1 be realised or Intended l() sold or consumed Jn normal opcranng eycle. 
II. Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 
UL Expected to he reallscd wlrhin twelve montbsarrer the reporting pertod.or 
ht. Cash or cash cqulvalenr uulcss restricted Irom bch1g exchanged or used to serrle a llabJlfty ror at least rwelve months 

after the reporting period. 
All ether assets arc classitied as non-current. 
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Leasehold Improvements have been amortised over the estimated useful life of the assets or the period of lease. whichever is 
lower, The resldual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively. ff appropriate. 
De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de recognised upon disposal or when 

no future economic benefirs are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
income statement when the asset is derecognised. 
Transition to Ind AS 
01~ transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue wlrh the carrylng value of all Its property, plant and equipment 
recognised as at 1st April, 20161ncasu1·ed as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost of pro perry plant and cqul pmcnt, 

d) Impatrmeuternon-Ilnanclal assets 
A teach reporting date. the Company assesses whether-there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset lf such recoverable 
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. AH assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss 
previously recognised may no longer exist. An tmpnlrmenr loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable 
amount exceeds its carrying amount. 
The nupairrment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

eJ luvestments in Substdiary 
Investments in subsidiary ls carried at cost less accumulated Impairment tosses, if any \Vhcrc an indication of impairment 
cxtsts, the carrying amount of the lnvestment Is assessed and written down Immedlately to its recoverable amount, On 
disposal ofinvesnnents in subsidiary, the dift'ercncc between net disposal proceeds and the carrytng amcunts are recognized 
iJ1 the Statomentof Profit and Loss. 

f) Plnanclal tnstruments 
Financial assets 
lnitia.l recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and finaucial llabtliuesare recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
(inanclal instrument and are measured initiallyat fair value adjusted for transaction costs. 
Su bseq uent measurement 

I. Financial Instruments at amortised cost - the flnanclat Instrument Is measured at the amortlsed cost If both the 
f<,1101,vlng conditions are met 

The asset Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
Contractual terms of the asset give rlsecn speclfled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
[SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
After initial measurement. such Iinanctal assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

Dcsctiption of A.<tsct Etninlatcd useful lift.' 
(in yc1u~) 

Office Hu11din11, (.0 
Fact ory lhUl<lulg .~) 

T'J:ou and ~t1ulpmcn1 w 
()f1icc ecuioroem 5 
Ccmeeeers 3 
E.J..."Clric insf2ll:ui<1n JO 
Furnicure end fiswres 10 
Vehicles 8 

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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rate (El R) method. All the debt Instruments of the company are measured .at amortised cost. 
Trade Receivables and Loans: 
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently. these assets are held at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method net of a.ny expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts esnmated future 
cash mcome through the expected life of financial instrument. 
Mutual Funds, Equity investment, bonds and other financial lnstrwnents: 
t-.1utual Funds, Equity Investment, bonds and other flnttnclal tnserumcnts In the scope of Ind As 109 are measured ar fair 

value: through other comprehenstve income (FVTOCI ). 
Financial llablllt1es 
1 n ilial recognition and measurement 
AJI financial liabilities are recognised initially arfairvalue and transaction c:ost that is attributable to the acquisition ef the 
financial liabilities is also adjusted. These liabilitiesare classified asamortised cost. 
Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition. these liabllitles are measured at amorttsed cost using the cffcctl\lc tnrcrest method, 
These I la bi Ii ties Include borrowings. 
De-recognttlon otrtnanctat liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obllgation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing Huanctal liability is replaced by another rrom the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or ruodlflcarlon is treated as the de· recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The dlfference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

g) lmpairmentoffiuancialassets 
Jn accordance with Ind AS 109, the Con1pany applies expected credit loss (ECL.) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss for-financial assets, 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash tlows thatare due to the Company in accordanccwith thcconrracrand au the 

cash f101Ars tnar the Company expects to receive. When estimating the cash fJO\VS, the Company i~ required to consider: 
I. All contractual terms of the fl nanclal assets (lncludl 11g prepayment and extension) over the expected llf e of the assets. 
iL Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credltenhancementsthat are Integral to the contractual terms. 

Trade receivables 
The Company applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109, financial lustruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be 
recognised from initiaJ recognition of receivables. 
Other financial assets 
For recognltlon of jmpatrmenr Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the Company derermlnes whether there has 
been a signlflcant Increase in the credit risk stnce Initial recognition and If credit risk has Increased significantly, hnpairn1ent 
loss Is provtdcd, 

h} Inventories 
Raw Material: Lower of cost or nerreattsablevatue. Cost is deterrnlned on first in first out ('FIFO') basis. 
Work in progress, are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work in progress and manufactured finished 
goods comprises direct material. cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present 
location and condition. 
Finished goods: tower of cost or net realisable value. Cost Is determined on FIFO basis. includes direct material and Jabour 
expenses and appropriate proportion of manufactunng overheads based on the normal capacity for manufactured goods. 
Net: realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estlmated costs of completion and 
estimated costs ur necessaryto make the sate. 

i) Foreign Currency Transactluns 
tulttal recognltlen 
The Company's financial statements are presented in JNR. which is aJso the Company's functional currency. Transactions in 
foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transaction. 
l\1easuren1ent at the balance sheet date 
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foreign currency monetary items or the Corupany, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. 
No11·1nonetary items which are carried at historical cost denomlnated in a foreign currency arc reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rares at the datewhen the fairvaluc Is dcrcrmlned. 
Trea tmen t of exchange difference 
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items oron reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's 
monetary items at the closlng rate arc recognised as income 01· expenses Jn the perlod in whlch they arise. 

j) tncome taxes 
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in 
Other Compreheostve Income ('OCI') or dlrectly tn equity. 
Current income-rax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian 
Iocome-rax Act. Current lncome-rax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside 
statementof'profltand loss ( elrhertn OCI orin equity). 
Deferred income-tax is calculated using the liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all 
taxable temporary dlfferences. Ocferrcd la)( assets ate recognised ro 1.J1e extent 1hal It ls probable lhat the underlying rax loss. 
unused tax credits or deductible temporary difference win be utilised against future taxable mcome. This is assessed based on 
the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for sJg.uificant non-taxable income and expenses and specific 
limlts on the use of any unused tax loss or credit. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will 3llO\Y the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 
Deferred taxassets aud liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 

or the Ilability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have been enacted or substantively enacted at che reporting 
date. Deferred tax relating to irems recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outslde statement of profit 
and loss (either in OCJ or in equity). 

k) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporanons and short· term highly liquid 
investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to 
an U\SigniFicant risk of change in value. 

l] Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits 
i) Short Term Employee Benefits 

All employee beneflts payahlt'.! wtthtn twelve months of receiving employee services are classtflcd as short-term 

employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratla. 
II) Defined contribution plans 

Employee benefits In the rorm or contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government authorities, Employees 
State Insurance <.:orporation and Labour \tVelfare fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the 
contrtbunous are charged to the Prcruand toss Account or the year when the contributions to the respective funds 
are due. 

iii) Defined benefit plans 
Retlrernent benefit In the form of Cratutty benefit 1$ considered as deflned benentohllgatlon and is provided fot C>1l 

the basis of an actuarial valuation. 
iv) Gratulty 

The Company has an obllgarton towards gratuity. a defined benefit rcrtrcmcnr plan covering eligible employees. 
The plan provides for payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment oron termination of 
employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure or employment. Vesting occurs 
upon completion of glven years of service. The company makes contribution to employees group gratuity fund 
established by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Actuarlat g3ins and losses arising from changes in actuarial 
assumptlons are recognised In the Protlt and Loss account In the period in which they arise. 
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m) Operating expenses 
Operating expenses arc recognised In J)thtitor loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred. 

n) Borrowing costs 
Borrowlng costs directly auriburable to the acquisitions. construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 
during the period of tlme that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, Other borro v ving 
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in finance costs. 

o) Palrvatue measurement 
The Company measures financial tnstruments, at fair value a teach balance sheet date. 
Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid H> trans-fer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
markctparttcrpants at rhc measurement date. The rair value measurement ls based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 

I. In Lhe principal marker for the asset or llahlllLy, or 
ii. ln the absence of a principal market, in the mostadvantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market musrbe accessible by the Company, 
The fair value or an asset ora llablllty Is measured using uic assumptions thaL market participants would use when pricing ure 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

p) Prcvlslous, coutlngent assets and ccnttngeu t llabllltles 
Provisions are recognised only when there is a prescnt obllgatton, as a result of past evcnrs.and when a l'~liahle esrlmate of'the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates. Provisions arc discounted to their present values. where the nme value of money is matertal. 
Contingentliability is disclosed for 

i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
U. Present <>bligatlons arising front past events where It Is not probable that an outflow of resources wlll be required to 

settle the obligation or a reliable estlmate ofthc amount of the obligation cannot be made, 
Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when Inflow of economic benefit is probable, related asset is disclosed. 

q) Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or Joss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deductfng aurtbutable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstandlng during lJH~ period. The weighted 
average numberol equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events includinga bonus issue. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit or Joss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equityshares. 

r] Sign 1ncantmanage1ncnt I udgemcnt In applyi ngaccou nting policies and esu matlon uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make [udgemenrs. estimates and 
assumptlcns that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses.assetsaud Ji abilities, and the related disclosures. 
Significant management judgementsand csnmares 
The following are significant management judgements and estimates in applying the accounting policies of the Company that 
have the n1os-tsignirit.:anLeffe(.;·1 on the Ilnenctal statements. 
Recognition of deferred tax assets .. The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment ofthe 
probability of the future taxable inccme against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 
Evaluarton of Indtcerors for lrnpafrmeru of assets - The evaluation or appllcabtllty of mdtcators of lmpalrment of assets 
requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the 
assets. 
Recover ability of advances/receivables .. At each balance sheet date. based on historical default rates observed over expected 
life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances. 
Defined hencfit obligation (060) - tvlanagc1ncnc's esumare of the 000 is based on a number of criclcal underlying 
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation. medical cost trends. mortality, discount rate and anricipauon of future salary 
increases. vartauon in these assumptions may significa11tly Impact the OBO amount and the annual denned benefu expenses. 
Fair value measurements - Management appJies valuation techniques co derermine the fair value of financial instruments 
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[where active market quotes are not available). This Involves developing estimates and assumpnons consistent with how 
market parrlclpantx would price the Instrument Management uses the best Informauon avallable. i::~tlmated fair values may 
vary from the actual prtces that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reportlng date. 
Useful fives of deprcclablc/a1nortiz.able assets - Managcnu?nt reviews its estimate or the useful lives of depreclable / 
amornzable assets at each reporting date. based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties la these esttmates relate to 
technical and economic obsolescence. 

s) Revenue recognltion 
Sales of goods 
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods. traded goods and related services. 
The core principle o(lnd AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the rransfer ofpremised goods or-services 
locu$Lorners in ail amount that reflects the consideration Lo which the entity expects to be entitled m exchange for those goods 
or services. Specific.all)~ the standard introduces a S·step approach to revenue recognition. 
Revenue Is recognized (>11 satisfaction of performance obligation upon ttansrcr of control of products ro customers In an 
amount that re fleas the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products, 
Step 1 : Identify the contractfs] with a customer 
Step 2 : Identify the performance obligation in contract 
Srep 3 : Dcrermlue the rransacrton price 
Step 4 : Allocate the transacnon price to the performance obligations in the contract 
Step 5 : Recognlse revenue when {or \.IS:) the en lily salli;f'iei; 0;1 performance obllgi•IJOn 
Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, t.e. when 'control' of the 
goods or services underlying the particular performance obllgarton Is transferred to the customer; The Company has 
completed its evaluation of the possible impactoflndAS 115 and has adopted the standard from lStApril. 2018, 
Interest Income 
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method, 
Olvideod 
Dividends are recognised at the time the right to receive the payment is established. 

t) Segmentlnformatton 
The managing committee is considered to be the 'Chief Operating Decision f.1;_iker' (COOM) as defined in IND AS 108. The 
Operating Segment Is lhc level at which discrete llnancli-ll Information Is available. The f.OOP..1 allocates resources and assess 
performance at this level. The Company has one operating segment te, Chemical i'oianufact.uring which includes Boron 
Products and Lithium Hydroxide. 

u) Accounuugfor tease 
Company asa lessee 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for '1.11 leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 
low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the 
right to use the underlying assets. 
As per Ind AS 116. the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the 
statcmcruofproflrand loss. 
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight· 
Hnc basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase In line 'Arlth expected general tnnatton to 
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 
Company as a lessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially ;;ill the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are 
classified as operating leases. Ren tat income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, Initial direct 
costs incurred In negortaung and arranging an operarlng lease arc added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which thcyare earned. 

v) Governrnent c-rants 
Government grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of the 
concerned fixed assets. Capital Subskllcs under ri.tP MS~1E Prorsahan Scheme, 2017 ls recognised to the extent the clalms are 
accepted and settled, 
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Note:(") The amount refelceted in capital work in progress represents advance given for allotment of Unit/ Flat No. 1601 and L60Z for 
project named Avenue 54 at S. V. Road, Santacruz (\!\le-st) Murnbat ·4-00 054. 

Particulars Amount in caoital work-ln-nrozress for a nenod of Tot;)J Less than t veer 1 ·2 veers z-avears More than 3 vears 

Capital work-in-progress (•) . . . 110.52 110.52 
Plant & ~tachlnery 7.80 . . 7.80 

7.BO . . 110.52 118.32 

Ageing ror capital work-In-progress as at Ma1·ch 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Amount in caoital work-In-nroeress for a neriod of 
Particulars 

Less than 1 year r-z years 2·3 years More than 3 years TotaJ 

CapltaJ work-In-progress (•) . . . 110.52 110.52 
AddJt1on 2.00 . . 2.00 

2.00 - - 110.52 112.SZ 

Capital work-tu-progress 
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Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 1 • Property, plant and equlpment (An1ou.nts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 

Furnlture 
Buildings fixture Plant and Offito Leased Particulars and office· machinery equipments Vehicles Land Total 

equipments 

Gross block 

A< al April 01, 2022 1,112.96 '147.05 1,347.14 83.27 293.33 10.o6 2,993.8'1 
Additions 2.00 485.28 487.28 
Deduction 6.01 19.39 12.44 219.25 257.09 

As at March 31, 2023 J,106.95 127.66 1.347.14 n.83 559.36 10.06 3,224.00 
Additions 198.14 12.61 244.87 4.96 2.4·7 463.0S 
Deduction 

As at March 31, 2024 1,305.09 140.27 1,592.01 77.79 561.83 10.06 3,687.0S 

furniture 
Buildings fixture Plant and Office Leased Particulars and office- machinery equipments Vehicles Land Total 

equipments 

Accumulated depreciation 

AS at April 01, 2022 413.51 125.65 8H.39 72.51 261.41 1,687.47 
Depreciation charge during the year 36.15 5.13 41.34 3.79 65.98 155.39 
Deduction 4.84 18.80 11.63 213.23 z.t.8.50 

A$ al March 31, 2023 444.82 111.98 858.73 M.67 114.l6 l.594.36 
Depreciation charge during the year 35.69 6.82 45.99 3.88 135.95 228.33 
Deduction 

As at March 31, 2024 480.51 118.80 904.72 68.55 250.11 1,822.69 

Net carrytng arucunt as at l\1arch 31, 2024 824.58 21.47 687.29 9.24 311.72 10.06 1,864.36 

Nel carryin_g amount as al l\1arc::h 31, 2023 662.13 lS.69 488.41 8.16 445.20 !0.Q6 1,629.M 

Note 2 -Capttal work in Progress 
Agelng tor capital work-In-progress as at March 31, 2024 Is as follows 



(iii) Fair value of investment property as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 9088.00 Lakhs (8131.63 Lakhs) & fair value of furniture as on 31st 
March, 2024 is Rs. 654.29 l.akhs 

926.97 1,421.6>1 Total 

223.02 
703.95 

365.16 
1,056.48 

\V'ithin 1 ~·ear 
Lacer than l year but not later than 5 years 
I .arer than 5 years 

Particulars As at f\.1<trch 31, 2024 As <H Marcl:t 31, 2023 

Profit from investment properties 304.20 184.78 
(U) Leasing arrangemems 
Minimum lease paymems receivable under ncn-cnncellabte operating leases of iovestmem properties are as follows: 

184.78 3U·l.20 l?cofit Irom invesunenr properrics before 
depreciation 
Deprecinrion 

(53.49) ('M.45) 

2.Ja.21 .148.65 Rental income 
Dirccr opc:r.1ting expenses f.or property that generated 
renral income 

Direce operating expenses for property that did not 
generate rental income 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March .11, 2024 Particulars 

7,195.53 7.195.5> 
785.90 565.67 

220.2'.l 
7,981.43 7,981.4'.l 
7,981.43 

7,98'1.43 

Closing gross carrying amount 
Nc1 ca_rryiJJg amount as at March 31., 2024 
Net carrying amount as at March 31. 202.) 

(i) Amounts recognised in the staremcnr nf profit and lnss for investment properties 

Gross block 
Opening gross carrying amount· Property 
Opening gross carrying amount· Furniture 
Additions in furniture 

M. at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Note 4 - Inveeuuem property 

3.27 3.27 
0.20 0.20 
0.20 0.20 
3.27 3.27 
.).2() 3.27 

0.00 0.00 

(I.IS ll.15 

10.46 I0.61 Operating lease cnrumitmcnts as of 1.st April, 2023 

Lease Conunhmem During the year 
Amortizarlon durrin~ the rear 
Exemption of commiuneors for shore .. term leases 
Exemption of commitments for leases of low value 
'1!':&<:(.,~ 

Undiscouored future lease paymcnrs from operating 
leases 
Effect of discounting 
Interest c111 leasehold rights 
Lease liabilities as of Match 31, 2023 
Lease liabilities non-current as of (\'larch 31, 2024 
Lease liabilities current as t.•( !\hu:ch 31. 2024 

10.30 10.46 
The Cornpany reccngnised ROU asserts for the following assers caregorics. 
r .easc hold l;1n.d 

A$ at March 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 3 - R.ight of use: Assct.i; (Afnr1uots ate in La.khs unlc.ss s1a1ed •Jthet',,~ise) 
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3'14.91 ,~•-n 
1,040.93 

393.(lt) 
Y·J3.00 

1,tWl.'>3 

<\gt,"rr'cg;ue amount of quoted ln:vesaoeo1"$ 
:\gottt:b..-u.· marker value of listed and qcored mvestmenta 
t\~~te amount of unquoted invcsnneces 
Aggregate amcum of impairment in value of invcsuncrus 

No.Of AJ.; at March No. Of As at March Particulars Share/Bond 31,2024 Share/Bend 31,2023 Unh Unlt 

••) Investments in subsidiaries ; 
Unquoted 
ln Equity Instruments at CO$t, fully paid-up 
Indoborax lnfrasuucuue Private Limited 110000 1,040.9.\ l l()OO(J 1,040.93 

·ro1aJ l,040.93 1,04-0.9.1 

Note S(a) - NON CURRENT ll\'VESTMENTS 
Orbcr &1uity Instruments : 
Unquoted, fuUy paid up 
Reliance Media \\;,.orla Ltd 675 - 675 
Investment in Equity Instruments 
Quoted, fu1Jy pa.id up 
At F':tir value th_rough OCI 
Cenual Bank 01= India Ltd J2ll(\ l.9 J 3200 0.77 
J;Uprak:as.J-1 t\:{S(ici:uett Limited 450(] 0.81 45(.)() fl.31 
Jindal Steel & Power Limited - - .)()() l.G4 
Kamanwala lndusmes Limited 57.~95 9.79 57.195 4.40 
Larsen & Toubro Limited 9(1() 33.97 900 19.48 
National Thermal Power Limited 360C• 12.09 3600 6.31 
Punj IJnyd Limited 1460 0.04 146(1 fl.1)4 

Reliance Conuninuceucn Lanhcd 2000 o.04 2()00 om 
Ul\il1' Proiccts Limited 2()11(1 (J,(rl 200(1 0.02 
tnvestemem i11 Deberuures .. f,,ny pald up 
Unquoted, 
At Pair value through OCJ 
N'l1>c Ltd, Non Convertible Debentures 6000 (l.30 3000 U.31 
Bandhan CRISlL IBX Gih June, 2027 Index rund Regular Plan Growth 28,61.Sl5.77 334.0~ 28/17,815.77 311.6() 
(erstwhile IDF'C Crisil IDX Gilt June 2027) 

1·01al .19.1.00 344.91 

(Amcunrs are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) Note 5 - Ncn-curecut invcsrmcnts 

The company obtains independent valuauons for us Investment in properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active market for similar properties. where such information is not available. the company consider tnforrnatlon from a 
variety of sources iocluding: 

current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of simtlar properties in less active 
markers.adjusted co reflect those differences. 
dlscoumcd cash flow projecrteus based on rcllable csrtmaies of future cash flows. 

• capuahsed income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived 
from an analysis of market evidence. 

The fair values of investment in commercial properties have been determined by Independent Valuer H. Mehta & Associates. 
The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on 
corn parable transactions and industry data. All resulting fairvalue estimates for-tr\vcstn)C?nt propcrtiesare included in level 3. 
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552.76 
552.7-0 

3,905.82 
3,905.~2 

:\;q.~c;:ate amount of quoted invesunenes 
J°\,ggtega1c marker value of lj$tcd and quoted bwesuneors 
Aggrce,ra.te amount of unquoted invesuncnrs 
Aggtcga1e Provision for .hnpaumcur 10 rho Value of lnvcsnncnrs 
Note: The company has made RTGS for luvcsrmenr In SBJ Arbluagc Opportunities fund of Rs, 510.00 Lokhs on 28/03/2024, the same hJs been also 
debited from bank account on the same date. The fund house had ollorted 15.57,259.64 units on 01/04/2024 'rotal units as on 0 l/04/2024 
were 71.99.401.628. 

Particulars No. Of As at ~larch No. Of As at ~{2rch 
ShQte/AfF Unit 31,2024 Share/MF Unit 31, 202.l 

Investment in ~lotu<tl Fund • fully paid vp 
Unquoted 
Ac Pair value ebrougb OCI 
SBl Fixed }.l{lh1ncy Pla.o -Senes 82 . 5().000 500.00 
SBl i\.rbitragc Opp fund-Direct Pian (Refer note Below) 56.42,i'I 1.98S 2,356.89 - 
lCICI Prudential bahnce Advruilagr F\111d 9,05,759.639 1>'16.17 . . 
ICIO Prudential Corp Credit Opp. Fund 19.865.651 20.15 . . 
lCICJ Prudential Enhanced Dynamic Fend 80,205.967 101.6(> - 
l(:ICI Prudential Equily Savings Fund ~5.74.3.\0.72~ 724.16 . 
SBI Atbitr~e Oppornmhy Fund- Rc~1.br Pb.n· Growth !,8'.l,452.829 56.85 l,83,452.K29 52.76 
Total 319()5.S2 552.76 

Note 9 - Current investments 

5,788.46 2,238.39 Total 

5,561.36 
50.42 

57.66 
119.02 

2,066.19 
50.60 
14.4$ 

107.12 

Raw materials (Refer note 26) 
Srock in Process 

Finished goods 
Stock of Consumable Srores & Spare parts (at cost) 

As a< March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 
Note 8 - Inventories 

45.97 59.94 Total 
45.97 59.94 

Unsecured, considered go'.Jd 
Security Deposits 

Asar March 31, 2024 As at Murch 31,2023 Particulars 

Note 7 - Other Non Current Financial Assets 

563.2..l 573.15 Total 
54.19 64.11 
54.19 M.11 

Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Lonns to employees 

509.04 509.04 
Loans- lnrercorporare Deposits 
Inter Corpornre Deposks ( Refer Note No. 45) 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 
Unsecured, considered good 
Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Advance incomc-taxfnet of provision f(lt mxauon) 
Provision for doubtful advances 

As a< March 31, 2024 As al March 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
No1c 6 - Long tcrro lo~ins and adv;_ioccs (Amounts arc in Lakhs unless stated othcr\\~sc) 
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Note :Deposit with government authonues includes 58,62,806/ ·(Previous year Rs. 58,62,806/ ·) (Deposit of Ks. 61,55,946/- (Previous 
year Rs. 61,55,946/-} less input tax credit taken towards IGST of Rs. 2,93.140/- (Previous year Rs. 2,93,140/· l deposit with custom 
department. During the financial year 202 2·23 custom authority had rcf undcd R~. 1,00,00,000/ • 

589.71 536.70 Total 

<!ll.53 
74.57 
37.80 

341.34 
87.47 

65.58 
61.34 
79.42 

168.31 
162.05 

Prepaid expcns<s 
Deposit wirh govt. aurhorirics (refer note below) 
Advances to Suppliers 
Other> 
Interest Receivable 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Note 14 .. Other current assets 

6.55 11.98 Total 

6.55 11.98 Loans 10 Employees 
Loans - credit impaired 

As al March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Note: Unclaimed divdiend arc not due for deposit to the Investors Education and Prorecrion Fund. 

Nore 1J .. Shon term loans and advances 

57.15 58.64 Total 

32.79 
24.36 

32.79 
25.85 

Note 12 -Drber bank balances 
Margin money deposits 
Unclaimed dividend account (refer a note below) 

7,496.97 10,896.5'1 Total 

379.31 
5,285.00 
1,830.50 

526.18 
8,614.00 
1,754.67 

2.16 1.66 Cash on hand 
Bank balances 
• Current Account 
• Fixed Deposit 
• Investment in Liquid Mutual FW1d 

As al March 31,2023 As al March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Nore II - Cash and cash equivalents 

~forfo~h •A>rfod,ifrom~cdtNl.in.lNf!'ltlll fAlli1f!l1ddi forlih"in.E cnoo~ m dut di.tt o{ nsnrorot 
Pani<'oJ<m Less du.a b 11'1(11llh~ 1·1 yf-i. 2.1 yr$. 

)lotc du.o Jl-0:1-202" Par1kubr.s J.css 1hM1 C. (, rnoolh$· I 1·2p<. 2·Jp:o;. M.:.ic than 31-0J.2023 
6mootti~ l'\'l'I( :HTS. fll•JRlhs rear :u·I'$. 

(I' t!t1~1"1ttJTnlk (9 l 1i.:!i~p11tcd Ttt..lt 
ro:«:r\ lblcs- consdcred 1.3S9.15 ll.% ~llli 1110 . 1,3,0.19 l«ti\lifh t(11'1Si~d 1,211,J9 0.12 1.61 . 1,27,,12 
j(OO<I i\<'<'I 

(10 Ut1di5pu1c-:I Tt.ti."k ~i) UnJi~putOO 'liadc 
Rt.'C.:1\"'.lblc.r.. U1oslddni - . Rcttn•dlk,.. C•JO'IR..:lcr«I - . . 
D<mbdul 0o,1nful 

(ii~ Oii.pwcd Tr...-!c (lit) Oililutcd Tf'illk 
R«t1,"ldblC1 .:OAAJuN - - - - Rl"«n'.bl.:~ oon~Jd..-red - - - - 
.'00<! good 

(iv) DJ~put«I Trade (tv) D1~J Trade 
'Rt«kables con!.id(r00 - - - llcC'a\'able, w11o<idni:d - - - 
dw!xh1I droubtful: 

Tu1:J l,.>59.i5 0Jl6 nss 0.11• 1,360.79 Tuu.1 t.l''i..W IU2 1.61 - 1,279.12 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 10 ... Trade receivables (Amounts arc in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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As at March 31 • 2024 As at Atarch 31, 2023 

Name of the shareholder NC>S. ofSh:u~i; ~oholdiog Nm; . .-,£ Shilr~i; % b<tld.ing iu "'!•Cb.I\~ 
in 1hecb.u me ctase during the 

Equity shares of R:'\ .JI~ per share >~"' 
Equity Sha~s 
?\fr. S:;ajaJ Jain 84,55,.)91) 2(t.35 86,55,39[1 26.97 (0.62) 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain 20,77,020 6.47 20,77,0'21.J 6.47 
Mr. Saurnya jai11 46.1(1,810 14.43 51.)8,587 16.01 (1.58) 
xtes. Pmnlke jain Ill - LO - - ti.tn•. Sbubhrn jaiu $1\r:tc:tdjou 2,32,(i(J(I 0.72 2.32,0()0 0.72 
S:tj:t.l ,,:iin, Kann of J.l lJF 9,o;,(1(1() 2-82 9 ,o;.OIJO ~.82 - 

(d) Derails of l>ton1oicth()lding {as pct the rcgis1ct of mcrnbcrs of' the Company arc as under): 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Name of the shareholder Nos. of o/o holding in Nos. of Yu holding in 

Shares the class Shares the class 
Equit)' shares of Rs. I I· each fully paid 

8•1.55..390 20.JJ 1\·Lr. Sajal Jain 86.55,}0(J 26.97 
Mrs. Srcclckha jain 20.77,020 6.47 20,77,U20 6.47 
Mr. Saumya Jain 46,3(),RlO 14.4J 51,38,587 16.01 

(\>) Tet·ms/ rights attached 10 cquitysharcs 
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. l /·per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the sharchcldcrs in the ensuing Annual General f.1ccLing. 
In the event ofliquidarion of the Company, the holders of equity shares wlll be entitled to receive remalmng assets of the Company, 
after dlstriburtco of all preferential amounts. The distribution will Lu! in proporno» to cite number of equity shares held h}' the 
shareholders. 
Thcdlstribuuon wtll be tu proportion to the number of equirysharcs held by the equlty shareholders. 
During last five years no shares were alloted \VI th out payment being rccelved in cash or as bonus shares, however company were 
bought back and extinguished 2, 72,000 equity sharcsdurtng the flnanciat year 2014--1 S. 
Amount origtnally received on forcltc:dshares Rs. l ,39,350/· [lnctuslve of share premium) included In Reserve Si Surplus 

( c) Details cf shareholders holding more than 5%share-s In the Company 
(as per the register of members of the Company arc: as under] 

32090000 32090000 

,12090(100 32090000 Balance as :11 .j tsr ~f.'lrch 2023 
Changes during the period 
Balance as at 31s1 ~·larch 2024 

Nos. Nos. Equity Shares 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outst;lnding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

320.90 320.90 
320.90 320.90 

322.80 322.80 
322.8(1 3228[1 

soooo 6()().00 
Authorised shares 
(~XX~lOOO E9uity Share' of Rs 1/- each 
(Previous Year 60000000 Equity Shares of Rs. I I· each) 
Issued, subscribed shares 
32280000 Equity Sh2'<:S of Rs. 1/- each 
(Previous rear 32280000 Equi[)' Shares of Rs. 1/- each) 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
32091)00() Equity Shares of Rs. I/- each 
(Previous year 32090000 E'.<Juity Shares of Rs. 1 /- each) 

As "' March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 15 .. Share capital and other equity (Amounts arc in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
Share capital 
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143.88 122.25 Tot:tl 

143.88 122.25 Diff. between accounting bast and tax base of PPE 

155.24 134.15 TOT J\L OF DnFERJlf,0 TAX LIA n11.ITY 

155.24 134.15 Deferred tux liability ari.,ing on account of Difference 
between accounting base and eax base of PPE 

Deferred tax liability arising on account of Financial 
assets at fair value through O(:l 

t 1.36 11.90 TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX 1\SSETS 

2.3(> 
9.00 

3.Su 
8.JO 

Deferred tax fiabiliees a.risi.ng un account of": 
Deferred tax asset ~rising 01) account of Peovision fol' employee benefits 
Deferred tax asset ~rising on account of Financial assets at fair value through 

As at March ~u. 2024 As at March 31,202.1 

Note l8 - Deferred tax liabilities 

117.90 'IJS .. 'IO Total 

117.9() 135.30 Leased Deposits 

As ar March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

Note '17 - Other non-current financial liabilities 

TOTAL 

General Reserve 
Balance Br<:1ught Forward 
Transfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Accouru 
Surplus Ju the statement of pro Gt ~u1d Joss 
Bulance (1S per the last financial seuemems 
Profit for the year 
L~:,s: 1\ppropri:ttk1n:, 
Dividend distributed on equity shares 
Ctr1sing Balance 

J.39 I.39 
1.39 1.39 

2,l!H.12 2.184.11 

2,184.12 2,184.11 

22,946.YS 18,187.16 
4,JIJ0.17 5,080.69 

320.90 .>20.90 
26,726.22 22,946.95 

28,938.93 25,159.65 

27.20 27.20 
27.20 27.2(1 Capital Redemption Reserve 

BriJancc Brought Forward 
Share Forfelrure Account 
Balance Btought Forward 

As at March 31,2023 As at March .111 2024 Reserves and Surplus 

(Amounts are in Lakhs unless seated orberwisc) Note 16 - Other Equity 

e] Final & Interim Dividend on Equtry Shares 
Final dtvrdend of Rs 1 (i.e.100%) per equity share of'Rs 1/- each for the Fmancial Year ended March 31, 2023 on 3209000 equity 
shares declared by Shareholders at Annual General Meeting held on 19th August, 2023 

f) Split up of equity shares : 
The Board o( Directors at theirmeenng held on 14th June, 2021 approved the sub-division of each equity share of face value of Rs. 
10/- Fully paid UJ) into 10 equrry shares of'face value of Rs. 1/· each fully paid up. The same has been approved by the members in 
tl>e Annual General Meeting held on 28th August, 202l. The effective date for the subdivision was 28th September; 202 L 
Accordingly. c<1uity shares and earning per shares have been adjusted for the share split in accordance V\rith IND AS 33 "Earning 
Per Share" for all previous quarters. 
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191.10 213.22 Total 

155.29 
35.81 

173.23 
39.99 

Provision for gta[uiry (net) (Refer Note 28) 
Provision for Leave (Refer Nore 28) 

As at March 31. 2024 As at !\if arch 31,2023 Particulars 

Note 23 ·Employee Benefit Obligation 

0.00 0.00 Total 
0.00 ().()0 Lease Liability 

As at March 3t. 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

a) Srarurory dues payable 
b) Salaries due to director 
c) Advance received from clients 
c) Other liabilities 
d) Unclaimed Dividend 

324.75 342.52 
381.12 553.97 
&i.84 76.8~ 
10.72 8.27 
25.85 24.35 

823.28 I 005.99 Total 
Note 22 - Current Lease Liabitirles 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Note 21 - Other current financial liabilities 

NH. 
NU. 

NIL 
sen, 

Nil. NIL 

NIL NIL (a) dt< 1•rincip:il :unot1n1 aod the i1uctes1 clue rhereou (to he ::iho'o\rn sep~mtcl}) r(1l,ai11in.g 
unr~ud m :uiy sopphet at chcend of each :lC:C:f1Utlci1tg~·c:tr 

(b) the nmounr of iurercsr paid by rhe buyer in terms of section 16 of the 1\licro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 21)06 (27 t>f 2(106}~ al•>ng ,.,.idi the :unr1unt <if rbe 
parn1cn1 made LO the sopplier beyond the nppouned daydunngcach Acc.oun1i.ng) car 

( c) the amount rof mrercst duc and fY.1~:!.hlc: for the period of dc:f:t~ in in:ik1ng p:t~ mcnr (whicb 
has been pcid but beyond the appointed dey during the ~c-.tr) bur wirhour adding the 
int<:r<."$t specified under the ~·Hero, Small and Medium Erucrpdses Development Act. 2fl()6 

(d) 1 he :lrn<>111H of 1nte~t uccmed :tr\d fen1wi.ng unp;i:i<l .u lh¢ end I Ji e.lch :1~c,11,1.ntingye:11• 
(e) the amount of further inrcresr rem:liniJlA due end peyable eveo in rhc succee;dinJ.t yea~ 

until such date when the inrcrcsr dues above are actually paid 1r:. rhcsmall cntcepnse, fer the 
putp<•~c •Jr disallowance of~ dcducdble expcodnnre under secdcn 2J .1r the Micro.Small 
<And Medium l·:nt\!rprl~ Oe\¢-I• 1pnle11l J\<:t, 200(> 

As at Match 31, 2024 As•• ~fatch 31,2023 Particulars 
(•) DETAILS 0FOUES'r0MICROENT£RPRISESANOSMALLEN'l'ERPRISES 

Outstanding for follo\\·ing periods 31-03-2024 0ut$fanding for (oUo,•t'ing periods 31--03-2023 
Particulars from due date of payment Particulars from due date of payment 

Less than L·2 yrs, Z,.j }·r~. 1\•lorc than 3 TotaJ Less than 1·2 yrs. 2·3 )"· 
!\'I.ore than 3 Tt)t.al t yr. vrs. 1 ~T. \TS. 

'i) J\tSi\lE . 'i) MS~IE . . 

(ii) Others 326.05 19.35 5.70 12.15 363.25 (ii} Others 314.22 ~.54 S.7(1 12.17 340.63 
(ii~ Disputed - . - - . (U~ Disputed - . . - . 
dues· ~lS~lE dues- MSME 
(iv) Disputed - - - - . (iv} Disputed - . . - 
dues Ochers does- Others 
To1•I 32().05 19~35 5.70 12.15 363.25 TowJ 314.22 8.54 5.70 12.17 .\40.63 

Note 20 • Trade payables 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
No1e 19 ·Lease Liabilities (Amounts ai:e in L1khs unless siated otherwise) 
Lease JJabilicy 3.26 3.27 
Total 3.26 3.27 
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I 00.00 ?,871.63 100.00 10,1?6.22 

9().47 
?.SJ 

8,930.63 
?<I l.00 

93.81 
6.19 

9564.71 
63151 

Raw Materials 
Q) Jmportcd 
(ii) Indigenous 

As ac March 31, 2024 Percentage As at March31, 2023 Percentage Particulars 

(b) Value of imported raw 01at<·rials consumed and the value of :lU indigcn. •us raw materials similarly consumed and 
the pccccmagc of each {(> the toral consumption. 

'l"otal 
(a) Raw i\la.1erials Consumed Comprise : 
Boron Ores 
Sulphuric Add 
Borax Penta h)'dr:uc 
Others 

Less: Closing Stock 

Opening Srock 
Add: Purchases 
Boron Ores 
Sulphuric Acid 
l"\ora.x Pcneahydrate 
Others 

Parcicul:t~ 

Total 
Note 26 - Cost of materials consumed 

Dividend i1)001ne from invcsunems 
lneercsr received 
Intcresr received on Debenture 
(3~in/(L.o~$) on Sale of Investments 
Ner gain on foreign currency rransacucns and translation 
Profit on Sale of Assets 
i\lisc. lncomc 
Rent & P::icilit)' Charges 
Sundry Balances w/back 

Particulars 

Nore 25 - Other income 

Sale of products comprises : 
Manufactured goods 
Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 
Traded g«.>od$ 
Chemicals & Others 

As at ?\if arch 31, 2024 As at l\1a.rch 31,2023 

19.121.81 21,496.93 
8.49 

19,130.30 21,496,93 

19,12'1.81 21,496.93 

S.49 
19,130.30 21,496.93 

JU at March Jl. 2024 Ai;, at March 31,2023 

0.55 0.46 
531.01 198.35 

0.17 0.11 
t)().74 !06.74 

128.30 73.50 
22.65 

0.70 0,02 
348.65 274.15 

1.27 .l.25 

1101.39 679.23 

A .. s at !\of arch 3'1, 2024 As at March 31,202$ 

5,561.36 5,291.08 

6,066.85 9,212.44 
519.29 ~67.22 
23.89 
9 J.02 G2.25 

Ji,262.41 15,432.99 
2,0(>6.19 5,561.36 

10,196.22 9,871.63 

9,564.71 8,930.63 
522.55 874.13 

18.76 (1.50 
90.20 66.37 

10,196.22 9 871.63 

Operating I ncome : 
Manufactured goods 
Traded goods 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 24 .. Revenue &om operations (r\1noun.ts :u:e i1l Lakhs uoless stated uther\vise) 
Particulars 
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(a) As per Accounting Standard 15 "Emptoycc bcneflrs", the dlsclosuresas deflned in the Accounting Standard are given below: 
Deftned Contrtbutton Plan: 

Contribution to Provident Fund is Rs. ·19.67 Lakhs/- (Previous Year !(s.17.l 7 Lakhs}, ~SIC and Labour Welfare Fund Includes Rs. 
3.70 L.1khs·(PreviousYe.1rHs.3.70 Lakhs]. 

Denned Benefit Plan : 
Gt(lt1,1ity and Leave Encasement: 

The Company makes partly annual contribution to the Employees' Group Gratuity-com-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India. a funded benefit plan fur qualifying employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to 
vested employees at retirement. death while memploymeur or on termination of employment of an amounr equivalent to 15 days 
service for each completed year of service or part thereof depending on the date of joining. The benefit vests after five years of 
continuous service. 

1,355.31 l,188.71 Total 

1,278.69 
:l.70 

47.17 
15.12 
1(>.63 

1.118.70 
3.70 

49.67 
6.26 

1 ll.38 

Salaries, \X':iges, Bones & Ex-graria 
Contribution ro 1;:.s.1.r.. 
Concdbutiou 10 Provident Fund 
Provision I Contribution to Group Graruiry and lJC 
\Xfn(kn,c:n & Staff \'V'clfarc expenses 

As at March 31,202.3 As at March 311 2024 Particulars 
Note 28 - Employee benefit expenses 

S7.66 29.64 
5-0.42 36.19 

108.08 65.83 

14.48 57.GG 
S0.61 50.42 
65.09 108.08 
42.99 (42.25) 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Finished goods 
\X1ork-lo-pi:ogrc!'s 

Inventories at the end of the year 
Finished goods 
\X.'ock -in .. progress 

• .\.s at March 31. 2024 A.,,_ at March 31,202.~ Particulars 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 27 - (lnc.rca~c)/Oce-rcasc in inventories (r\1nounts are i.n L~1khs unless stated uther\\~Se) 
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The csri mates of future salary iocresses , considered in scruarial valuation , rake account of inflation, seniority ~ promotion, and other 
relevanr factors, such as supply and demand in the employment marker, 

Indian Assured Lives l\fon;dit)' (2012· 14) Ultimate 

7.SS~. 
.iOO"/o> 
7.0IY4 

7.23°1 .. 
5.000·;, 
7.0\J'/t 

7.55(1/., 
5.(l(Jl;/u 
7.()()0/" 

7.23'11., 

S.OO'i'11 
7 ,()OA'A1 

Disccum Rate 
Employee Turnover 
Sabi)' Csc3.larion 
~kntalil\' 

Leave Eucasbment Non Funded 
As ar Mareh 31, A'15 at March 31. 

2024 2023 

Gratuity Funded Non Funded 
As at March 31, A5 a( March 31, 

2024 202.~ 

23.81 23.7.8 

23.81 23.78 

35.$0 

35.~0 173.2' 155.29 
146.54 139.(d 

2(>.6!) 15.('8 

15.14 14.12 

I l.U3 I0.53 
(l~.91) (9.53) 

6.2.G 15.12 

:\.57 (U.81) 
4.62 (S.07) 
2.<.1 2.17 

12.80 13.71 

The Aro<Junt$ to be recognieed in the balance sheet and statements of 
profit and loss 
Peeseru vnlue o(oblil'}\ti(•Ot: '.I•. '.11 the end ..-.()¢:\r 
r~;tir value cf pJ:ut assets as at the end f>f the yc:tr 
Funded status 
Net :a$$Ct/(li:\hili1y) t<..'C(1gn1:1.ccl 10 balance sheet 

Expenses ror the year 
Current service cost 
Pric •t service (;f1't11 

lnrcrcst cost on bcncfn obhgadoo 
Expected return en plan assets 
Net actu:wi:tJ (1!:1jo)/lnss te«igilillcd in t1).~ re.'n 
'Feral Expenses Recognised in the Profic and Loss Account 

Remeasurement effects recognized in other Comprehenetve Income 
Acnuial (wllu)/~-s dee to Demographic Assumpuon chenges tu OB<) 
A(tun;J (g;lin)/L"•&~ dee 1.<1 F"manci:t.l Assun1puon c;hangci: in DO() 
Actuarial (Ga.in)/Losscs due to Experience on 000 
Rtu1rn ol'\ Plal'l /\$¢1S ((;(e:iter)/ Less thlo Discoum rate 
Net acruanal (~:tin)/loss recognised in che )elf" 

·r~Jt:LI Actu:ui:iJ (s:tjn)/los~ included in OCI 

Nil Nil 

1:t22 
/U.2l) 

tlJ . .)9 
/1959) 

13.22 
(13.22) 

l9.59 
{19.5!)) 

35.SO 39.99 
(l~.22) 

Cnneru service cost 15.14 14.12 
Pri<ir sc:n·lct OO~t 
tnreresr cost 1 un t0.53 
Actuarial (g;Un) I less 10.2.<l (5.88) 
l\etl~li1:.1):1id (IS.4'j (S.2l!l 
Present Value of obbgation :11' :tt end of the )·car 173.23 155..~) 
Change in Plan as~cui 
Pl:in assets ~t pcded begiJ,11.iJ:ijt, :tt fair value 1>9.61 IJ4,79 
Expccrcd rerum on pfa.n assets 10.341 9.99 
Actuarial (iglin) / loss (2.62) (2.17) 
C(•00'1l>u1k1n 1A?i '-28 
Benefits paid {$.3S) {l\.28) 
Fail value ()f Plan assets at end<••· she rear 1•16,54 1.39.61 
Fair V aluc l)f Pttn Msets 
Fan V!t.luc of plan assets ar b~inn1ng: of }'C;tr 139.(>l 134.7•) 
Actual reeum rsn phu assets 7.86 7.82 
<:<101ributi<>O$ 7.4;\ 5.2ll 
Benefits paid (l!.>8) (S.28) 
F:ijx V:du.c (.1( pl.to ;1S~'--1S l\l lh..: .,:11d ,,f re.' l<l(o,511 13lJ.(d 
Funded srarus 
Excess 1Jf Actual over estimated return Nil Nil 

25.2.1 
2;.81 

Rcconclnatlcn of opening and closing balances of the present value o( the defined bcnct'it Obligation: 
Psesem \l:duC' ()( olili~:11ion :1$ :u h'*in(lil)g of ye:ll' I :;S.29 144.$0 

Leave Bncashmem Non Funded 
A$ {U ~fflteh 31, As at ~1.-rch 31, 

20:14 2023 

Gr.Huhy Funded Non Funded 
A.s {U f.f.irch 3'1, A.ti :at ,,.f<tteh 31, 

20:14 2023 
Assumpnous 
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491.57 539.23 
:.) I mporred 
b) Indigenous 

As at March 31. 2024 As at March 31.202.' Particulars 

Consumable Stores & Spares and Packing : 

"148.83 Tota] 

148.8.l Profit ou sale of Office Premises 

As at March 31, 2024 As "' March 31,20"..l Particulars 

Note 31- Exceptional Item 

Total 

Legal and Professional charges 
lhnk Charges 
Goods & Service 'fax 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 
General Expc:ns~ 

Stores, Spares and Packing 
Power & fuel 
Repairs & Maincenance (Building) 
J\lachiJ1ery & Electrical Repairs 
\X'a<er (:h:t(!~ 
Factory Ex.p<:11SC!' 

Insurance Charges 
Repairs-Others 
Rent and Other Charges 
Rates & Taxes 
Discount 
Donation 
Freight, Coolie & Cartage 
Cc>n1111i$.sicJ11 and Brok~r.ig~ 
Corporate $odal Rc~pt.insibitity Coorcibctlon 
Travelling and conveyance 
Telephone charges 
Pri1lt.ing & Stationery 
Directors Sitting Pees 
Vehicle Expenses 
Auditors' Remuneration 

.•\!'< at ~fatch 31, 2024 A..;, at March 31,202$ 

490.57 539.23 
838.07 1,028.89 
20.96 2.82 

107.29 254.60 
18.08 17.49 

4(14.51 492.24 
ll .Q"I 9.25 
7.43 17.35 

83.92 94.78 
2.l\4 2.76 

0.17 
2.91 1.41 

41.(>() 40.23 
839.0(> 956.23 
110.W 79.00 
83.(>7 67.83 
4.14 4.09 
3.01 2.57 
UlO J.80 

19.39 18.91 

9.IXJ 8.50 
222.99 354.11 

2.17 4.12 
0.82 3.98 

W.50 9~.88 
23.31 19.83 

3,427.05 4,121.07 

Particulars 

Note 30 .. Other expenses 

0.60 9.23 Total 

Q05 Ql3 
0.55 9.10 

Interest on \'(forking Capual 
Other Interest 

As at March 31, 2024 As at Marcil 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 29 • Net finance costs (Amounts are in Lakhs unless Stilted otherwise) 
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As Auditors 
Tax ~-\udiL 
Orber Services 
Total 

Particulars 

1. Foreign Travels 
2. Others 
Note 36 - Remuneration to Auditors: 

Particulars- 

Raw i\1:itcrials 
Note 35 - Expenditure In Foreign Currency: 

Particulars 

Profit ::iftc-i: 'fax, 
No. of shares ourseanding 
\Xleighced Average No. of shares+ potential shares o/s 
Ean1ing per share (Basic) Face Value per share Rs. I 
f.1miJ)g per share (Diluted) Face Value per share R~. 
N61e 34 - Value Of Imports On C.I.F. Basis: 

-29.93 -43.16 
43.l\3 40.73 
8.00 18.31 

.'19.~3 7.42 
"1357.33 1748.47 

As at March 31, 2024 ).,; at March 31,2023 

3 .• 841.24 5,1)39.38 
32090000 32090000 
32090000 32090000 

11.97 15. 70 
11.97 15.70 

As at March 3'1, 2024 As at Match 31,2023 

8,230.1)5 8,6(:>7.59 

As at March 31, 2024 A.ii at March 31,202.~ 

9.78 19.0i 
().45 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

4.50 4.5(1 
1.50 I.SU 
3.C~) 2.50 
Y.m 8.SIJ 

Particulars 

6854.61 
25.17% 
1725.17 

5147.79 
25.17% 
1295.60 

Profh before taxes 
Indian starurory income tax rate 
Expected income tlX expenses 
Tex cffecr (1f adjustments to reconcile expected income tax experlse tO reported 
income rax expense 
income exempt from tax 
Expenses Disallowed 
Interest on lncorne Tax 
Others (net} 
Total Income tax expenses 
Note 33 - Earning Per Share: 

As '" Match 31,20?..3 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars. 

srarement of profit & loss is :is follows 

Income tax expense 
The reconciliation of esumared income HlX expenses at Indian statutory income tax rote co income tax expenses reported in the 

Toto! deferred tax cxpcnsc/(bcocfit) 

Total current tax expense 
Oefi:md fax 
Decrcase/fincrcasc) in deferred tax assets 
(Dccrcascj/incrcasc in deferred tax liabilities 

l,:157.40 1,748.S(J 
37.52 

1,357.40 1,786.02 

(50 8"' 29.21 ~ • ::t) 

(50.85) 29.21 

1306.55 1,815.23 

Current tax 
Current lax on profits for the year 
Adiusrmenrs for current rax of prior pel'ie>ds 

A• at March 3'1, 2024 N. at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 32 - Taxation (Amounts are in Lakhs unless Stilted otherwise) 
-Jncomc tax ex ensc 
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Sr. Subsjdiary Key Manageroenr Relatives of Key 
No. Particulars Company Personnel Managerial Person 

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

I I ndoborax I nfrastrucutre Private Ltd - - - - - - 

2 Payments to & provision for Directors' 
remuneration 

Mr, Govind Parmar 18.11 17.26 
Mr. Saia! Jain 531.23 701.93 

3 Rent Received from KMP - - 
Mr SajalJ>in-Rent Received 57.60 52.49 

3 Salary to Relative 
Mr. Saumy• Jain 64.71 64.21 

4 Directors Sitting Fees 
Mr. Arnn Sureka, Independent Director 0.45 0.4il 
Mr. NJ(. Mitml, lndependenr Director 0.45 0.48 
Mr. Sachin Gupta, Independent Director 0.51 0.54 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Non-Execurive Director 0.30 0.30 
Mr. Y atin Shah, Independent Director 0.03 - 
Mr. Yogesh Paril, Independent Director 0.(16 - 

(Amounts are iu Lakhs unless Stated otherwise) 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Details of transactions between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below: 
Note 37 -Details of Related parties transactions arc as under: 
a) List of relmed parties and relationship where comrol exists or wuh whom transactions were entered into: 
Subsidiary 
lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited 

Key M~nagen1enr Personnel 

Mr, Sajal Jain, ?lfanaging Director & Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director 
Ml'. Arun Soreka, lndependenr Director ( upto 31/03/2024) 
Mr. N.K. Minal, Independent Director (upio 31/03/2024) 
Mr. Sachin Gupta, Independent Director 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Yarin Shah, lndependcnr Director ( w.e.f. 13/02/2024) 
Mr. Yogesh Patil, Independent Director ( w.c.f.13/02/2024) 

Relative of Key Management Personnel 
~k Saumya Jain, Chief Executive 

b) Transactions during the year with related parties: 
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(ii) Valuation process and rccbnlque used to dcrcrmtnc fair value 
Speciflc valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 
The use of quoted market prices for investments in shares and mutual funds. 

As at 31 March 2024 Le"el 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets 
lnvesunents a1 fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares 58.66 . 1,040.93 1,099.59 
Mutual foods 4,239.86 . - 4,239.86 
Other 0.3() . 0.30 
Total financial assets 4,298.82 . 1,040.93 5,339.75 
As at 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial assets 
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares 344.6(1 - ., ,040.93 1,385.53 
Mutual funds 552.76 . - 552.76 
Other 0.31 . 0.31 
Total financial assets 897.67 . 1,040.93 1,938.60 

i) Fair values hierarchy 
Plnanctal assets and flnanclal liabilities measured a~ fair value in tht! statement of financial pusitlon are grouped Into thl"\?e 
levels or a fair value hjcrarchy The three levels are defined based on the observablllty of slgofjlcant lnputs to the 
measurement.as fotlows: 

level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted] inactive markets for1dentjcal assets or liabilities; 
Level 2 : The fair value offinanclal Instruments that are not traded in an active market ls determined usmg valuanon techniques which 

maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estlmates. 
Level 3 : inputs [or the asset er liabllity that are not based on observable market data ( unobservable inputs). 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

Note 38 · Financial instruments 

Sr. Subsidiary Key Management Relatives of Key 
Particulars Company Persohnel ManagcriaJ Person 

No. 
2023-24 2022-23 202J-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

I Outstanding Payables 
Mr. Govind Parmar 1.38 I.SO 
Mr. Ssial Jain 3i9.73 552.4S 
Mr. Saumy:1 Jain 2.87 3.00 

2 Outstanding Receivables 
$ajal Jain 4.80 4.80 . . 

c) Amount outstanding at the year end 
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(Ii) The ClHTIJ)ilUY does n<)l have any Benatlll property, where any proceeding has been tntuated or pending against the Company 
for any Benami property. 

(Uii) The Company does notbaveany transaction with companies struck off. 

(iv) The Companydoes nothaveanycharges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered wi th ROC beyond the statutory period, 

( v] The Company has not traded Or tnvested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

(vi) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority 

(vii) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
[lntermediarles] with the understanding that the tntermedlaryshall: 

(a) direcdy or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannerwhatsoever by or on behalf of 
thecompany(Ul\.Jmal•Benenciaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultintate Beneficiaries 
(viii) The Company has not received any fund from any personfs) or entity(ies), including foreign entitles (Funding Party) with 

the understanding ( whether recorded in wntmg orotherwlse] that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indlrectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding rarty(Ulcimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) prcvldeanyguarantee.securttyor the like on behalf of the Ultin1ate Beneflclartes, 

(ix) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as Income during the year in theta .. x assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as.search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions of the lncome 'fax Act, 1961 ). 

i\lTU)\IOt 

Name 1\};rcgoce utilised Amount Amount as 
of the working dunng Quarter ended disclosed :\S per books Difference Reasons 
B<lnk capital limit the per quarterly Of accoum 

sanctioned qlLarrer statement 

Primarily (ectai11 

1035.00 30-06-2023 S,387.85 4,929.92 457.93 
expenses tomung 

Koeak 
part of finish goods 

1035.00 - 30-0<J-2023 3,867.71 3,879.08 (11.37) and semi-finished 
Mahind goods were nor 
r:1 Bank 1035.00 - Jl-12-2023 3,136.87 3,14(1.6j (9.78) 

Led 
included in rbc 

1035.(1(1 - 31-03-2024 2,172.19 2,183.94 (11.75) quarterly statements 
& reversal of some 

expenses. 

i) The company has filed quarterly return or statements with the bank in lieu of the sanctioned .. vorking capital facilities. which 
are in agreement with the books of accounts other than those as set out below, 

(Amounts are In lakbs unless stated otherwise) 

Note 39 - Other Information 
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The Company's rtsk management is carried out by a central treasury department of the Company under policies approved 
by the Boa I'd ofOlrccrors. The Board of OJ rectors provide written principles for overall rtsk management, as well as policies 
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk. market risk, credit risk and Investment of excess 
liquidity. 

A) Credit Risk: 
Credit risk Is the risk that a customer or counter parry to a fi11ancla1 lnstrumenr wtll fall to perform or pay amounts due to the 
Company causing financiaJ Joss. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions. 
security deposits, loans-given and principally from credit exposures to cusromers relating to outstanding receivables. The 
Com pants maxtmum exposure to credit risk is Jim ired to rhecarrylng amounrof flnancinl assets recognised at reporting date. 

Peruonc dfversmcaocn Sensitivity analysis rnvesuaems in cqult)'. Mutual fund Markel risk · securuy pnce 

'l'hc ulexlle llnd other raw 
l'l\31Ul31 IS purdillSC llt 1he 
p1-c,·al11ng 1)rke from su1)pliel'$. 

Mark.et risk · utexne. Lithium & 
Qthe.1· raw nltlteria.l pekes 

M.i.x of borrowings taken at 
fixed and floating rates 

Mate1•1a1 bough1 on reeerpe of 
documents. If 1naterfal bough£ 
on ereen same are hedged. 

Cash ftow forecasnng 
sensltl\l\ty aualysts 

RecogntseJ flnandal assets .:ind 11:.billfies nor 
dencmtaated In Indtan rupee (Rs..) 

Market f'lsk · foreign 
escbauge 

Ava.Oahlllty of eemmmed 
credit Illies and borrowmg raenmes 

Holling cash Row 
forecasts 

Borrowing'° and other liabi)iti'l.'S 

Bank deposits, dtversiftcadon 
of asset base, credn lhnlt.'> 
and collateral. 

Aging analysJs 
(:;1,~h ;anJ cash e4uiv:il~nts, trade N!a!ivahtes,deri\•;:oivi: 
Onar1d::il in$tn1mC!lf$,fir\:IJttl~•' assets itlc:iS't1fi:d al 
amortised cost 

Manage1nent Measurenh~nt E.li!posure arising teem Risk 

a) The carrying value of trade receivables, securities deposits. insurance claim receivable, loans given, cash and bank balances 
and other financial assets recorded at amorttsed cost, is considered to be a reasonable approximatton of fail· value. 
The carrying value of'burruwtngs, trade parables and ether nuanctal liabilities recorded al amortised cost is i.:onsldered t<t 
be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

ii) risk management 
The Company's activities expose It to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which 
tlleentity is exposed to and hO\V theeulilyrnanogesthe risk and the related impact in the Ilnancia! statements: 

1\$ at March Jl 2024 As at March .31 2023 
Particulars 

FVTOC! Amonised Cost FVTOCI Amortised Cosi 

Financial assets : 
Invcsemenes 
mutual funds Shares and Bend 5,33<).75 . l,9.lK60 . 
Loans 
to others . 76.09 . 60.7<1 
to other bOOr corporates . 509.(1-1 . 509.04 
Trade receivables . 1)6U.7!1 . l,279.12 
$e;c;uriry deposirs . 59.94 . -15.97 
Cash and cash eqcsvalenes . J0,89651 . 7,496.')7 
Unclaimed dividend accouru . 25.85 . 24 . .3(1 

To1::d 5.339.75 12.928.22 1.938.60 9.416.20 

Financial Liabilities 
Bo rrowings . . . . 
Trade paynbles :l<>;l.2S . ;\•10.6;\ 
Other financial liabilities . 958.58 . 1,12.189 

To1aJ . 1,321.8.l - 1,464.52 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 40 -Ptnancial Risk l\1anagentcnt: (r\1nounts are in Lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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B) ~iquidity risk: 
Prudent liquidity risk management Implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amounr of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the 
business, the Company maintains flexjbiJity in funding by matntalntng avatlablltty under committed facilities .. 
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of 
expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the 
Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flO\'IS in maier currenclcs and considering the level of liquid 
assets neccssa .. y to meer these, monltortng balance sheet liquidity ratios against Internal and external regulatory 
requirements and malntatnlng debt financing plans. 
Financing arrangements 
The Company had obtained credit f'aclllty of Rs. 1035 takhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, however the same has not been 
uttlllzed. 
Courraceuat marurlrlcs off1nancial lltibllfdcs 
The tables below analyse the Company's flnaocial llabllltics 1nto relevant maturity groupings based on their contracrual 
maturities for all non-dertvattve flnanclal ll;:ibilit1es. The arnount.'5 disclosed in the table are the contractual undrsconoted 
cash. flows. Balances due withlu 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not signiricaot. 
Refer Note No. 20 Iorthe Trade payables bifurcation. 

CJ Market risk. forelgu exchange 
The! Company Is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to US 
Oollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from r~cognisecl assets and liabilities denomtnated In o currency th"1 Is not the 
Company's functional currency. The Company, as per its overall strategy imports raw materials on the basis of market 
demand. 'The Company does not use forward contracts and swaps for speculative purposes. 
Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or loss from changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from flnanclal instruments denominated in 
USD. In case of a reasonably possible change in tNl{/USO exchange rates of+/- 2% (previous year •/·2%) at the reporting 
date. keeping all other variables constant, there would havebeenau impact on profits oflNR l43.S6 Lakhs (previous year LNR 
267.77 takhs], 

·1 279.12 1360.79 

1,112.27 
160.$9 

2.33 
1.89 
1.73 

1,243.81 
29.76 
75.45 
10.73 
J.04 

No1 due 
(~30 cloys P"" due 
31-60 days post due 
61-90 days post due 
More than 
"rounded off to nil 

As at Match 31,20"..3 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars. 

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparnes, identified either individually or by the 
Con1pany. and Incorporates lhls tnformatton Into Its credit rtsk controls. where avallable at reasonable cosr, external credit 
ratings and/or reports on customers and other counrerparties arc obtained and used. The Company's policy is to deal only 
with credtrworthycounterparties. 
In respect of trade and ether receivables, the Company I~ not exposed to any signlncanL credit risk exposure ro any single 
counterparry or any company of countcrpartlcs having slmilar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of 
customers in various parts of India. The Company has very limited history of customer default, and considers the credit 
quality of trade receivables that ore not past due or impaired to be good. 
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bank deposits, loans and derivative financial mstrumcnts is 
considered negligible, since the counterpartiesare reputable organisations with high quality external credit ratings. 
Compuuy provides for expected credit tosses on flnanclal assets by assesstng lndivtdual flnancla! Instruments for expectatlon 
of any crcdir losses, Since rne assets have very IC>w credit risk. and are forvarled natures and purpose. there Is 110 trend that the 
company can draws to apply consistently to entire population. For such financial as-sets, the Company's policy is to provides 
for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for hfenme expected credit losses upon significant 
increase in credu risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets 
considering their IO\.V crcdlr risk nature. though Incurred Joss provisions are disclosed under each sub-category of such 
financial assets. 
Derall of trade receivables that are past due is given below : 
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.120.90 (ii) ()1vldet1d_s l'lOt recogntsed at 1he end <>f the 1•ep<wt1ng ~1100 

320.90 (I) Fi.nal dividend for the year 

Dividends 
Equitv shares 

The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of an increase in price of the mstrument by 5% keeping all other variables constant 
would have resulted in on impact on profits by INR 429.88 Lakhs (previous year INR 89. 77 Lakhs]. 

Exposure from trade payables. 
Company generally import on adavance payment or on payment at the rime of receipr documents, Jf there is any 
transaction oftmports on credit basis. then such trnsaction is hedged. 

Note41 ~ Capttal Managcment : 
The Company' s capital management obiecnves are: to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. to 
provide an adequate return to shareholders. The company rnonnors capital <in the basis of the carrying amount of equity 
less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face ofbalance sheet. 
The ~ianage1nent assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall Itnancutg 
structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company's various 
classes of debt. The Cornpany manages the capital structure and makes adlustrnents to it in the light of changes in the 
ecenomtcccndtnons and the risk characrertsttcsofthe underlying assets. 
The cornpanymonitors the capital on the basis offollowing rattos: 

s~n~itivily 

f.) Price risk 
Exposure front lnvesrments in mutual funds: 

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments in mutual funds held by the Company and classified in the 
balance sheet as fair value through other comprehensive income. To manage Its price risk arising from tnvesrments ht 
mutual funds, the Company invest only in liquid Funds. 

The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of a reasonably posslblc change in Interest rates of+/· 50 basis point~ [previous 
year:+/· 50 basis points), keeping all othervariables constant, would have resulted in an impact on profits by INH 0.0002 
Lakhs (Previous year INR 0.0021.akhs) 

ii) Assets 
The Company's financial assets are carried at amortised cost and are at fixed rate onty. They are, therefore. not subject to 
lnterest rate risk since nelthur the carrying amouut nor the furure cash tlo"'S"'lll Iluctuare because of a change it\ market 
interest rates. 

'rotat uorrowtngs 
Sensitivity 

Fixed rote bc;rro~·lng 

Variable rate borrowing 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

(Aroouuts art tn lakhs unless Staled otherwise) Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk: 

DJ lnterestraterlsk 
i) Liabilities 

The Company's polley Is to mJoJmlse lnterestrate cash flcwrtskexposures on long-term llnanclng. At31March2023. the 
Company ls exposed to changes In market Interest rates through bank borrowings at variable Interest rates. 
Interest rate risk exposure 
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45 lurer Corporate Deposit consist of a sum of R~. 509.04 Lakhs given ro M/s. Radius Estates Projects Private t.tmtrcd (formerly 
known as Vishwaroop Realtors Private Limited. The said company is in tne process of corporate insolvc.oc:y rcsutution process 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code. 2016 (IBC). The conlpany has filed its clai1n as financial creditors as per the regulation 
8 of the I BC code for the said outstanding an1ount. The con1p.any is a\1r'aiting the outcon1e rron1 National Con1pany La\\1 Tribunal 
(NCLT). Due to uncertainty in reaJization of the said debt and pending a decision of NCLT the cou1pany continued not to provide 
interest on the said Joan during the financial year. 

44 The amount reflected in capital work in progress represents advance given for Unit/ flat No. 1601 and 1602 for project named 
Avenue S4atS. V. Road.Santacruz {West) Mumbai -400 054, the said project is likely to be completed by December, 2022 as per the 
terms of the booking. However the Builder has unilaterally altered the date or possession to 30th December, 2024. without 
Informing the company as well as to other allouees, In spite of repeated remloders for registratlon of sale agreement, the same has 
not been executed by the Builder till dat~, In vlew ofLhls the company has rued cnmplalnt under MAflA RERA against the Builder~ 
The ~1AllA RURA has gtven the verdict on 29tll Fcbrua1y. 2024 lo favour-ofthc cornpar1y& other alloeces and dlrected the Builder to 
execute & reglster the agreement for sale within two months f ro111 the date of the order. 

c) The company has created a fixed deposit of Rs. 31 Lakhs marked lien in favour of Customs towards security against 
Imported rJ\V material. 

b) Balance instalment towards work -in - progress of Rs. 2086.06 Lakhs, payable on the basis of various stages of completion 
of project over the period of five years, 

a) ln J 992, STC of Indio Ltd hod claimed for Rs. 9.02 Lakhs towards price difference & others, against this, Honourable 
Bombay High Court ordered Company to give bankguarantec of'Rs, !.65Lakhs [Previous year Rs. l.65 Lakhs] 

+3 CommltmentaodContingcntLlabilty: 

Summary of Significant Accouming Policies and Other Explanatory Information foe the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 42 -Disctosure with respc·ct to Ratio: 

R:uJ() Nuuu~_r:nv.r Ocn(11ninau)r CuttCiU Pte\'iuu~ % Vit1ri!\nce 
Rca!'uns 

Period Period (or V111ri~nC'.e 

Increase '11.11'1 pnmaril}• .:in •.:cowi.l l)i ioctt"J~ tn 

(a) Curren1 Rufo Cum:nt t\:1s.t:11i Cur«:nt IJ:iliilit) l:?.47 8.1)(, 39.21% curre nt assee (nnittly increase ID Currc:ot 
lrwt!-U11,...JU$ Ci.sh and Bai.lk b:ihncc »nd ml11ctinn 
111 0.1.tn"t» Uabi.fojC"$) 

(b) l)cb< Eqwc~ R:itic- 6(1(f(o\\'ifl_gf + ·rl)(aJ bqubr 
l!Uc:l\"Sl Aecrccd 

Nd Prulit after 'Iax Otbl Service = liuc!c!-1 ( c ) Debt :XrvKt ~0cpl't('i3noo+ &, Lease p:1rl!1cntS 6,78J62 56-'.IJ I U)l,.4<yy,.. Decease was pcim:uill on 1ccc•unt CJ( reduccon t0 
Co,•CTa~'(': R..ui11 lm.«cs1+5oss on sak t-P1indp!il Jli.ixi.\n)e1U~ pr-)fiL<, and increase in tiruun cow 

( >f Pixed .>\llte.$ 

(d) Rcrum eon Equu~ Net Pn1tlt afrcrTax A vcrage Sh:trrlloldcr' ii Z.l.94 JI .41 2-~ 7S•; .. Decrease WlU pri.m:uily un acocum uf 
R11.1ki f'..qutt.y lkctcal't'. l1l ptolit :i((n t.u: 

(.:) h,\~tnttlf)' (.i,~t ,,f Coods ;\' car.lgC Jn\•cntOJ) lncreasc was pnnuri~· (11l ice:oortt of locrt":lse 1n (l)pcnulg Jnw:mor~· + Z.6i 1.$2 4(>,')()'tt. 
IUM0\'(1 talio soot"' S:tlcs (:ln~ing h\H'lllHl}') /l C•\$1 1)( Raw ~b1c1ials 

Ct) ~rrM.k RccC'J\llblc::i Ne1 C1cJ11 Sak'1 .;\,·cr;agc ;\ct11unrs. l4A9 18.8(· ·2.l.t.>·~~. RdC1'No1c T urnm:cr ratio Receivables 

~Tl'J.dr.- l'ay:tbks Ne1 Ocdn P11rchascs ,\v"r.igc Tr.i...k IR:.45 24.$1 .25..(><l'Y.1 lkct<·ibc v.-..i..~ priiutri.l>· t•1l accocm uf DcttcaM' lo 
1\1010\'J;t" P;i.t<,.blei Purhc:ise 

Q') '\let C;iptul NetS1dcs \'\'.lt,&.ing Coipi1aJ 1.09 1.5.1 ~zsu9•y., Decrease was 1>rin1tril\' oo account uf 
WMO\'Ct rndo increase in lli'(lrldng (:lp1ul 

(i) Net Pr(lfit Rirx:· Ne1 Ptofi1 Net S:ilei< 0.20 0.23 ·l4.J).o/., RcJcr N<»c 

(i) l~f'1urn (on Cnp;nl !f..arning befcre UpiuJ En'lplored 0.18 U.26 -'.\>.23"1 ... R..-forN01e Employed il\h?!'t'M iU\d llll'.i'S 

(k} Ro..'llllfl en in\''-'tlttncnr Ncr Rerun'! afu:r 'l':u: (1l\'tsttne1ltll 0.13 0.20 -,\,\.()2')(1 R..-fot N<>14 
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Notes 1to48 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
As pct' attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & Co .. 
Chartered Accountants 
Flrrn Reglstradon No. 136492W 

48 The previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make in compltance with the current 
financial year. 

47 A.II assets and llabllltics have been classified as current 01· non .. current as per the Company's normal operatlng cycle and other 
crircria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Corn panics Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between rhe acqulsltion 
of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
months for the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities. 

46 Corporate Socia! Respcnslbtltty: The Company has Incurred INR 110.00 lakhs (previous year INR 79.00 takhs) towards Social 
Responslbtllty actlvtttes. It Is included in In the Statement.or Profit and Loss. Further; no amount has been spent (HI constrcctlon / 
acqulslrlon of an asset of the Company and the enrlre amount has been spent In cash. The amount required to he spenr under 
Section l35 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year 2024 is lNR J 06. L6 lakhs tc. 2% of average net profits for last three financial 
years, calculated as per Section 198 of the CoinpaniesAct,2013. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members oflNDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of!NDO 130RAX & CHEMICALS 
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31. 2024, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Aclin the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their 
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auditofthe Consolidated Financial Statements section ofour report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICl\I, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sutlicientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit matter: 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Other Information: 
The Holding Company's managementand Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of 
other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required Lo 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
Emphasis of Matter 

We draw your kind attention to the Note No. 46 to the consolidated financial statement; The Group has 
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given Inter Corporate Deposit in the nature of Joan to one of the party, which has filed the application for 
corporate insolvency resolution process under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016. 

The Group has filed tts claim as financial creditors as per the regulation 8 of the IBC code for the said 
outstanding amount. The Group is awaiting the outcome from National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). Due to 
uncertainty in realization of the said debt and pending decision of NCLT Group continues not to provide 
interest on the said loan for the financial year ended 31·03·2024. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

The Molding Company's Board ofDirectors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled entitles in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly 
controlled entities arc responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparationofthe consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company.as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and 
jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its 
associates and jointly controlled entities. 
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
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professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override ofintcrnal control. 

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has in place an 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

{iii) Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management 

{iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ahility of die Group to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

{vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We arc responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of 
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of 
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we arc the independent 
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify du ring our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
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that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. In accordance with the requirements of SA 701, the auditor describes these matters in 
the auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when. in 
extremely rare circumstances, the auditor determines that a matter should not be communicated in the 
auditor's report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 
a] We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets 

of Rs. 1122.08 lakh as at 31st March, 2024, total revenues of Rs. 76.10 lakh and net cash flows 
amounting to l{s. 75.53 lakh for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit/loss 
after tax of Rs. 56.52 lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2024, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements, in respect ofabove mention associates, whose financial statements have not been 
audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and ourreport 
in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/ financial information 
certified by the Management 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO 2020"). issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a 
statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of CARO 2020. 

2. As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that : 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss, and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly 
controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our· information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group. its associates and jointly controlled 
entities- Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. 

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements.as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, ifany, on long­ 
term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and it-~ subsidiary 
company, incorporated in India. 

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate 
companies which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that. to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and 
associate companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate companies 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate 
companies which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
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l'RN No. 136492W 

Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 240398038KCLRU1364 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 25" May, 2024 

For Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

subsidiaries, and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds [which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company 01· any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or· 
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Companyorany of such subsidiaries 
and associate companies shall. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors 
of the subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or 
other auditor's notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub· 
clause (i) and (ii] ofRule ll(e) contain any material misstatement 

v) The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies. associate companies and jointly controlled entities incorporated in Indra. is 
in compliance with Section 123 of the Act. 

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the 
respective auditors of the subsidiary company incorporated in India, whose financial 
statement have been audited under the Act, the company, have used an accounting 
software for maintaining its booksofaccountwhich has a feature ofrecordingaudittrail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further. during the course of our audit, we and 
respective auditors of the above referred subsidiary company did not come across any 
instance ofaudittrail feature being tampered with. 

3. The Group, its associate companies and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India have paid/ 
provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vofthe Act 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whetherdue to fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (thc"Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an auditofintemal financial controls, hoth issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company. its subsidiary company, which is the 
company Incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over ftnancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)".] These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timeJy preparation of 
reliable financial information,as required under the Act. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

In conjunction with our· audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and fol' the 
year ended March 31, 2024, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of lndo 
Borax & Chemicals Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary company, 
which are companies incorporated in lndia.as of that date. 

ANNEXURE 'fl TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
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For· Bohra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 136492W 
Anil Jain 
Partner 

Membership No.048991 
UDIN No.: 24039803BKCLRU1364 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 25 .. May, 2024 

Because of the inherent limitations ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or· improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or chat the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our· opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate companies which are 
companies incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal PinancialControls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

(2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactionsare recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to proVide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India. 
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Notes 1 to SO form an Integral part of these. Ilnanclal statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.136492\\' 

Total equity and liabilities 
Significant Accounting Policies 
The accompanying notes arc an fntcgr.d part of the financial statement 

20 
363.60 340.84 

21 923.29 J.006.09 
22 o.oo o.eo 
23 213.22 191.09 

124.57 222.29 
1,524.67 1,760.31 

31,126.46 27,530.55 
Total liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 
Current llabltttles 
Financial liabilities 
i. Trade payables 
Tomi outstanding dues of mkro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and smull enrerprlses 
ii. Other financial liabilities 
iii. Lease liabilities 
Employee benefit obhgatton 
Current Tax Liabitincs Net 

17 
18 
19 

'retat equity 
LIABILITIES 
Non·cul'rent liabilities 
Other Ptnanctal Ltablllnes 
Deferred Tax Ltabtlltes 
tease Liabilities 

Equity attrtbutable to owners of lndo Borax & Chem lea ls Limited 
Non-controlling interests 

IS 
16 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 

8 

Tomi non-current assets 
Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 
I. Investments 
U. Trade receivables 
Iii. Cash and cash equlvalcnts 
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 
v. Loans 
Other current assets 

s 
6 
7 

1,861.36 1,629.64 
112.52 ll8.32 

Ul.30 10.46 
7.981.43 7.981.13 

393.00 34'1.91 
573.15 566117 
60.1<) 46.22 

10,994.95 10,697.05 

2.238.3'1 5.788.4<> 

3.905.82 552.76 
l,360.79 1.279.12 

11.978.06 6.524.70 
56.64 57.15 
11.98 6.55 

577.83 623.96 
20,131.Sl 16,832.70 
31,126.46 27,530.S!i 

320.90 320.90 
29,020.08 25,184·.29 

29.340.98 25.505.19 

29,340.98 25,505.19 

135.30 117.90 
122.25 143.88 

3.?,6 3.27 
260.81 265.05 

Total current assets 
Total assets 
EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 

1 
2 
:1 
1 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, 1>lant and equlpmenr 
Capital work-In-progress 
Rlg)lt of Use Assets 
Investment in Propcrttos 
Other intangible assets 
Financial Assets 
J. lnvestmencs 
Ii. Loans 
iii, Other Financio.l Assets 

Note As at l\tarch 3·1, ZOZ4 A$ at f.tarch 31, 2023 Particulars 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Consolidated balance sheet as at Marcil 31, 2024 
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Notes 1 to SO form an Integral part of these. Ilnanclal statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
for Bohra & co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.136492\\' 

Ear11ings per share (Face Value per share Rs. 1) 
Basic 
Diluted 
S1gnific;'.lnt Accounting Policies 
'rbc at:oon1p<1t1yJ11g notes arc an tmegrat part CJf thl' llnatllial statomeru 
The above statement or1)rofit and loss should be read in ccnjuncrton with the accompanying notes. 

Tora I Ccmprebenslve Income attributable to: 
a) Owners of the Company 
b) Non C:Ontrolllng Interest 

Total ccmprebensrve Income for the period 
Net Profit attributable to: 
a) Owners of the Co1npany 
b) Nein r.ontrolling lnt.c.rest 
OtherCon1prehensive Income armbutable to: 
a) Owners of the Cotnpany 
b) Non CQnlrolling Interest 

OCI for the year 
Total other conlprehensivr. income 

2A8.lti 36.90 
(29.23) 2.41 
2S8.93 41.31 
258.93 41.31 

4 156.69 5110.71 

3.897.76 S.069.40 

3.897.76 5,069.40 

258.93 <1.31 

258.93 41.31 

4.156.69 5.110.71 

4.156.69 5.110.71 
33 

l 2.15 l5.80 
12.15 \5.60 

Jtetns cl1ac. wlll be 1 (:(.;1<1sslfted"' prQjJt. or 10$$ 
Tax relating to above 
(rj Items Tilat \Viii Not Bfl Reclassified To- Profit Or l.m-s 
b] Income Tax Qetating To ltems That Will Not Be Reclassified To Pn)fitOr Loss 

Particulars 

P-rolit for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Cousotldated statement of other comprebeustve Income for the year ended ~tard1 31, 202.4 

Profit Item cenunutng operaucus 
Total tax expense/(credit) 

1'otal expenses 

TOI.:\) Revenue 
Expenses 
Cost of raw materials and ccmpcnenes consumed 
Purchase ofTraded goods 
Changes in Inventcrtes of flntshed ~oods,. work-In-progress and traded goods 
Bmplcyee benerlt expenses 
Ftnancc ((1st 
Oep1·eclatlon Expenses 
Othetexpe11se.~ 

24 19,130.30 22.507.93 
25 1.177.49 717.50 

20.307.79 23.225.51 

26 10.19622 9,871.63 
0 

27 42.99 954.67 
28 l,lfl8.71 1,355.31 
29 o.60 9.23 
l 228.33 155.39 

30 3.427.62 4.132.90 
15.084.47 16,479.13 

S,223.32 6,746.38 
31 148.83 

5,223.32 6,895.21 

32 1.376.41 L,796.60 
32 (S0.85) 29.21 

1,325.56 1,825.81 
3,897.76 5,069.40 

3,897.76 5,069.40 

Nate A~ at 1otarcb 31, 2024 As at r.tarch 31, 2024 

Profit before exceptlo11al Items a1111 tax 
Exception.:11 items- 
Prufit before tax 
Income tax expense 
-Currcat tax 
• Deferred 1ax 

Revenue 
Revenue from operations 
Continuing operations 
Gross Sales 
Other opcratin~ income 

Note As at lofarcb 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 Particulars 

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 (A.n1ountsare in lakhs unless stated otherwtsel 
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Notes 1 to SO form an Integral part of these. Ilnanclal statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
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Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.136492\\' 

A cash flow from operating activities: 
Profit before tax 5,223.32 6,895.21 
Adjustntcnt..~ for: 
Depreciation and amortization (or the year 228.49 155.55 
(Profit)/l,oss on sale of Investment (Net] (25.12) (29.74) 
Asjustn1ent towards IND /\5 Impact 38.54 (25.Tl) 
Ass.cts wrluen off OCI 4B.79 
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (171.47) 
Actuarial (gain)/loss forrning part ofOCI (12.81) 
Dlvtdend received (0.55) (0.46) 
tnteresr lncome (607.28) (236.81) 
Finance cost 0.60 9.23 

(329.34) (299.41) 

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,893.98 6.595.80 
Adjustn1ents for: 
Irecrease/Increase In inventories 3,550.07 715.39 
Decrease/ftncrease] In non-current financial assets (23.89) 159.39 
Oecrease/(increase) in current financial assets (6.92) 2.31 
Dccrease/(lncrcasc) 111 other current assets 46.12 41.16 
tncrease in trade receivables (0J.67) (279.39) 
Increase in trade payables 22.76 (136.35) 
Increase in current flnancial Uabilities (182.81) 431.40 
Increase in non-current financial liabilities 17.40 69.60 
Increase In other provisions ZZ.12 24.80 

3,363.JS ),029.31 
f.ash generated from operating acnvtues 8,257.16 7,625.11 
Income Tax Paid (net} (1,470.48) (1,599.64) 

(1,470.48) p.599.64) 
Net cash generated rrom operating actlvitie.s 6,786.68 6,025.47 

8 Cash flew from investing activities: 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (457.26) (497.07) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 180.0S 
Purchase of lnvesrmenrs (5,739.32) (S,440.00) 
Iovestrnenr in Property (220.23) 
Proceeds from redemption ofinvestrnents. net 2,576.93 4 .. 983.55 
huerest received 607.28 236.81 
Dividend received 0.55 0.46 
Net cash used In fnvesung acuvtnes (3,011.82) (756.43) 

C Cash tJO\Y Irom financing activities: 
Interest paid (0.60) (9.23) 
Dividends Paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) cn~.2oi (~2Q.2Q) 
Net cash generated Ircm financing activities rn21.so1 (33Q.)~) 
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3.453.36 4.938.91 
Cash and cash equfvafcnts at the beginning of the year 8,524.70 3,585.79 
Cash and cash cqutvatcnrs at the end of the year 11,978.06 8.524.70 

As at ~1arch 3·t, 2024 As at l\o1arc-h 31, 2024 As at l\tarch 31, 2023 PartJcula.rs 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Cash now statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
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The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of equity shares from its retained earnings. The 
amount In Capital Redcmptlon Reserve Is equal to 11001inal amounrof'the equltysharcsbougbtback. 

b) Share Perfclturc Account 

Amount originally received on 19000 equity shares. tnclusjve of share premlum on forfeiture of shares transferred w Share 
ForfelwreAcccunt. 

c] General Reserves 
The Company created general reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act wherein certain 
percentage of profits were required to be transferred to general reserve before declaring dividends. As per the Companies Act 
ZO 13. the requirement to transfer profits togeneraJ reserve is not mandatory General reserve is a free reserve available to the 
Company 

Corporate dividend tax on dividend paid to Equity Shareholders 
Balance as ar 31March2022 27.20 1.39 2,184.11 18,181.77 20.394.47 
Profit for the year 5,110.71 5,ll0.71 

Total comprehensive income 27.20 1.39 2,161.11 23,292.16 25,505.18 
Dividends distributed to equity shareholders 320.89 320.89 

Balance asat31ftfarch2023 27.20 t.39 2,184.11 22,971.59 25,184.29 
Profit for the year J,8()7.76 3.897.76 
Other comprehensive Income 288.16 288.16 
Income tax telating to trems chat will tot be reclassllled to profit or loss (29.24) (29.24) 
Total comprehensive Income 27.20 1.39 2,184.11 27,128.28 29,340.98 
Dtvldends disttibut~d to equity shareholders 320.90 32U.90 
Balance as at 3J P.tarch 2024 27.20 1.39 2,184.11 26,807.38 29,020.08 

a) Capital Redemption Reserve 

Total Retained 
Earning 

General 
aeseve 

Share 
Forfeiture 

Account 

Capital 
Redemptton 

aeservc 

Reserve & Surplus Particulars 

B. OTHF.R F.QUITV 

15 320.90 32090000 

320.90 32090000 15 

320.90 32090000 15 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 

Equity share ofRs.1/· each 
Balance as al 31 March 2022 
Changes in £quity Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 ~farch 2023 
Changes In Equity Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at 3 t March 2024 

Amount No. or shares Note Particulars 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise l 
STATEMENTOFCHANG6S IN EQUITY 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL: 
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2016. Accordingly. the 
consolidated financral statements for the year ended 31P.1arch2024 are the Group's Ind AS consolidated financial statements. 
For periods up to and Including the year ended 31 March 2024. the Group prepared Its consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting standards notified under seeu on 133 of ll•tt Compantes Act 20 t 3 (the 'Act'), read together with 
paragraph 7 ofthe Compaules (Accounts} Rules. 2014 [l ndlan GAAP). 
Overall Consideration 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised below, These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial suuemenrs.excepr v• v here the Group has 
applied certain accounting. 
Basls ofpreparatton 
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are 
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Consolidated financial st .. atements, t\JI assets and liabilities have been 
classified as current or non current as per the Group normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time berv v cen acquisition of assets for 
processing and their reallsauon in cash and 'ash equivalents, the Group has ascertained lts operaung cycle as 12 months for 
the purpose-of curre11tor uon-current classlflcauon of assets and liabilities. 
Subsidiary entity where the group exercise or controls 100% of its total share capital. The net assets and results of acquired 
businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition, being the date on 
which the Group obtains control. 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events In slmtlar circumstances. The accounting policies adopted In the preparation of consoltdated Ilnanclal statements are 
consistent with those of previous year; The financial statements of the Cornpauy and its subsidiary have been combined on a 
Une~hy· line basis by adding together the book values of like uems orasscrs, liahfllties, income and expenses, after eliminating 
in nil group balances. intra group transactions and the unrealised profits/losses, unless cost/revenue cannot be recovered. 

b) Current versus non current classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 
classified as current when It is: 

i. Expected to be realised or intended to sold orconsumed in normal opcrat1ngcyclc, 
ii. Held primanlyforthe purpose of trading. 
iii. Expected to be realised wl thin twelve monthsafter the reporting perlod, or 
iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

aftcrmc reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current, 

Nan1e of the Subsidiary Prtnctple acnvtttes Country of'Ineorporatton Proportion of owuershtp Interest In(%) 
2023-24 2022-23 

lndcbcrax lnfrastrucrun: Private Limited Buildl•rs and Developers India t0-0% 100% 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
corporate Inforntation 

Jndo Borax & Chemicals Limited (the Company] Lo; a public limited company mcorporated and domictled in India. lts shares 
arc listed on Stock Exchange in India. It has formed lts subsidiary Indohorax Infrastructure Private Llmtted. The registered 
office is at 302. Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai -400054. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of 
Boron products. 
The Consolidated accounts for the year ended 3 lst March. 2024 were consolidated on the basis of audited accounts 
presented by rhe subsldiary lndoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. 

a) General tnforrnattou and CompliancewithJodAS : 
The consolidated flnanclat statements include the financial statements of the parent company and Its substdlary 
[hereinafter referred as group) 
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Leasehold tmprovcments have been amortised over the estimated useful Htc of the assets or the period of'Iease. whichever is 
lower. The residual values. useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adiusted 
prospecnvelg if appropriate. 
t.i;:iterial items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPB when they meet the 
definition of PPEas speclfted In Ind AS 16- Properry, Plaotand Equipment 

De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any slgniftcanr part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits arc expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognltlon of the asset 
[calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrylng ernount of the asset) is included in the income 
statement when the asset is de recognised. 

d) lntpairmentofnon·financialassets 
At each reporting date. the Group assesses whetherthere is any indication based ou internal/external factors. that an asset may 
be impaired. lt'any such indication exists, the Group estimates rhe recoverable amount of'the asset. It' such recoverable amount 
or the asset or the recoverable amounter the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrytng amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an Impairment loss and is recognised 
rn the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for mdicaucns th~1l an lmpalrment loss previously 
recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount 
exceeds Its carrymg aruouut. 
The tmpairmenr losses and reversals arc recognised in statement of profirand loss. 

Description of Asset Estimated useful life (ln years) 

Office Building 60 
Factory Building 30 
Plant and equipment 20 

Office equipment 5 
Computers 3 

Electric installation 10 
furniture and tlxtures 10 
Vehicles 8 

A llablllty lsclassJfled ascurrent when 
i, It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
ii. It is held primarily for the purposeoftrading 
iii. It is due to be settled within twelve monrhsafrer the reporting period, or 
iv. There ts no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the llah111ty for at least twelve months after rbc reporting 

period. 
1\ll otherliabilities are classified as non-current. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reallsatton in cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-currentasscts and Hablllttes. 

c) Property,PlantandEquipment: 
Property, plant and equlpment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowtng cost if 
capltallsatlon cntena are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the ass el to its worktng condition f crthe intended use. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying cmount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onJy when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated 1..vith the irem ~\'ill Ho\V to the Company All other repair and maintenance 
cosrsare recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives): 
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is provided on straight line method on assets located in Factory premises. The 
company has fellowed wrluen-dcwn value method of provtding depreclanon wtth respect to assets located at Head Office. The 
Depreciation is computed on the basisofuseful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II the Act: 
The amortisatlon period and the amortisation method for Ilnlte-Ilf c intangible assets Is reviewed at each financlat year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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e) Plnauctattnstrumeues 
Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and nnanclal llabllillcs are recognised when the group becomes a party ro the contractual prnvlslons of LhQ 
financial Instrument and arc measured initially at fair value adjusted tor n .. ansacnoo costs. 

Subsequentmeasurement 
i) Financial instruments at amorrised cost- the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost jfboth the following 

conditions are met: 
The asset is held within a business modet whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
Courrurrual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amountoutstanding. 
Afterioitjal measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (Ell{) method. AJI the debt instruments oftheGroup are measured aramornscd cost. 

Trade Receivables and Loans: 
Trade recelvablesare inltlally recognised '1t f:Jir value. Subsequently, tneseassets are held atamortlsed cost. using the effective 
Inrerest rare (F.IR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR Is the rare that discounts csrnnared future cash Income 
through the expected life ofnnancial Instrument. 

l\1utual Funds, Equity Investment, bonds and other rlnanctal Instruments: 
~1utual Funds, Equity investment, bonds and other financial instruments in the scope of Ind As 109 are measured at fair value 
through profit&lossaccount (FVOCI). 

Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 

All flnanclal liabllities are recognised Initially at fair value and uausactlon cost that is aurtbutabte to the acqutstnon of the 
financial llalllllrlcs Is also adjusted. These llah11f tics arc classlfled as amortised cost 

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these Liabilities are measured at amcrtised cost using the effective interest method. These 
linbilines include borrowings, 

ue-recogmuon offinancial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obllgatfon tinder the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. when an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another front the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are subsrantlally modified, such an exchange or modlficarion is treated as the de- recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in rhe statemenr 
of profit and loss. 

fJ tmpairment offtnanctal assets 
Jn accordance wtth Ind AS 109, the group appllcs expected credlr loss (F.C:t) model for measurement and recognition of 
lmpairment loss for financial assets. 
ECL ts the difference between all contractual cash flows 'ha1 are due to the Group in accordance wnh tne contract and aJI the 
cash nows that tlH~ Company expects to receive. when estlmattng the cash flows, the gr<1up 1s required to ccnstder; 

t All contractual terms of the financia,I assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets. 
ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that a-re integral to the contractual terms. 

Other financial assets 
Forret.:ogntlion ofhnr>;;iir111ent loss on ether- financial assets and risk exposure, the gruup desermtneswhether there has been a 
significant Increase in the credit risk since initial rccognlnon and if credit risk has Increased signfflcantJy, Impa! rrncnr IQSS Is 
provided. 

g) tnvenrortes 
Ra\Y t-1ate1iaJ: Lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determlned on first in first out ff I FO') basis. 
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Deferred tax assets and habilines are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 
or the ltabl11ty Is settled, based on tax raws (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subsrandvcly enacted ar the: reporting date. 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement o( profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss 
( elther In OCI orln equity). 

j) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise rash in hand. demand deposits with banks/corporations and short· term highly liquid 
investments (original marurity less than 3 months] that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to 
an insignificant risk of change in value. 

k) Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits 
i) Short Term Employee Benefits: 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term 
employee beneftts. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratta. 

ii) Defined contribution plans: 
Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Provident fund managed by Government authorities, Employees 
State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the 

Measureme111 au be balance sheet date 
Foreign currency monetary ltems of the Group, outstanding at 1he balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rares, Non· 
monetary iten1s which are carried at historicaJ cost denomlnated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary Items measured at fair value in a forclgn currency arc translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fairvalue is determined. 
Treatment of exchange dlff erence 
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Group's 
monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as Income or expenses in the period in which they arise. 

I) lncome taxes: 
Tax expense recognised in statement of profir and loss comprises the sum of deterred tax and current tax not recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income ('OC11 or directly in equity. 
Current income-tax is measured at [he amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income­ 
tax Act. Current lncome-tax relating to Items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised ourside statemenr of 
profit and loss (either in OCl orm equity). 
Deferred income-tax is calculated using the Iinbiliry method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all 
taxable temporary dfffereuces. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that the underly1ng tax loss, 
unused tax credits or deductible temporary difference \ViJI be uulised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on 
the Group's forecast of future operating results.adlusted for significant non-raxablc lncomcand expenses and specific timlrs on 
the use of any unused tax loss or credtt, Deferred tax assets or liability arising during tax holiday period is not recognised to the 
extent it reverses out wlthln the tax holiday period. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arc re-assessed at each reporting date 
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aJlO\Y the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 

work in progress, are valued at tower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work ht progress and manufactured finished 
goods comprises direct material. cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present 
location and condition. 
Finished goods: Lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost ls determined on FIFO basis, includes direct rnaterial and lahour 
expenses and appropriate proportion of manutactunng overheadshased on the normal capacity for manufactured goods. 
Net realisable value is the esthnated seltlug price lo the ordinary course er bostness less esumared costs of completion and 
csrimated costs of necessary to make thesale. 

b) Forelgn Currency'Transactton 

Initial recognition 
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR. \Vhich is also the Group's functional currency. Transactions in 
foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition In the fur1c1Jonol currency at U-1e exchange rates prevoltlng on the date of 
the transacrion. 
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iv) Gratulty: 

The group has an obllgarl<Jn towards gratulty, a defined benefit retlremenr plan covering ellgtbte employees. The plan 
provides for payment to vested employees at retirement. death while in employment oron termination of employment 
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon 
completion of given years of service. The company makes contribution to employees group gratuity fund established by 
Life Insurance Corporation of India. Actuarial gaios and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the Profit and Loss account in the period in which they arise. 

I) Operattng cxpeuscs: 
Operating expenses are recognised in proflt or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred. 

m] Borrowing costs 

Borrowing <-'oSt::> directly attributable w the acquisltluns, eensrructlon or production or a qualifying a:;:;;et are capitalised 
during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing 
costs are expensed In the period In which theyare Incurred and reported In Rnuncecosts. 

n) Fairvaluen1easurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date, 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer ;;1 liabilily in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumptton that the transaction to 
sell the asset. or transf er the liability takes place either: 

L In the principal market (orthcassctorliability, or 

ii, Jn the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous marker for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accesslbleby the Group. 
The tair value of an asset or a liabilicy is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability; assuming that market participants act in therr-ecoocrntc best interest. 

o) Provisions, conttngcntasscts and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events. and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adlusted to 
reflect the current best estimates, Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is matertal, 

Contingent lktbilit:y is disclosed for 

l. Posslbteobllgatlons whlch will he confirmed only by f utu re events not wholly wlthtn thecontrot of the Croup or: 

ii.Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to 
settle the obi lgarion or a reliable estlmate of the amounrof the obligation cannot be made. 
Contlngent assctsare not recogniaed, However, when Inflow of'economic benefit is probable, related asset is disclosed. 

p) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue. 

For the purpose of calculattng diluted earnings per share. the net profit 01· loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

q) BusinessCon1binationsandGood\viU 

Acquisition method 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business 

contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are 
due. 

iii) Deflnedbeneflrplans 

Retlremeruheneflt in the form of Gratuity benefit is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the 
basis of an actuarial valuation. 
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers IJ1dAS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting 
for revenue arislng from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 \.Viii supersede the current revenuerecognition standard Ind AS 
18 Revenue, Lnd AS 1 t Construction Contracts when it becomes effective. The core prlnciplc off nd AS 115 is that an entity 
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promleed good-; or services ro customers In an amount that reflects 1 he 
consideration to which the enrlry expects lo be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. Speclfically, the- standard 

Goodwill is measured at cost, helng the excess of the aggregate of the constderat ion transferred. the amount recognised for 
non-controlltng interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured accost less any accumulated Impairment losses. For the purpose of'tmpalrmenr 
testing. goodwill acquired In a business combtnatfon is. from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash­ 
generating units thar are expected to benefit from the comblnation, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
acqulree are assigned to those units. 
A cash generating unit to which goodwlll has been allocated is tested for Impatrmenrannualb.or more frequently when there is 
an indication that the unit may be impaired, If the recoverable amount of rbe cash generating unit is less than its carrying 
amount. the lmpalrment loss is id located first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to 
the other assets ot'the unit pro-rata based on rhe carrying ameunt of each asset in the unit. Any lmpainuent loss forgoodwill is 
recognised in profit or loss. An tmpatrment Joss recognised for-goodwill Is not reversed in subsequent pertods. wberegoodwul 
has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated 
wlth the disposed operation is included in the carrying amountof the operauon when deterrnintng the gain or loss on disposal. 
Good1Arill disposed in these ctrcumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion 
oftbecash-generatlng unit retained. 

r) Revenue recognition 
Sales of goods 

IND AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

combtnauon is measured at fair value. whtch is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets 
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the fonnerowners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued 
by the Group in exchange for control of the acqutree. Acquisition related costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss as incurred. 
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair 
values. For tJ1is purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are 
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespecnve of the fact t1HlC outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not 
probable. However, the fellowing assets and Ilablllties acquired in a business combination are measured ar the basis indicated 
below: 

a) deferred tax assets or llabilitles, and the assets or llabtllttes !'elated to employee benefit arrangements are recognised 
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes' and Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" respectively; 

b) liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share - based 
payments arrangements of the Group entered Into to replace share based payment arrangements of the acquiree are 
measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 "Share-based Payments" al the acquisition date; and 

c) assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-currenr Assets Held 
for Sala and Dlscondnuad Opcrarlons" are measured In accordance wlrh char standard. 
when the Croup acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and ltabrttttes assumed for appropriate 
classification and designation in accordance with the ccntractual rerms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
condutous as at the acquisition date. When a huslocss combination I-; achieved ln stages, the Croup's previously held 
equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains 
control) and the resulting gain or loss, If any, ts recognised tn 1hc Consolldared searcmcnt of Ptorit and Loss. Any 
contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent 
consldcrannn classified as ail asset or Uablllry that Is a financial Instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 
"Financial lnstruments", is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in Consolidated Statement of 
Proflt and Loss. Jf the contingent conslderarlon Is not wlthln the scope of Ind AS 109. lt Is measured In accordance with 
the appropriate lnd AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent 
repornng dates and subsequent its settlement Is accounted forwithln equity. 

Goodwill 
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Oividendsare recognised at the nrne the right to receive the payment is established. 

s) Segment Information 

The managtng commnree is considered to be the 'Chief Operating Decision t.iaker' (COD{l.t) as defined in IND AS 108. The 
Operating Segment is the level at which discrete financial informatiou Is available. The COD{l.1 atlocares resources and assess 
performance at this level. The Con1pany has one operating segmeni i.e. Chemical Manufacturing which Includes Boron 
Products. 

t) Acccunttng for Lease: 

Group as a lesseee 
The Group applies a single a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and 
leases of low value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

As per Ind AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise dcprcc-latlon on rtghts of use assets and flnance costs on lease Habtllttcs in the 
staternent of profit and toss, 

teases where the lessor effectively retains substantlally all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item are classified 
as operating leases. Operatmg lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight· 
line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

Leases where the lessor effectively retain .. s substantially all the rights and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are 
class I fled as operating leases. At the! date of commencement of lease the Group Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (ROU) 
and a correspondlng lease liability for all lease arrangements tn ,,. .. hich it ts a lease except for leases wlth a term of twelve 
months or less and IO\Y value leases. For these short term and low value leases the Group Company recognizes the lease 
paymentsas an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

The right to use assets are initiaJly recognized at cost which comprises initial amount of'rhc lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payment made at or prior to the date of the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease 
lncentivcs. They arc subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses. 

Rlght·tO· use assets arc depreciated from the commencement date on straight line basis over lesser of the tease period or the 
useful Hr• oftbe asset. 

Lease liability is Initially measured at amortlzed costar the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are 
discounted using: the interest rate unplicir in the lease or, if not readily determinable using the incremental borrowing rate for 
the Group. 

u) Govern1nentGrants: 

Goverument grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of the 
concerned fixed assets. 

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 

Dividend 

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satrsfied. Le. when 'control' of the 
goods or services underlying the particular performance obllgarton ts transferred co the! customer. The Company has 
completed tts evaluatton utthe possible lmpact of lnd AS 115 and will adopt the standard from I st Ar>ril, 2018. 

tnreresetncome 

Identify the contracqs) with a customer 
Identify the performance obligation in contract 
Derernune the transaction price 
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Step I 

Step2 

Step3 

Step4 

Steps 

introduces a S~step~pproach to revenue recognition: 
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Note: (")The amount refetceted in e;1pital work in progress represents advance given for anotmenr of'ttnlt /Flot No. J 601. ;ind 1602 for project 
named Avenue 54 ors, V. Road. Santacruz (\Vest) r.iuruba.l ·400 054. 

Particulars Amount in capital work-ln-progress fora period of Total 
Less than 1 vear 1·2vears 2-3 vears "1ore than 3 vears 

Capita) wcrk-in-progress P) - 110.52 110.52 
Plant & Machinery 7.80 7.80 

7.1.IO 110.52 1 H!.32 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Amount in capital work-In-progress fora period of 
Particulars Total Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Capital work-In-progress c•) - . . 112.52 112.52 
Plant & Machinery . . - . . 

- . - 112.52 112.52 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 1- Property, plant and equipment (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 

Furniture 
Particulars Buildings fixrure Plant and Office VebJCICS teased Total and office- machinery equipments Land 

equipments- 

Gross blo.ck 

As at April 01. 2022 1,112.96 147.05 1,347."I• 83.27 293.33 10.06 2,993.81 
Additions 2.00 485.28 487.28 
OeductiOJl 6.01 10.39 12.H 219.25 2S7.o9 

As at March 31, 2023 1,106,95 127.66 1.317.li 72.83 559.36 10.06 3,22+.oo 
Additions 198.H 12.61 2•14.87 1.96 2.47 163.0S 
Deduction 

As at ltl~l'eh 31, 2024- 1,305.09 140.27 1.592.01 77.79 56L83 10.06 3,607.0S 

Furntture 

Particulars Buildings nxture Plant and oroce Vehicles Leased Total and office· machinery equipments Land 
equlpments 

Accumukued dee,rec;ation 
As at April 01, 2022 413.SI 125.65 9"14.39 72.51 261.41 t,687.47 
Oepre<"l:nJon charge during the year 36.15 5.13 4'.H 3.79 65.98 155.39 
Deduction 4.84 18.80 Jl.63 213.23 HS.SO 

As at 1'tarch 31, 2023 4+1.82 111.98 858.73 64.67 114.16 1,594.36 
Depreciation charge during the year 35.69 6.82 45.99 3.88 135.95 228.33 
Deduction 

A.sat March 31, 2024 480.S I 118.80 904.72 68.SS ZS0.11 0.00 l,822.69 

Net carrying amount as at l'tarch 31, 2024 824.SB 21.4-7 687.29 9.24 311.72 10.06 1,864.36 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 662.ll 15.68 4~MI 8.16 445.20 10.06 1,629.61 

Note 2 - Capital Work In Progress 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 is as follows 
Capital work-in-progress 
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926.97 1,42"1.64 Total 

223.02 
70'.l.95 

365.16 
l.056.48 

Wlthln l year 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 
Later than 5 years 

Asat March 31, 202.3 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

(ii) Uasin.q arrangements 
f.1inimun1 lease payments receivable under nou-cancellable operating leases of Investment properties are as follcws: 

104.78 304.20 Profit from investment properties 

184.78 304.20 Profit from investment properties before 
depreciation 
Depreciation 

(44.15) 
238.27 

(53.49) 

348.65 Rental income 
Direct operating expenses for property that generated 
rental income 
Direct operating expenses for property that did not 
generate rental Income 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

7,195.53 7,195.53 
785.90 565.67 

220.23 

7,981.43 7,981.43 
7,981.43 

7,981.43 

Closing gross carrying amount 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 

(i} A1nounts recognised in the stntenient of profit and loss for investment properties 

Gro.fs block 
Opening gross carrying amount- Property 
Opening gross carrying amount - Furniture 
Additions 

As at March 31, 2023 As at Marc.h 31, 2024 Particulars 

3.27 3.27 

0.20 0.20 
0.20 0.20 
3.27 3.27 
3.26 3.27 
0.00 0.00 

0.15 

Operating lease commitments as of 1st April, 2023 10.46 
Lease Commitrnenr During the year 
Amortization durring the year 0.15 
Exemption of commitments for short-term leases 
Exemption of commtrments for leases of low value 
assets 
Undiscounte<I future lease payments trom operating 
leases 
Effect of discounting 
Interest on leasehold nghts 
Lease liabilities as of March 31, 2024 
Lease liabilities non-current as of March 31, 2024 
Lease liabilities current as of March 31, 2024 

Note 4 • tnvestment property 

The Company recongnised ROU asserts for the following assets categories: 
Lease hold land 10.30 10.46 =========================== 

10.61 

As at March 31, 2023 Particulars As at March 31, 2024 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 3 - Right of use Assets (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 
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566.87 57:1.15 Total 
54.19 64.11 

3.64 
51.19 64.11 

Provision for doubtful advances 
Other loans and advances, unsecured. considered good 
Loans to employees 

3.64 

3.64 

509.01 509.04 
Loans- lntercorporate Deposits 
Inter Corporate Deposits (At fer N<Jle No. 46) 
Advances recoverable In cash or kind 
Unsecured, considered good 
Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good 
Advance Income-tax [net of provision for taxation} 

As at Marcil 31, 2024 As at Ma.rch 31, 2023 Particulars 

33.30 
33.30 

58.96 
58.96 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 
Aggreg<lte marker value of listed and quoted investments 
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
Aggregate amount of impatrrncnt in value of investments 

Nole 6 ~ Long term loans and advances 

Particulars No.Of As at l\otarch No.Of AsatMarc:h 
Share/Bond Unit 31.2024 Share/Bond Unit 31, 2023 

Other Equity hrstruments : 
Unquoted, fully patd up 
Reliance Mcdta works Ltd 675 675 . 
tnvesnncnt In Equity Instruments 
Quoted, fully paid up 
At Fair value through OCI 
Central Bank of India Ltd 3200 1.91 3200 0.77 
[alprakash Associates Limited 4500 0.81 4500 0.31 
Jindal Steel & Power Lrmltcd . 300 1.64 
Kamanwala lndustncs Limited 57395 9.79 57395 4.40 
L & T Limired 900 33.97 900 19.48 
N:.Hional Thermal Power Limited 3600 12.09 3600 6.31 
Pun; Lloyd Limited 1460 0.04 1460 0.04 
Reliance Ccmmluucatlon Lhuit.ed 2000 0.04 2000 0.03 
Unity Projects Limited 2000 O.Ql 2000 0.02 
tuvestement in nebentures- fully paid up 
Unquoted, 
At Falr value through OCI 
NTPC Ltd, Non Convertible Debentures 3000 0.30 3000 0.31 
IDFC Crlsll Gilt 2027 lndcx Fund 28,67.815.77 334.04 28.67,815.77 311.60 
(erstwhile IDFCC1isil IBX Gilt)une 2027) 

393.00 344.91 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note S ~ Non-current investments 

(Iii) Fatr value oftuvestmentproperty as on 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 9088.00 Lakhs (8131.63 Lakhs) & Iair valueoffurutrcre 
ason atsr March, 2024 ls Rs.654.291,akhs 

The company obtains independent valuations for its invesunent in properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in 
an active market for snnilar properties. Where such Informatton is not available, the company consider iutormanon from a 
variety of sources indud.ing: 
"current prices in an acuve marker for propertles or dlffarent nature or recent prices or slmllar pmperttes in less acuve markets, 

adjusted to reflectrhose ditfercnces . 
.._discounted cash flow projections based on reliable esnmates offurure cash llO\VS . 
.,. capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market tncome.and a capitalisation rate derived from an 

analysis of market evldence. 
The fair values ortnvcsrmcnuu commercial properues have- been determined by Indcpendenr Vatucr J-1. Mehta &Associates. The 
main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, termtnal yields and discount rates based on comparable 
transactions and industry data. All resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3 
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Parlicul~U'$ OUCS1alliClinir IOI followi • riocls rrvm due: date o( 31·03·'lOZ4 Po'lrtJtulai'$ Outmndbtl! ror folk>wi eriods fro11a doo date or J1·0l·ZOZJ 

Less than 6- 6months· 1-2 2·3 More Less than 6 6 months- 1 1·2 2·3 Morf.'.'Lhan 
months 1 year ~·rs. yrs. dun 3 months yrs. )'rs. 3 yrs. yrs, year 

(jJ Undisput-.'d Trade (i) Undisputed Trade 
re<:tiv:iblt'$• i;imsjJC-r~d 1.359.?S 0.-06 1>.1.18 0.10 J.360.79 recei\1;al)lt!$· l.?773'1 0.)2 ''" 1.279.12 
too<! ('()11$lde-t-cd good 

(II) undtspured Trade {ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables· Considered . . Receivables- . 
Doub1ful Consider-0d Doubtful 

(1il) Otsputed Trade (lb) Oispu1ed 'rrode 
fleocivable-s considered Receivables 
good oonsidere:d good 

(iv) Dispot('d Trade (iv) Disputed Ttadc 
Rt:OIJIV<ibles considered . . Receivables . 
dvubtful OC11~ille1-r.ll d(lnbtful 

T<ttal t,359.7S 0.06 0.88 0.10 1360.79 Total 1277.39 0.12 1.61 • 1 279.12 

Note 10 <Trade receivables 

552.76 
ssz.ze '.J,905.82 

3,905.82 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 
Aggregate market value of listed and quoted Investments 
Aggregate amount of unquoted lnvesrments 
Aggregate Provision fo1· lmpalrment In the VaJue of Investments 
Note; The company has made R'fGS for tnvestmenrm SBJ >\l'bltragi; 0f)fl(Ji'tunltles Fund (Ir Rs. 510.00 Lakhs on 28/03/2024. the same has been also 
debited front hank account on the same date. The fund house bad allotted 15,57.259.64 units on Ol/04/2024. 'rural units as on 0'1/04/2024 
were 71,99,4-01.628. 

Particulars No.Of As at l\tarc;.h se.or As at March 
Share/MF Units 31..2024 Share/MF Units 31. 2023 

In Units Oft.1utual fund· unquoted 
At fair value through OCI 
$81 fixed Maturity Plan -Senes 92 . so 500.00 
SDI Arbitrage Opp Fund-Direct Plan (Refer Note 6tlo\\1) 56.42.141.988 2.356.89 
JCJCJ Prudential balance Advancagc Fund 9.05,759.639 646.17 
JCICI Prudential Corp Credit Opp. Fund l 9,805.t151 20.15 
ICJCI Prudential Enhanced Dynamic Fund 80,205.967 101.60 - 
ICICI Prudential Bquity ~vings fund 35,74,330.728 724.16 
SOI Arbitrage Gpportunlty fund· Regular Plan· Growth 1.03,452.029 56.85 1,83,452.829 52.76 

Total 3,905.82 552.76 

Note 9 -Curreut tuvesencnts 

5,788.46 2,238.39 Total 

5.561.36 
50.42 
57.66 

119.02 

2.066.19 
50.60 
\4.46 

107.12 

RaV\1 marerials (Refer note 26) 
Stock in Process 
Finished goods 
Stock of Consumable Stores & Spare parts (at cost) 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Note 8 · Inventories 

46.22 60.19 Total 
46.22 60.19 

Unsecured, considered good 
Security Deposits 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] Note 7 · Other non-current financial assets 
Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
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32 09 000 32090000 

32,09,000 32090000 Balance asat 31st March 2023 
Changes during the Year 
Balance as at 31st March 2024 

Nos. Equity Shares Nos. 
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

320.90 320.90 
320.90 320.90 

322.80 322.90 
322.80 322.80 

600.00 600.00 
Authorised shares 
60000000 Equity Shares ,,r Rs. t /-each 
(Previous Year 60000000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/· each) 
Issued, subscribed shares 
32280000 Equity Shares of Rs. If- each 
(Previous year 33280000 Equity Shares) 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
32090000 Equity Shares of Rs. I/· each 
[Previous year 32090000 Equity Shares of Rs. I/- each) 

As at March :H,2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Note: Depostt with government nathortnes includes 58,62,806/·( Previous year Rs. 58.62.806/·) [Deposit of Rs. 61,55/J46/· [Previous year Rs. 
bt,55,946/ -j ress input tax credit taken towards 1c;s·r of Rs. 2,93,J 40/ · ( previous year Rs. 2, 9~J. l 40/ · ) deposit with custom departmem. During the 
flnanclal year 2022·23 custom authortry had refunded Rs. 1,00,00,000/· 
Note 15 ·Share capital and other e<1ujty 
Share capital 

Total 

Prepaid expenses 
Deposit with govt authorities (refer note below) 
Advances to Suppliers 
Others 
Interest Receivable 

Particulars 

Total 
Note 14 - Other current assets 

Loans to Employees 
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

11.98 6.55 
11.98 6.55 

As at March 31,202'1 As at March 31,2023 

65.58 48.53 
62.41 75.64 
79.42 37.80 

208.37 374.52 
162.05 87.47 
577.83 623.96 

Particulars 

Note : Unclaimed dlvdiend are not due for deposit to the Investors Education and Protection Fund. 
Note 13 - Short term loans and advances 

58.64 57.15 Total 

32.79 32.79 
25.85 H.36 

Margin money deposits 
Unclaimed dividend account (refer note a below) 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Total 
Note 12 - Other bank balances 

2.00 2.63 

532.39 391.56 
9,689.00 6,300.00 
1,754.67 1,830.51 

11,978.06 8,524.70 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 11 ~ Cash and cash equivalents (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otheiwise) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 
~ Current Account 
- FL'°d Deposit with banks 
- Investment In Liquid Mutual Fund 

flj 1NDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



e] FJnal& Interim Dividend on EqullyShares 
Final dividend of Rs I (i.e.100%) perequltyshare ofRs 1/· eachforU1efinancialYcarcnded March31,2023on 3209000 equity 
shares declared by Shareholders at Annual General Meeting held on 19th August, 2023. 

f) Splltupofcqultyshares: 
The Board of Dtrectors at their meetlng held on 14th June, 2021 approved the sub-dlvlslon of each equlry share efface value of Rs. 
10/- fully paid up into 10 equity shares of face value oflls.1/· each fully paid up. The same has been approved by the members in 
the Annual General Mecrlng held on 28th August, 2021. The effectlve date for the subdivision was 28th September; 2021. 
Aceordlngly, equity shares and earning per shares have been adjusted for the share split in accordance with tNO AS 33 "Earning 
Per Share" forall previous quarters. 

As at March :u. 2024 A.s at l\.1arch 31., 202.3 

Name o( the shaecbolder NU$. u( Sh;Atts o/•hulding Ne~. u( Shartil 'Ii h<JJdjng In '>'•ch;u1~ 
In the d:ass ,,,~~la.$$ dud1lj; c 

)'C'lo\f 

Equity shares »f R1\ .J/. per share 
Equity Shares 

M<. Sajnl jain 84,55,390 26.35 S6,55,39(J 26.97 (<t.62) 
/i.(1'$. Sreclekha J~n 2u,n.020 6,47 20.77,020 6."7 . 
Mr. Saurnya jaiu 46,30,810 14.43 51.38,>87 16.(JI (1.58) 
1'.{r:s. Pranika Jain 10 . l(J . 
Mrs. Shubbta Jain Sivaradiou 2,32,000 0.72 2,32,tKK) 0.72 . 
Saial jain, Karra ._.f HUF 9,05,000 2.~2 9,05,000 2.82 . 

(d) Detatts ofprcmoter heldlng (as per the register of members of the Companyare asunder): 

As per records of the Company. including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received front 
shareholders regarding beneflctal huerest, the above sharcholdlug represents both legal and beneflclal ewncrshlps of shares. 

Equity shares of Rs. l/· each fully pnld 
~Ir. Sa;al Jain 
M1·s. Srcetekba Jain 
Mr. Saumya fain 

Asar P.tarch 31. 2024 As at Mardi 31, 2023 

Nos. of Shares % boldln_g In 
Nos. of Share.-. 

%holding In 
the class the class 

84,SS,390 26..15 8655390 26.97 
20,77,020 6.47 2077020 6.47 
46,30,0JO 14.43 5138587 16.01 

Name of the shareholder 

(as per the regist~rof members of the <.-Ompany are as under} :• 

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuingAnnuaJ General Meering, 
In the eventofliquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares \ .. •ill be entitled to receive remaintng assetsofthe Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 
The distribution will he in proportion to the number of equny shares held by the equitysharcholders. 

Dur1ng last nve years no shares were alloted wtthout payment being received In cash or as bonus shares, however company wen'? 
bought back <lnd ext Ingulshcd 2, 72,000equlty shares during LhC Ilnanclal ycar2014· l 5. 

Amount onglnally received on Iorened shares Rs. 1,39,350 /·(inclusive of share premium) f ncluded in Reserve & Surplus. 
(c) Details or shareholders holding more than So/osha.res in the Company 
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3.27 3.26 Total 
3.27 3.26 Lease Liability 

As at Ma1·cb 31,2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Note 19 • I.ease Llablllt1es 

143.8,!! 122.25 Total 

143.88 122.25 OitT. between accounting base and tax: base of PPP 
155.24 134.16 TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 

Deferred tax liability arising on account of Ptnanctat assets al fair value through OCI 

155.24 134.16 
Deferred tax liability arising on account of Difference between accounting base and tax 
base o(PPE 

11.37 IJ.90 

2.36 
9.00 

3.80 
8.11 

Deferred tax llabllltes arising on account of: 
Deferred tax asset arising on account of Provision for employee benefits 
Deferred rax asset artslng on account of Ftnanclal assets at fair value 
through OCI 

TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2024 Particulars 

Note 18 -Deferred tax liabilities 

117.90 135.30 Total 
117.90 135.30 Ceased Deposits 

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

Note 17 - Other non-current flnanclal llablllt1es 

TOTAL 

2,184.11 2.184.11 

22,97t.59 18,101.77 
4,156.69 5,110.71 

320.90 320.89 

26,807.38 22,971.59 

29,020.08 25,184.29 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 
Balance as per the last financial statements 
Profit for the year 
Dividend distributed on equity shares 

Transfer to General Reserve 
Closing Balance 

2,184.11 2,184.11 

1.39 1.39 
General Reserve 
Balance Brought Forward 
Transfer from Surplus 

1.39 1.39 

27.20 27.20 

27.20 27.20 Capital Redemption Reserve 
Balance Brought Forward 
Shal'e Forfeiture Account 
Balance Brought Forward 

As at March 31. 2023 As at ~la.rch 31, 2024 Reserves and Surplus 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 16-0ther Equity [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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Total 

Provlston for gratuity (net] (Refer Note 29) 
Provision for Leave (net) (Refer Note 29) 

Particulars 

Total 
Note 23 · Employee benefit obligation 

Lease Liability 

Particulars 

Total 
Note 22 - Current Lease t.tabtlttles 

Particulars As at March 31, 202.4 As at Marcb 31,202:l 
324.75 312.63 
381.12 553.97 
80.84 76.88 
10.72 8.26 
25.85 24.35 

823.28 1,006.09 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 
173.23 155.29 
39.99 35.80 

213.22 191.09 

126 

a] Statutory dues payable 
b] Salaries due to director 
c) Advance received from clients 
d) Other Liabilities 
el Unclaimed Dividend 

NIL NIL 

NII. NIL 

NII. NIL 

NIL NIL 
(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 

separately) rcmatning unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounung year 

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 
2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

(cl the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment [which has been paid hut beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
~1icro, Small and ~1ediun1 Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(d) the amount of'tnteresr accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year 

(e] the amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even lu 1he 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of dtsallowance of 
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Note 21 - Other current financial liabilities 

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

(*)DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES: 

Particulars Outstmdin for followi ,.,. neriods from due date of 31·03-2024 Particulars OurstandiM for foUowin -nods frOlll dut dare of 31·03-2023 

Less than 1·2 yrs. 2·3 yrs. Mere than 3 Total Less than 1·2 yrs. 2·3 yrs. 
More than 

Total l yr. yrs, 1 yr. 3 yrs, 

il MSM6 . . il MSME . . 
ii] Others ~{26 .40 19.~{!l 5.70 12.15 :{<>:l.()0 ii] Others 317.27 . 6.29 17.2» 340.04 

{iii) Dtsputcd (iii) Disputed . . . 
dues- MSME dues- MSME 
(iv) Disputed . (iv) Disputed . . . 
dues- Others dues· Others 
Tota) 326.40 19.35 5.70 12.15 363.60 Total 317.27 . 6.29 17.28 340.34 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 20-Trade payables [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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Total 

Dividend income from investments 
Interest received 
Interest received on Debenture 
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investments 
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 

Profit on Sale of Assets 

Misc. Income 

Rent & Facility Charges 

Sundry balances w/back 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March :n,2023 

0.55 0.46 
607.11 236.70 

0.17 0.11 
90.74 106.74 

128.30 73.50 
22.65 

0.70 0.02 

348.65 274.15 

1.27 3.25 

1177.49 717.58 

Particulars 

Note 25 - Other income 
22,507.93 19,130.30 

1 011 00 
8.49 

21,496.93 19.121.81 

Sale. of products comprises : 
Manufactured goods 
Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 
Traded goods 
Chemicals & Others 
Sale of Flat 

22,507.93 19,130.30 

21,496.93 
1,011.00 

19 .. 121.81 
8.49 

Operating Income : 
Manufactured goods 
Traded goods 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 24 - Revenue from operations [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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(a) As per Accounnng Standard 15 "Employee beneftts", thedisclosuresas defined in the Accounrlng Standard are given below: 
Defined Contribution Plan: 
Contrlburion to Provident Fund is Rs.49.67 Lakhs/· (Previous Year Rs. 47.17 Lakhs}. ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund Includes Rs. 
3.70 Lakhs- (Previous Year Rs. 3. 70 Lakhs]. 

1,355.31 1,188.71 Total 

1,278.70 
:1.10 

47.17 
15.12 
10.62 

1,118.70 
3.70 

49.67 
6.26 

10.38 

Salaries, Wages. Bonus & Ex-gratia 
Contrtbution to t..S.l.C. 
Contribution to Provident Fund 
Provision/ Contribution to Croup Gratuity and LIC 
Workmen & Staff Welfare expenses 

As at March 3t,2023 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 
Note 28 - Employee benefit expenses 

954.67 42.99 
108.08 65.09 

1,062.75 
57.66 
50.42 

108.08 
14.48 
50.61 

1,026.56 
36.19 

57.66 
50.42 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Finished goods 
VVork·in·progrcss 
Inventories at the end of the year 
Finished goods 
Werk-in-progress 
Flat 

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

9,871.63 100.00 100.00 10,196.22 
Note 27 - (lncrease)/Decrease in inventories 

90.47 
9.53 

8,930.64 
940.99 

93.81 
6.19 

9,564.71 
631.51 

Raw Materials 
(i) Imported 
(ii) Indigenous 

% As at March 31,2023 o/o As at March 31,2024 Particulars 

(b) Value of imported raw marenals consumed and the value of all indigenous raw materials sintilarJy consumed and the 
percentage of each to the total consumption, 

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

Opening Stock 5561.36 5291.08 
Add: Purchases 
Boron Ores 6066.85 9212.44 
Sulphuric Acid 519.29 867.22 
Borax Pentahydrate 23.89 0.00 
Others 91.02 62.25 

12262.41 15432.99 
Less: Closing Stock 2066.19 5561.36 

Total 10196.ZZ 9871.63 

(a) Raw Materials Consumed Comprise: 
Boron Ores 9,564.71 8,930.64 
Sulphuric Acid 522.55 874.14 
Borax Pentahydrate 18.76 0.50 
Others 90.20 66.35 

10,196.22 9,871.63 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 26 - Cost of materials consumed [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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(3.71) 12.80 

23.81 23.78 

23.81 23.78 

35.80 39.99 

(0.81) 
(5.07) 

2.17 

S.57 
4.62 
2.61 

35.80 39.99 173.23 155.29 
146.54 139.61 

26.69 15.68 

15.14 14.12 

11..03 10.53 
(19.91) (9.53) 

6.26 15.lZ 

Nil Nil 

13.22 
(13.22) 

19.59 
(19.59) 

13.22 
(13.22) 

19.59 
(19.59) 

35.80 39.99 
(13.22) (19.59) 

lS.14 14.12 

11.03 10.53 
10.20 (5.8B) 

(18.43) (8.28) 
173.23 155.29 

139.61 134.79 
10.50 9.99 

(2.62) (2.17) 
7.43 5.20 

(8.38) (8.28) 
146.54 139.61 

139.61 134.79 
7.88 7.82 
7.43 5.28 

(8.38) (8.28) 
146.54 139.61 

Nil Nil 

Present value or obligation as at end or the year 
Change ju plan assets 
Plan assets at period beginning, at fair value 
Expected return on plan assets 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 
Contribution 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of Plan assets at end of the year 
Fajr Yalu¢ o(plan A:»ets 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Conrnbunons 
Benefits paid 
fair Value of plan assets at the end or year 
funded status 
Excess of Actual over estimated return 
The Amounts to be rccognlzcd Jn the balance sheet and 
statements of profit and loss 
Present value of obligations as at the end of year 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 
Funded status 
Net asset/(li;ibility) recognized in balance sheet 
Expenses fnr the year 
Current service cost 
Prior service cost 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 
Total Bxpenses Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 
Ren1eas-uretnent effects recognized In other Con1nrehens-lve lnconte 
Acturlal (gain)/L.os~e.s due to Demographic: Assurnption changes in 
Acturlul (gain)/L.osses due to Financial Assumption changes in DB< 
Acl'uada1 (Gain)/Lo::.~es due to Experience on 080 
Return on Plan Asets (Greater)/ Less than Discount rate 
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised In the year 
Total Actuarial (g-ain)/loss included in OCI 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit Obligation: 
Present Value or obligation as cu beginning or year 155.29 144.79 35.80 25.21 
Current service cost 23.78 23.1)1 
Prior service cost 
Interest eose 
Actu:1rlii1 [gain] / IOS$ 
Benefus paid 

Leave Encashment 
Non Funded 

As at l\1arch As at March 
31, 2024 31, 2023 

Gratuity funded 
Non Ful\dcd 

A.~ at l\1arch As at l\1arch 
31,2024 31, 2023 

Assumptions 

Defined Benefit Plan: 
Gratuity and Leave Encase1nent: 
The Company makes partly annual contribution to the E1nployc~s· Group Graruity•l'ulnaLitl! Assurance Scheme of the Litt! Insurance 
Corporation of Indla. a funded benefit plan for quaUfylng employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees 
at renremenr. death whlle in employment or on rerminanon of employment of an amount equivalent to IS days service for each 
completed year of service or part thereof depending on the dateof'[olntng, The bcnefltvests after five years of conttnuous servlce. 

flj 1NDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED 



Total 

Stores, Spares and Packing 
Power & Fuel 
Repairs & Maintenance (Building} 
Machinery & Electrical Repairs 
Water Charges 
Factory Expenses 
Insurance Charges 
Repairs-Others 
Rent and Other Charges 
Rates & Taxes 
Discount 
Donation 
Freight. Coolie & Cartage 
Commission and Brokerage 
Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution 
Travelling and conveyance 
Telephone charges 
Printing & Stationery 
Directors Sitting Fees 
Vehicle Expenses 
Auditors' Renumeration 
Legal and Professional charges 
Bank Charges 
Sales Tax 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 
General Expenses 

Particulars 
Note 30 - Other expenses 

Total 

Interest on Working Capital 
Other Interest 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 

0.05 0.13 
0.55 9.10 
0.60 9.23 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023 

490.57 539.23 
838.07 1,029.15 

20.96 2.82 
107.29 254.60 
18.08 17.49 

404.51 492.24 
11.01 9.25 
7.43 17.35 

83.92 105.88 
286 2.79 

0.17 
2.91 ·1.4·1 

41.60 40.23 
839.06 95623 
110.00 79.00 
8367 6783 
4.14 4.09 
3.01 2.57 
l.80 ).80 

19.39 18.91 
9.18 8.68 

223.34 354.35 
2.17 4.13 
0.82 3.98 

78.51 98.88 
23.32 19.86 

3,427.62 4,132.90 

Particulars 

'The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation , take account of inflation, seniority. promotion, and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment marker. 
Note 29 - Net flnance costs 

Indian Assured ~Ives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 

5.00% 
7.00% 

5.00% 
7.00% 

7.23% 7.55% 7.55% 
5.00% 
7.00% 

7.23% 
5.00% 
7.00% 

Discount Rate 
Bmptoycc Tu1'1\0\~cr 
Salary Escalation 
Mortality 

Leave Bncashruent 
As at !'if arch 31, J\s at March 31, 

2024 2023 
As at March 31, 

2023 
As at March 31, 

2024 
Assumptions 

Gratuity Funded 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise] 
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As Auditors 
Tax Audit Fees 
Other Services 
Total 

Particulars 

1. Foreign Travels 
2. Others 
Note 36 · Remuneration to Auditors: 

Particulars 

Raw Materials 
Note 35 - Expenditure In Foreign Currency: 

Particulars 

Profit after Tax 
No. of shares outstanding 
Weighted Average No. of shares+ potential shares o/s 
Earning per share (Basic) Face Value per share Rs. 1 
Earning per share (Diluted) Face Value per share Rs. 1 
Note 34 - Value Of Imports On C.l.F. Basis: 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 
Total current tax expense 
Deferred tax 
Decrease/fincrease) in deferred tax assets 
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 
Income tax expense 
Note 33 - Earning Per Share: 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

1,376.49 1,758.80 
(0.08) 37.80 

1,376.41 1,796.60 

(50.85} 29.21 
(50.85) 29.21 

1,325.56 1,825.81 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

3,897.76 5,069.40 
3,20, 90,000 3,20,90,000 
3,20, 90,000 3,20,90,000 

12.15 15.80 
12.15 15.8() 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

8,230.05 8,667.59 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

9.78 19.07 
0.45 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 

4.68 4.68 
1.50 1.50 
3.00 2.50 
9.18 868 

Particulars 

490.57 539.23 
a) Imported 
b) Indigenous 

Note 32 - Taxation 
-lncome tax expense 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

148.83 
148.83 Profit on Sale of Office premises 

Total 
Consumable Stores & Spares and Packing: 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 31- Exceptional Items [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 
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Sr. Subsidiary Key Relatives of Key 
Particulars Company Managentent Managerial Person No. Personnel 

2023·24 2022·23 2023·24 2022·23 2023·24 2022-23 

1 Outstanding Payables 
Mr. Sajal Jain 1.38 552.48 
fi.i1r. Govmd Parmar 379.73 1.50 
Mr. Saumya Jain 2.87 3.00 

2 Outstanding Receivables 
Mr. Sajal Jain 4.flO 4.60 

c) Outstanding as at year end 

Sr. Subsidiary Key Relatives of Key Management 
No. 

Particulars Company Personnel r.tanagerial Person 
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

t 
Payments to & provision for Directors' 
remuneration 
Mr. Govlnd Parmar 18.11 17.26 
Mr. Saial Jain 531.23 701.93 
Salary to Relative 

. 
2 

Mr. Saurnya Jain 64.71 64.21 
3 Rent Received from KMP 

Mr Saia I [ain-Rent Received 57.60 52.49 - . 
4 Directors Sitting Fees - . 

Mr. Arun Sureka, Independent Director 0.45 0.51 
Mr. N.K. Mittal, Independent Director 0.45 0.42 
Mr. Sachin Gupta, Independent Director 0.51 0.36 
Mrs. Sreeleklla fain, Non-Executive Director 0.30 0.30 
Mr. Yatin Shah, Independent Director 0.03 . 
Mr. Yogcsh Patil, Independent Director 0.06 . 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Details of transacttons between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below: 
Note 37 - Details of Related parties transacuons are as under: 
a) List of related parties and relationship where control exists or with whom transactions were entered into: 
Subsidiary 
Indoborax Infrastructure Private l.lmited 
Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Sajal lain, Managing Director & ChiefFinancial Officer 
Mr. Govind Parmar, Executive Director (up to 31/03/2024) 
Mr. Arun Sureka, Independent Director (up to 31/03/2024) 
Mr. N.K. Mirtal, lndependeni Director 
~tr. Sachin Gupta, Independent Director 
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain, NOD-Executive Director 
Mr. Yatin Shah, Independent Director (w.e.f 13/02/2024) 
Mr. Yogesh Patil, Independent Director ( w.e.f. 13/02/2024) 
Relative of Key l\ttanagentent Personnel 
Mr. Saumya Jain, Chief Executive 

b) Transactions during the year with related parties: 
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Amount 
Name Agreg:ne utilised Amount Amoum as 
of the working during Quarter ended disclosed as per books Difference Reasons 
Sank capital limit the per quarterly 

of :.lCC:OUnt sanctioned quarter senement 

Primenly certain 

1035.00 30-06-2023 5,387.85 4,929.92 457.93 
expenses forming - part of finish good$ 

Korak 
ll)33.00 - 30-09-2023 3.867.71 3,879.fl8 (1 l .37) and semi .. finished 

l\•lahind goods were not 
l'(l B1ok 1035.00 - 31-12-2023 3,136.87 3,146.65 (9.78) included ill the 

Ltd 
1035.00 - 31-03-'2024 2,172.19 2,183.94 (11.75) Lluan-e.rl)· statements 

& reversal of some 
expenses. 

Note 39 · Other luformatton 
i, The company has filed quarterly return or statements with the bank in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities, 

which are in agreerueutwith the books of accounts otherthan those asset out below. 

(ii) Specific valuation techniques used to value financial mstruments include: The use of quoted market prices for 
investments in shares and mutual funds. 

As at 31 March 2023 Levell Level2 Level3 Total 
Financial assets 
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares 344.60 - 344.60 
Mutual funds 552.76 - - 552.76 
Other 0.31 - - 0.31 
Total financial assets 897.67 - 897.67 

As at31March2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 
Financial assets 
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Shares 58.67 - - 58.67 
Mutual funds 4.239.86 - - 4,23<J.06 
Other 0.30 - - 0.30 
Total financial assets 4,298.83 - - 4,298.83 

Note 38 · Financial Instruments 
I) Fair values hierarchy 

Financtal assets and financtal liabilities measured at fair value in the sratemenr offtnancial position arc grouped into three 
levels of a fajr value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the 
measurement. as follows: 
Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities: 
Level 2 : The fair value of financial lnstrurnents that are not traded in an active market is determined usJng valuation 

techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. 

Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based Oil observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
Financial assets and liabilities measured atfairvalue ·recurring fair value measurements 
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ii The Company does not have any Benanu property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 
Company for any Beuami property. 

111 The Company does not have any transaction with compmfes struck off. 
iv The Company docs not have any charges or satisfaction \·\lhich is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

pcrtod, 
v The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency orVirtual Currency during the financial year. 
vi The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 

govenunent authonty 
vii The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (lurermedtartes) with the understanding that the lnterrnediary shall: 
(a} directly or Indirectly lend or Invesr In other persons or entities Identified In any manner whatsoever by or 011 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
lb) provide anyguarantce, security orthe like to oron behalf of the utnmarc Beneficiaries 

viii The Company has not received any fund fro many person(s) oreutity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding ( whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities. identified in .any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee.securityor the like on behalf of the Ulllmate Beneficiaries, 
ix The Company docs not have any rransactton which is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

dtsctoscd as income during the year in 'he tax assossmeuts under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provtslons of'tbe lncomeTaxAcl, 1961. 
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The Company's risk management Is carried out by a central treasury department of the Company wider policies approved by the 
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provide written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering 
specific areas. SLICh as foreign exchange risk. interest rate risk. market risk, credlt risk and investmentof excess liquidity. 
A) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due to the 
Group causing financial loss. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions. security 
deposits, loans given and principally from credit exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The Group's 
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount oflinanclal assets recognlsedae report! ng date. 

Portfolto dlverslflc:<1don $en,Sltlv1ty analysts tnvesunenrs In equity securlttes Market risk· securhy price 

The ulexite. Lithium hydroxide and 
other raw material is purchase: at the 
prevalltng price front suppliers. 

sensitivity analysis Payables linked to ulexite prices 
Marl<et risk· utextte, l..ithhun 
Hydroxide & crber raw 
m•neri::il prices 

t-tix ct borrowlngs taken <U 
fixed and floating rates 

Seusltlvtty analysis ~1.:trkt!t rtsk ~ Interest rat .. · 

Material bought on receipt of 
documents, If material bought on credit 
same are hedged. 

Cash tlow forecasting 
sensitivity analysis 

Recognised financial assets and 
liabilities not denominated in 
Indian rupee (Rs.) 

Market risk -fcreign 
exchange 

Rolling cash Ilowrcrecasts Avall3blllty of commlned 
credlt lines and borrowing facittttes Borre v \'ing.$ and other Jktbilities Llquldhy risk 

Bank deposits. diversification 
of asset base, credit timlts 
and collateral 

Cash and cash equlvatents. trade recelvebles, 
dertvattvc financial tnstrumcnrs. Aging anal)•sis 
financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Credit risk 

~fanagement Exposure arisi.ng from ~fea....-U.rement Risk 

a) The carrying value of trade receivables. securities deposits, insurance claim receivable, loans given, cash and bank 
balances and other financial assets recorded at amortised cost, is considered to he a reasonable approxlmarlon of fair 
value. 
The carrylng value ofborrowings, trade payables and other financial Ha bl Ii ties recorded at amortised cost is considered 
to be a reasonable approximation off;iir value. 

ii) rtsk management 
The Group's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the 
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the nskand the related impact in the financial statements: 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Particulars FVTPL Amornscd Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost 

Pteanctat assets: 
Investments 
mutual funds Shares and Bond 4.298.82 . 897.67 
Loans 
to others . 76.09 . 60.73 
to other body corporates . 509.04 . 509.04 
Trade receivables . 1,360.79 . 1,279.12 
Security deposits . 60.19 . 46.22 
Gash and cash equivalents . 11,978.06 . 8,524.70 
Unclaimed dividend account . 25.85 . 24.36 
Total 4-298.82 14.010.02 897.67 10 4-4-4-.18 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings . . . . 
Trade payables . 363.60 . 340.84 
Other financial llabilidcs . 956.56 . 1,123.99 
Total . I 322.18 . 1464-.83 

Note 40 .. Ptnanctal Risk P.tanagement: 
i) Financial Instruments by Cartagory: 
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8) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity risk management implles mainrainlng sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the 
business, the Company maintains flexibility in fundingby mainraintng svallablltty under commttted facilities. 
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Croup's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected 
cash flows. The Group takes into account the liquidity of the: market in which the entity operates. In addition. the Group's 
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets 
necessary to meet these, monitortng balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and 
malntalntng debt tlnanclng plans. 
Ftnanclng arrangements 
The Group had obtained credit facility or Rs. 1035 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, however the same has not been 
utlltlzed. 
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
The tables below analyse the Group' s Onan<."ial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on thelr-contracrual maturlrles 
for all non-derivative financial Jiabi1ities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
Balances duewitlun 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the tmpactof discounting is not significant. 
Refer Note No. 20 for the Trade payables bifurcation. 

C) Market risk-foreign exchange 
The Group Is exposed to foreign exchange risk arJsJng from foreign currency transactions. primarily with respect to US Dollar. 
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional 
currency. The Group, as per its overall strategy group imports raw marertals on the basis of market demand. The Group does 
not use forward contracts and swaps fcrspeculanve purposes. 
Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or loss from changes in the exchange rates arises mainly front financial instruments denomtnated in 
USO. In case ore reasonably posslble change In INR/USD exchange rates of+/· 2% (previous year+J-2%) ot the reporting date, 
keepingall other variables constant, there would have been an impact on profitsoHNR 1 <f3.56 Lnkhs (previous yearlNR 267.77 
Lakhs). 

t,279.1,2 l,360.79 

1.112.28 
160.89 

2.33 
1.89 
l.73 

1.243.81 
29.76 
75.45 
10.73 

l.04 

Not due 
0-30 days past due 
31-60 days past due 
61·90 days past due 
More than 

As at 31-Mar-23 As at 31-Mar-24 Particulars 

(Amounts are In lakhs unless seated otherwise) DetaU of trade receivables that are past due Is given below: 

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties. identified either individually or by the 
Company, and Incorporates this informatton into its credit risk controls. where available at reasonable cost, external credit 
raungs and/or reports on customers and other counterpartles are obtained and used, The Company's polity is to deal only wtth 
creditworthy covnrerpernes. 
Jn respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single 
counterparry or any company of counterparttes having similar characteristics.Trade receivables consist of a large number of 
customers in vanous parts of India. The Croup has very Hmned hjstury of customer default, and conslders the credit quality of 
trade receivables tho tare not post due or-tmpo! red to be good. 
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds. bank deposits. loans and derivative financial instruments is 
considered negligible.since the counrerparttes are reputableorgantsattouswtth high quality external credit ratings. 
Group provides for expected credlt losses on financial assets by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of 
any credit losses. Since the assets have very low credit risk, and are for varied natures and purpose. there is no trend that the 
company can draws to apply consistently to entire population. for such finanoal assets, the Group's policy is to provides for 12 
month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime ex petted credit losses upon sigulftcant increase 
in credu risk. The Group does not have any expected loss based lmp.urment recognised on such assets constdertng their low 
crednrtsknaeure, though Incurred loss provisions ore disclosed under each sub-cotegoryorsucn tlnanctal assets. 
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Name of the Entity In the Net Assets t.e, total assets Sh3re In Prone or LO$S Share In other Share In total 
minus total Liabilitcs afterT;tlt <:01."11r>e11en..;;1ve ll'ICOl11e comprehensive Income 

As%of As%of As%of other As%ofSh:are 
censclidatcd Amount consolidated Amount comprehensive Amount in comprescnnve Amount 

net assets {Rs in LakJ1s) 1n-oftc 01· toss (Rs in Lakh.sl Income {Rs in Lakhs) tneome fRs in Lakhs) 
31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2:024 31.03.202.f 

1 z 3 4 s 6 7 • 9 
Pat'enrSubsldairy 
ludian s 
Iedo H()rax & C:hcn\lCals tld 96.l8% 28.iUl.90 98.5$% 3.841.2·\ 1()1).00% 258.93 98.6-1% 4,100.18 
lndobol'.JX lufrostrurture Pvt Ltd 3.82·~ 1,122.oe 1.45% 56.52 0.00% 1.36''4 56.52 

TOTAL 100.00% 29.34-0.98 100.00% 3.89?.?6 100.00% 258.93 100.00% 4,156.69 

Note 42 -For Disclosures mandated by Schedule UI of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional Information, refer below: 
320.90 

320.90 

Sensitivity 
The sensitivity to profit or Joss in case ofa reasonably possible change in interest rates of+/· 50 basis points (previous year:+/· 
50 basls points), keeping all other variables constant. would have resulted In an Impact on proflts by INR 0.0002 Lakhs 
(Previous year INR 0.002 Lakhs) 
II) Assets 

The Group's financial assets are carried at amortised cost and are at fixed rate only. They are, therefore, not subject to 
interest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor tne future cash flows wtll fluctuate because of a change in 
market interest rates 

E) Price risk 
Exposure from investments in mutual funds: 
The Group's exposure to price risk arises rrom tnvesnncnrs in mutual tun<ls held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet 
as f~ir value through other comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from lnvesuuents in mutual funds. the 
Group invest only in liquid Funds. 
Seusltlvlty 
The scnslnviry to profit or loss in case of an increase in price of the Instrument by 5% keeping all other variables constant would 
have resulted In an lmpact on profits by 429.88 Lakhs [previousyear I NR 89.77 Lakhs]. 
Exposure front trade payables: 
Group generally import on advance payment or on payment at the tlme of receipt documents. If there is any transaction of 
imports on credit basis. then such transaction is hedged, 

Note 41 -Captra I Management 
The Group' s capital management objectives are: co ensure the group's ability to continue as a going concern, to provide an 
adeqvate return to shareholder. The Croup monitors capital on the basis of Ille carrying amount of equity less cash and cash 
equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet. 
The Management assesses the group's capital requirements in order lo matmaln an efficient overall flnanctng structure while 
avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the group's various classes of debt. The Group 
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it Jn tho light of changes in the economic conditions and the risk 
cbaracteristics of the underlying assets, 
The company monttors the capital on the basis of following ratios 
Dividends 
Equity shares 
(i) Final dividend for the year 
(ii) Dividends not recognised nr the end of the repornngpertoo 

Variable rate borrowing 
Fixed rate borrowing 

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 Particulars 

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise) 

0) Interest rate risk 
I) Liabilities 

The Group's policy is to mlnimrse interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 !\1arch 2024, the 
Group is exposed lo changes in market Interest rates through bank borrowings at vanable.loterest rates. 

Interest rate risk exposure 
Below is the overall exposure of the Group to interest rate risk: 
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44 Cummtrment aud Contingent Llabtlry: 
a) In 1992. STC of India Ltd had claimed for Rs. 9.03 Lakhs towards price difference & others. against this, Honourable 

Bombay High Court ordered Company to give bank quarantee of'Rs. J .65 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. l.65 Lakhs]. 
b) Balance tnsrahuentrowards work- in- progress of Rs. 2086.06 Lakhs, payable on the basis of various stages of complenon 

of project over the period of five years. 
c) The company has created a fixed deposit or Rs. 31 Lakhs lien marked in favour of Customs towards security against 

imporrcd raw materlal, 
45 Corporate Social Responsibility: The Company has Incurred INR 110.00 takhs (previous year INR 79 Lakhs) towards Social 

Responsibility activlttes. It is included in in the Statement of Profatand Loss. Further; no amount has been spent 011 construction/ 
acquisttion of an asset of the Company and the entire amount has been spent in cash. The amount required to be spent under 
Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013 for the year 2023 is INR 108.16 lakhs i.e. 2% of average net profits for last three financial 
years, calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act,2013. 

4'6 tnrcr Corporate Deposit consist of a sum of R.<. 509.04 Lakhs given ro M/s. Radius Estates Projects Private Llmltod (formerly 
k110\Vn as vtshwaroop Realtors Private Limlted. The said company is in the process of corporate Insolvency resotuuon process 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016 (IBC). The company has filed its claim as financial creditors as per the regulation 
8 of the JBC code for the said outstanding amount, The company is awaiting the outcome from NationaJ Company La\V Tribunal 
{NCLT). Due to uncertainty in realization of the said debt and pending a decision of NCLT the company continued not to provide 
interest on rhe said loan during the financial year. 

47 The amount refclccred It) capital work In progress represents advance given for Unit/ Flat No. 1601 and 1602 for project named 
Avenue 54 al S. V. Road, Santacruz (West) Mumbai ·400 054. the said project is likely lo be completed by December, 2022 as per the 
terms of the booking. However the Builder has unilaterally altered the date of possession to 30th December, 2024. without 
inf orrning the company as well as to other allottecs, inspitc of repeated reminders for registration of sale agreement, the same has 
not been executed by the Builder till date, in view of this the company has filed cont plaint under J..•IAHA RERA against the Builder. 
The MAI IA RERA has given the verdict on 29th Februal'y, 2024 In favoul'ofthee<11npany&othcrallotccsanddircctcd the Builder to 

Nole: ln respee of.:Lrorc:::sa.id 01enUon~ r~tin:s.oo rt"i1sons: rer vetauce provided where Wnge (ZS% or 1norc) in FY 2023~24 in cempartson 1.0 FY 2022·23. 

Summary of l\tater'ial Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory lnformatlon for the year ended 31st March 2024 
Note 43 ·Disclosure witb respect to Ratio: [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otberwtse) 

Ratio Numcr:llnr Denominator C\u·re:ut Pnwh.>11s % vartenee ft~.:t.SODS 
Pertod rerlod for V\llrtance 

Increase was prl'*1rily nn ;)('OOUtlt crrecrease 
ta) C-1rr.cnt Ratio ('.u1Tr.nt A.ssetl Currcm L"billty 13.20 •.s• l&08% 

In ror1<t>nl itSSelS (li'l:'lhily hiaeose h\ Cu.rretu 
lnve11tnw1lts ca~11 and B.i.uk ballmn' :mJ 
n:ducliuCI i.11 CUtrtnl Li:tbiliti~ 

(I.>) Dehl Equity RabD eorr(lwinp• lnt.:r11st Tot;il equity ...... 
A«:rucd 

Ntt Profit Jftcr T~x Debt service .. 
I c) ~bt Service • Of:prooatwn • lolt'«st•loss lntCN?1il&l,.e:i1;i: 

6,8:32.40 s.67.37 IHM.ZJ')I, nerecse \"3S: primarily on acecum t>l rtdutlion 
C!wi:rtig" Ratio on ~uk! of P1x~d Assets p:t)'IJ'IC11N •Prind~I In 1wona and inac:aite1n nn:ancc eest, 

R<?p;iymenl.$ 

{d) Rt-tum on Equ.ity R:1!il> N'~l Pr-Olit altf!r Tax 
A.,"f:i'1:ge Slt.W~hOl4e-i"S 

12,JS ISJ.iQ -23.ll% 
Decrease v1as priin;irlty on at:t:tM.i.nt or 

Etiuity Decrease In 1>roflr <'fte-r tax 

AV«ll"tl&~ lc1vtl'ltOf)' 
ln.:rea~e wai; prirn:.ril)' on awuunt uf ini:re;i,;r. { e) ll'IV(<l'lt<>ryruri)U\•er rcuc Cost of t:oods s<>ld or S"ales (Opening lnvuntO•)' t 2.6? 182 4(1.<;16% 

Closing lt1\'11ntor)') /2 in Cl.~t of Raw M;i.terialf 

fl) Tr,ldt'I R«t'l\'Oblt's N't!t CN!dit S.ileor 
Avemge At«1u1US 14 ... Q 18.86 ·23.18% Rc:for Nute n1roo\'er reno Rca;iv:1bleor 

liJ 1'ra1le 1'.:ipblo::i turnu v ·er N~t C1-c.-dit P\1rt""1~li~ 
Averasl! Tr.1.d~ 

llJ.03 z~.1~1) ·23.27% Reft!r Natl! P11y;ibles 

th) Net C.i.pil:•t lllfl'IO'Vl!.r r.11.itl N'tt Sal~":! \Vtirklni;: Capital J.0] l.43 ·Z7.95% 
()cau.isew.).Sprimaril)' Ol)~c;roont or 
tecrcese in wc.rldng o:.apital 

{i) Mt!t Profit R.itio Nt!tPrq!i1 Net Solle$ 0.20 0.24 ·13.56% l\cfor HO{C 

{i) Return cm Capital ":.1rning berore iotel't':'lt and Caplkll Employed 0.18 021 ·34.23% D«R:lllic.' in r~tio prirn~ril)' on acrnunt u-f 
£rnployed t;IXt:S Dr.ar;i.,-e in profit:s 

(k) R..."lutll on ILWC'SU1Wl1l tftt Rrtum after T<lX lnvcs~1)ts O.l3 0.20 ·33.16% Drc:r1:.1:1e in r.itiQ prim~nlynn acaiunt 1.>f 
Decrease'" 111~fits 
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Yogesh Patil 
Director 
DIN·l0464221 
Pravtn Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Sreelekha Jain 
Director 
DIN·OB057896 
Govlnd Parmar 
E>-:ecutive Director 
DIN·03556411 

Anll Jain 
Partner 
Mombo1·shlp No. 039803 
Place : P,1umbai 
Date : 2s"' May, 2024- 

Sachin Gupta 
Director 
OIN·09332193 

For and on behalf of the Board Directors 
lndo Borax & CheruicaJs Limited 
Sajal Jain 
Managing Dlrecror & CFO 
OIN·00314855 

Notes 1to50 form an integral part of these fiao:tntial statements. 
As per attached report of even date. 
For Bohra & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 136492W 

execute & register the agreement for sale wt thin t v vo months fro in the date of the order. 
48 AU assets and H<1bUities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other 

criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current- non currentclassttlcaricn or assets and liabilities. 

49 Authorl1.atlou of Ptnanclal Starcmcnrs : The standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2024 (including 
comparatives) were approved by the Board ofDlrectors on 25th May, 2024. 

SO The previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make in compliance with the current 
financtalyear; 
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Yogesh Patil 
Director 

Sreelekha Jain 
Director 
Mumbai, 25" May. 2024 

Pravin Chavan 
Company Secretary 

Govind Parmar 
Director 

Sachin Gupta 
Director 

Sajal Jain 
Managing Director & CPO 

For and on behalf of Board 
lndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. 

Sr. Particulars 
No. 

1. Name of the Company lndoborax Infrastructure Private 
Limited 

2. Renortinz Period l" April, 2023 to 31" March, 2024 
3. Rcnortina Currencv lNR 
4. Share Canital 11.00 
s. Reserve & Surolus 1111.08 
6. Total Assets 1122.08 
7. Total Liabilities 0.85 
8. Investments 0.00 
9. Turnover 76.10 

10. Profit before taxation 75.53 
11. Provision for taxation 19.01 
12 Profit after taxation 56.52 
13. Proposed Dlvidend 0.00 
15. % of shareholdme 100% 
16. Countrv India 

Rs. in Lakhs 

FORMAOC·1 

STATEMENT REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANY PURSUANT TO SUB·SECTlON (3) OF SECTION 129 OF 
TllE COMPANIES ACT. 2013 READ WITII RULE 5 OF TllE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary 
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NOTES 
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